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An investment in our securities involves a high degree of risk. You should consider carefully the following information about
these risks, together with the other information contained in this Annual Report, including the matters addressed in the seetien
sections entitled “ CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD- LOOKING STATEMENTS ” beginning-on
page-tirand “ Management’ s Discussion and Analysis of thisAnnual-Repert-Financial Condition and Results of
Operations ” , before making an investment decision. Our business, prospects, financial condition, and results of operations
may be materially and adversely affected as a result of any of the following risks. The value of our securities could decline as a
result of any of these risks. You could lose all or part of your investment in our securities. Some of the statements in “ RISK
FACTORS ” are forward- looking statements. The following risk factors are not the only risk factors facing our company.
Additional risks and uncertainties not presently known to us or that we currently deem immaterial may also affect our business,
prospects, financial condition, and results of operations and it is not possible to predict all risk factors, nor can we assess the
impact of all factors on us or the extent to which any factor or combination of factors may cause actual results to differ
materially from those contained in or implied by any forward- looking statements. Summary of Risk Factors Our business is
subject to a number of risks, including risks that may adversely affect our business, financial condition, and results of operations.
These risks are discussed more fully below and include, but are not limited to, risks related to: Risks Relating to Our Business
and Management- our history of incurring losses;- our need to, and difficulty in, raising additional capital and repossession of
collateral securing current loans in default;- the potential of being delisted from NASBDAQ-Nasdaq ;- downturns in the
eryptoeurreney-digital assets industry;- inflation;- increased interest rates;- the inability to procure needed hardware ;- risks
associated with our expansion into the Artificial Intelligence (“ AI ) and High- Performance Computing (“ HPC ”)
marKets ;- the failure or breakdown of mining equipment;- outages and limitations of internet connectivity;- access to reliable
and reasonably priced electricity sources;- cyber- security threats;- our ability to obtain proper insurance;- the prices of digital
assets;- our reliance on a small number of key employees;- our failure to effectively manage our growth including not growing
or improving our current hashrate;- the competitiveness of the eryptoeurreney-digital assets industry;- global climate change
and related environmental regulations;- the potential cancellation or withdrawal of required operating and other permits and
licenses; and- banks and other financial institutions ceasing to provide services to people in our industry, whether through choice
or due to their own insolvency or failure. Risks Relating to €ryptoetrreney-Digital Assets Mining, Bitcoin Price and
Technology- changes to the Bitcoin network’ s protocols and software;- the manipulation of the blockchain by malicious
actors;- failures of the Bitcoin network to be properly monitored and upgraded;- the decrease in the incentive to mine Bitcoin;-
an increase in the network difficulty;- the increase of transaction fees related to digital assets;- the downward pressure on the
price of Bitcoin created by firms selling their Bitcoin;- political or economic ertses-crisis or change;- the fraud or security
failures of large digital asset exchanges;- the further development and acceptance of digital asset networks and other digital
assets;- future digital asset and digital currency development; and- the development of quantum computing, and other new
technologies. Risks Relating to Laws, Regulatory Frameworks, and Legal Action- regulatory changes and changes in
interpretations of existing regulations, including for digital assets like Bitcoin, or Bitcoin mining itself (including the imposition
of taxes, limits on mining (or power usage), or new licensing regimes);- our ability to timely and effectively implement controls
and procedures required by Section 404 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002;- future developments regarding the treatment of
digital assets for U. S. federal income and foreign tax purposes, or other taxes on Bitcoin mining;- regulatory intervention by
governments impacting the right to mine, acquire, own, hold, sell, exchange or use Bitcoin or other eryptoenrrenetes-digital
assets ;- additional legislation or guidance may be issued by U. S. and non- U. S. governing bodies that may differ significantly
from our practices or interpretation of the law, which could have unforeseen effects on our financial condition and results of
operations, additional legislation or guidance may be issued by U. S. and non- U. S. governing bodies that may differ
significantly from our practices or interpretation of the law, which could have unforeseen effects on our financial condition and
results of operations;- legislative, regulatory and litigation threats regarding climate change and energy conservation, legislative,
regulatory and litigation threats regarding climate change and energy conservation;- changes to laws regarding the operation of
exchanges by third parties may make the business model unsustainable and may lead to an inability to exchange mined Bitcoin
for fiat currency efficiently, changes to laws regarding the operation of exchanges by third parties may make the business model
unsustainable and may lead to an inability to exchange mined Bitcoin for fiat currency efficiently;- material litigation (including
with our lenders and counter- parties counterparties), investigations or enforcement actions by regulators and governmental
authorities; and- because there has been limited precedent set for financial accounting of Bitcoin and other eryptoentreney
digital assets, the deterrnlnatlon that we have made for how to account for eiefpteetn?eﬂey—dlgltal assets transactlons may be
subject to change —Ris : W 0 of 7 e

aﬂﬁem&eed—gutdaﬂee—efet-her—eﬂqaeef&&ens— We have 1ncurred operatlng 1osses since 1ncept10n Durlng the tlme we have

operated we have incurred net losses. We expect to continue to incur losses for the near future, and these losses may likely
increase as we pursue our growth strategy. If we do not achieve our operational objectives, and if we do not generate sufficient
cash flow and income, our financial performance and long- term viability may be materially and adversely affected. Our
inability to achieve and then maintain profitability would negatively affect our business, financial condition, results of
operations and cash flows. We will need to raise substantial additional capital to continue our operations and execute our



business strategy, meet our debt service obligations and execute our business strategy, and we may not be able to raise adequate
capital on a timely basis, on favorable terms, or at all. Our inability to raise sufficient capital would have a material adverse
effect on our financial condition and business. We have a history of losses from operations, we expect potential negative cash
flows from our operations to continue for the foreseeable future, and we expect that our net losses will continue for the
foreseeable future as we seek to increase the efficiency of our operations, find new ee—leeatien-colocation customers, and grow
the size of our self- mining operations. These circumstances raise substantial doubt about our ability to continue as a going
concern. Our financial statements as of December 31, 2623-2024 , have been prepared on the basis that we will be able to
continue as a going concern and do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty. At
December 31, 2623-2024 , our accumulated deficit was $ +82-228 . 678 million, our cash and cash equivalents were $ 4-6 . 48-1
1n11110r1 we had negdtlve Workmg capltal of § -3-3—35 -1-8—9 mllllon and we hdd an dgge yate of $ -1-9—20 35—9 million of debt of
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ongoing legal dispute and litigation . Advancing our future plans will require substantial additional investment. Based on our
current operating plan estimates, we do not have sufficient cash to satisfy our working capital needs and other liquidity
requirements over the next 12 months from the date of this report. We will need to raise substantial additional capital in the near
term to continue to fund our operations, meet our debt obligations and execute our current business strategy. The amount and
timing of our capital needs have and will continue to depend on many factors, as discussed further below as well as under *Item
7. ¢ Management’ s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Liquidity and Capital
Resources. ” We have several notes in default which can subject collateral to seizure and otherwise impact our ability to use the
collateral in our operations as well as affect our ability to raise capital. Additional capital may not be available to us, or even if it
is, the cost of such capital may be high or even uncommercial. We may be forced to obtain additional capital when our stock
price or trading volume or both are low, or when the general market for eryptoetrreney-digital assets companies is weak.
Raising capital under any of these or similar scenarios, if we can raise any at all, may lead to significant dilution to our existing
stocl{holdeIs We mdy be forced to sell assets to raise capital, dnd we may not be able to realize the full value of those assets at
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management may devote significant time and we may incur substantial costs in pursuing, evaluating and negotiating potential
strategic options or capital- raising transactions and those efforts may not prove successful on a timely basis, or at all. If we
cannot raise adequate additional capital when needed, we may be forced to reorganize or merge with another entity, sell or
monetize assets, file for bankruptcy, or cease operations. If we become unable to continue as a going concern, we may have to
liquidate our assets, and might realize significantly less than the values at which they are carried on our financial statements, and
our stockholders may lose all or part of their inv estment in our Common Stock. We have experienced management turnover,

ﬂ&e—feﬂewh&g—may—eeetﬁeaeh—e-ﬁwhlch creates uncertainties and could have an a-materiatadverse eﬁect on our business
shareholders:+. The liquidity-responsibility of the direction and operation of our business relies heavily on a small number
Common-Stoek; 2—The-marketpriee-of key people, including our CEO and CFO €ommen-Stoek;3-. If any Our-abilityto

ebtain-finaneingfor-the-eontinuation-of our key employees cease their involvement operations;-4—The-number-ofinvestors-that
will-eonstder-investing-in our business or, Common-Stoek;5—The-number-of market-makers-in the unfortunate situation one

or more of them are seriously injured or dies, this loss would have a significant and likely adverse impact on us.
Recently, we experienced updates to our executive leadership, including Cemmen-Stoek—6—The-availability-ofinformation
eoneerning-the tradingpriees-departure of William “ and-Sandy velume-of” Harrison as our CFO Common-Stoek;and-7
Fhe-number-of broker—deaters-witling-to-exeeute-trades-in January 2025 and the appointment of William C. Regan as our
Common-Steek-new CFO in January 2025 at the same time . The-CryptoetrreneyIndustry-In June 2024, Kaliste Saloom,
previously Corporate Secretary and Biteoin-prieing-acting General Counsel of the Company, was appointed as our
General Counsel and Corporate Secretary. Although we have endeavored to implement these management transitions in
a non- disruptive manner, such transitions can be inherently difficult ve-l-a-t-r}eBﬁeem-pﬂemg—has-pfeveﬂ—to manage be

’v‘ehﬂ}ere%ﬂmtefeﬂzeﬁay-peﬂeds—ef—e*&eme—&pf&ms—and may hamper dew

a—f-feet—our ability to meet our fmdncml ebl-tgaﬁeﬂs—and operatlonal goals F-H-l‘ﬂ‘lePSllch changes may also glve rlse to
uncertainty among our customers , volatiity-investors, suppliers, employees and others concerning our future direction

and performance. Any of the foregomg could result in 51gn1ﬁcant dlsruptlons eﬂefgy—pﬂees—has—efteﬂ—rest&ted—m—ﬂ&e—majef




-Bi-teetn—operatlons, cash ﬂows and ablhty to execute faﬂﬂérfaH—n%&re—pﬂeeef—BﬂeeﬂmﬂH—hwe—a—neg&fwe—mpaet—on our

seeﬁeﬁ—feﬁfﬂﬁheﬁdiseﬂssteﬁ— Inﬂatlon n the ;Dlobal economy could negam ely 1mpact our busmess dnd results of opeldtlons
Generalnflatten-Inflation in the United States and around the world has risen to levels not experienced in recent decades.
Generalnflatten-Inflation , including rising prices for energy, metals, components, and other inputs as well as rising wages
negatively impact our business by increasing our operating costs. As a result of inflation, we have experienced and may
continue to experience, cost increases. Although we may take measures to mitigate the impact of this inflation, if these measures
are not effective, our business, financial condition, results of operations, and liquidity could be materially adversely affected.
Even if such measures are effective, there could be a difference between the timing of when these beneficial actions impact our
results of opeldtlons and when the cost of inflation is 1ncurled {nefeased—}ﬁwfesﬁ—Rafes—Geﬂ&al-bafﬂés-afetmd-ﬂ&e—weﬂd

trthe-past—\We or our supphers may not be able to procure or repair hdIdele that is requlred in our opeldtlons The ;Dlobal
supply chains are increasingly risky and complex. Our business relies on eryptoeurreney-digital assets - specific hardware such
as the Miners, and containers in which to operate the Miners, and also more general plant and equipment such transformers,
breakers, power boards exhaust fans, deflectors, monitoring equipment and many other parts. If we are unable to procure such
hardware, or replacement parts (at commercial prices, or at all), or they are delayed, our operations may be adversely affected
which would likely have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects. If the
manufacturers of such hardware are unable to obtain materials or components themselves, they may experience manufacturing
delays or have to cease manufacturing altogether. Supply chain disruptions may also occur from time to time due to a range of
factors beyond our control, including, but not limited to, increased costs of labor, freight costs and raw material prices along with
a shortage of qualified workers. There are a small number of major suppliers of Miners globally, and Miner manufacturing is
located primarily in China. If we, or our customers, were unable to source Miners from those suppliers (for example due to
overwhelming global demand for Miners, or due to geopolitical tensions, or war) at a commercial price, or at all, this would have
a materially adverse impact on our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects. Even if the suppliers have
agreed to supply us with miners, they may fail to supply the Miners due to their inability to manufacture sufficient Miners due to
a shortage of components or resources such as semiconductors, a default, insolvency, a change in control, or change of laws
(including export / import restrictions, quotas or tariffs). Trade policies such as export / import restrictions, quotas or tariffs may
reduce the ability of our suppliers to supply us with Miners or create a shortage or lack of components necessary for their
manufacture or repair. The-Recently, the U. S. government has threatened significantly increased tariffs on foreign
imports into the U. S. from certain countries, including China, Canada and Mexico. Miners that we source from China
and other mining hardware that we source from outside the U. S. may be subject to these tariffs. If these tariffs are
imposed, or if retaliatory trade measures are taken by foreign countries in response to additional tariffs, it could have
the impact of increasing the aggregate purchase cost of those commodities or reducing the supply of available
commodities, which could have an adverse effect on our business and results of operations. Additionally, the government
of the People’ s Republic of China in particular exerts a high level of influence and control over its economy and businesses
(private and state owned). There have been various examples of government policies, decisions, laws and intervention into
particular industries. Changes in any of these policies, laws and regulations, or the interpretations thereof, as they relate to the
mining hardware suppliers, could have a negative impact on our business. Additionally, if our electricity suppliers are
negatively affected by the international supply chain issues, they may not be able to maintain or grow their facilities and may
not be able to supply us with power, or we may be unable to source extra power in the future to enable our growth. This would
likely have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects. Such supply chain
disruptions have the potential to cause material impacts to our operating performance and financial position if the delivery of
equipment for our facilities is delayed . The Company’ s expansion into the Al and HPC markets may present increased
liability and additional risks to our business. While the Company does not run AI and HPC workloads for its own
purposes, it offers infrastructure for potential customers. As such, the Company may be indirectly exposed to risks in the
Al and HPC space, including: 1. Regulatory Uncertainty. Many countries have not yet established comprehensive Al
regulations, creating uncertainty that can impact future development, deployment, and compliance costs. 2. Compliance
with Privacy Laws. AI companies must address compliance with data protection regulations, such as the EU’ s General
Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) and the California Consumer Privacy Act (CCPA), as these laws significantly
impact Al applications that process personal data. 3. Technology and Data Dependencies. There is a risk of dependency
on vast datasets for training AI models and obtaining quality data could become more difficult due to legal restrictions
or competitive factors. 4. Cybersecurity. Al systems, like all other IT systems, are vulnerable to cyber- attacks, data
breaches, intellectual property theft, and malicious manipulation of AI models. 5. Litigation and Intellectual Property.
Intellectual property disputes over algorithms, AI models, and proprietary datasets are common concerns. Legal



challenges or patent disputes could negatively impact AI companies’ operations. 6. Reputational Risks. Public trust in Al
is in flux and could be undermined by high- profile failures, ethical concerns, or regulatory sanctions. This could affect
consumer adoption and Al companies’ images and reputations . Mining equipment is prone to breakdown, fail or become
obsolete. Miners and related mining equipment used to mine digital assets are sophisticated machines and may be operated over
two years or longer. They are thus prone to breakdown and may not function at any given time. Any downtime of a significant
number of our Miners and mining equipment will have a direct impact on us as they would not be performing their role. This
could occur during-due to an accident on site, or during transportation of a large number of Miners. In addition, the failure of
any critical single piece of equipment may represent a single point of failure which could have widespread impacts. An example
of this could be a fire within a substation resulting in a total power outage for a mining facility for a period until the substation
was rebuilt, or a blown fuse which may affect any part of our facility. Such widespread mechanical issues or critical failures for
any material duration would therefore decrease our revenue. A number of factors drive the adoption of ever more efficient
Miners in the Bitcoin mining industry, including the-energy prices, the fact the Bitcoin algorithm was designed so that as more
computing power is added to the network, the difficulty to mine for each block increases, and the-halving events . Over time
older mining equipment becomes less and less profitable, and like most computing hardware, eventually becomes obsolete.
Mawson’ s fleet has not been materially renewed for a number of years, which means that a number of factors could render its
self- mining fleet obsolete, including a significant increase in difficulty, the-halving events , or simply wear and tear on the
machines rendering some or all of them uncommercial, or inoperable. Any extended outage or limitation of an internet
connection at our sites could materially impact our operations and financial performance. A secure, reliable and fast internet
connection is required for our Miners to validate and verify Bitcoin transactions, secure transaction blocks and add those
transaction blocks to the Bitcoin blockchain. Any extended downtime, bandwidth limitations or other constraints may reduce
our ability to use our Miners support transactions on the Bitcoin network, and therefore reduce our ability to earn block rewards
. In addition, global climate change could result in certain types of natural disasters occurring more frequently or with
more intense effects. Any such events may result in Miners being subject to internet service disruptions or outages . The
effects of any such events could have a material adverse effect on our operating results and financial condition. Access to
reliable electricity sources at reasonable prices is critical to our growth and profitability. Our operations require significant
amounts of electrical power. If we are unable to continue to obtain sufficient electrical power on a cost- effective basis, we may
not be able to realize the anticipated benefits of our significant capital investments. If power prices increase this will likely
materially impact whether we can generate Bitcoin profitably, and how much net energy benefits we will be entitled to. Our
Data-data Infrastrueture-infrastructure require-requires developed land, preferably close to sustainable and reasonably priced
electricity sources. If we are unable to acquire rights to use such land or lose the rights to the land we currently lease or occupy,
this would likely mean that we would lose access to the relevant supply of electricity. A lack of access to electricity would
significantly impact the profitability and viability of our business. Additionally, our operations could be materially adversely
affected by prolonged power outages. Fherefore;we-The potential physical effects of climate change could result in power
outages occurring more frequently. We may have to reduce or cease our operations in the event of an extended power outage,
or as a result of the unavailability or increased cost of electrical power. If this were to occur, our business and results of
operations could be materially and adversely affected. Cyber- security threats pose a challenge to our business , including the
safekeeping of our digital assets, and a risk of reputational damage. Mawson, like almost all businesses around the world, is
subject to continuous malicious attempts to penetrate its systems. We take measures to protect our operations and our digital and
physical assets from unauthorized access, damage or theft; however, it is possible that the security system may not prevent
improper access to, or damage or theft of our assets. A security breach could harm our reputation or result in the loss of some or
all of our assets, or an inability to operate. A resulting perception that our measures do not adequately protect our assets could
adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects. We promptly and frequently liquidate
eryptoeurrenetes-digital assets that we mine and keep a minimum number of eryptoetrrenetes-digital assets in our possession
so as to minimize our risks against theft, loss, destruction or other issues relating to hackers and technological attack. We have
methods of monitoring and ensuring that our Miners are directing hashrate to the correct pools and that any Bitcoin produced is
sent to the intended recipient. Nevertheless, this security system may still be penetrated and may not be free from defect or
immune to acts of God, and any loss due to a security breach, software defect or act of God will be borne by us. The security
system and operational infrastructure may be breached due to the actions of outside parties, error or malfeasance of an
employee, or otherwise, and, as a result, an unauthorized party may obtain access to our private keys, data or Bitcoins.
Additionally, outside parties may attempt to fraudulently induce employees of ours to disclose sensitive information in order to
gain access to our infrastructure. As the techniques used to obtain unauthorized access, disable or degrade service, or sabotage
systems change frequently, or may be designed to remain dormant until a predetermined event and often are not recognized until
launched against a target, we may be unable to anticipate these techniques or implement adequate preventative measures. If an
actual or perceived breach of our security system occurs, the market perception of the effectiveness of its security system could
be harmed, which could adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects. In the event of a
security breach, we may also be forced to cease operations, or suffer a reduction in assets, the occurrence of each of which could
adversely affect us. We may not have, or be able to obtain or maintain, relevant business insurance. Due to the industry in which
we operate, we may not be able to obtain or maintain some types of insurance that operators of similar businesses in other
industries would usually obtain, at commercially viable premiums, or at all. If our digital assets are lost, stolen or destroyed
under circumstances rendering a party liable to us, the responsible party may not have the financial resources sufficient to satisfy
our claim. Our digital assets are not insured. The sale of our digital assets to pay expenses at a time of low digital asset prices
could adversely affect our business. We promptly and frequently liquidate eryptoeurrenetes-digital assets . This may mean that
we sell digital assets at a time when the prices on the respective digital asset exchange market are low, which could adversely
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Miner fleet and other plant and equipment, we may be unable to compete, and our results of operations could suffer. Generally,
a biteetrrBitcoin miner’ s chance of solving a block on the Bitcoin blockchain and earning a biteetnrBiteoin reward is a function
of the miner’ s hash rate (i. e., the amount of computing power devoted to supporting the Bitcoin blockchain), relative to the
global network hash rate. As greater adoption of Bitcoin occurs, we expect the demand for Bitcoin will increase further, drawing
more mining companies into the industry and thereby increasing the global network hash rate. As new and more powerful
miners are deployed, the global network hash rate will continue to increase, meaning a miner’ s chance of earning biteoint
Bitcoin rewards will decline unless it deploys additional hash rate at pace with the industry. Accordingly, to maintain our
chances of earning new biteeir-Bitcoin rewards and remaining competitive in our industry, we must seek to continually add new
miners to grow our hash rate at pace with the growth in the Bitcoin global network hash rate. However, as demand has increased
and scarcity in the supply of new miners has resulted, the price of new miners has increased sharply, and we expect this process
to continue in the future as demand for biteetrrBitcoin increases. Therefore, if the price of biteotnrBitcoin is not sufficiently
high to allow us to fund our hash rate growth through new miner acquisitions and if we are otherwise unable to access additional
capital to acquire these miners, our hash rate may stagnate, and we may fall behind our competitors. If this happens, our chances
of earning new biteein-Bitcoin rewards would decline and, as such, our results of operations and financial condition may suffer.
As our digital assets reach the end of useful life (such as our mainer-Miner fleet) we will need to plan for their replacement.
Replacing our mining fleet will require significant capital which the Company does not currently have. If we are unable to raise
sufficient capital and replace or renew our mining fleet, we may not be able to mine for Bitcoin on a commercial basis. This may
force us to consider other business options, such as to expand our ee—leeatien-colocation business, however, even if successful,
these alternative business options may not generate the same level of profit or income as self- mining. €ryptoeurreney-Digital
assets mining is a highly competitive industry. The eryptoenrreney-digital assets mining industry is highly competitive,
especially for Bitcoin, and there are several competitors who are considerably larger than Mawson, and who have operated for
longer in the industry. With this size and operating history likely comes greater resources (financial, human, and technical),
greater brand recognition and reputation, stronger business relationships, and economies of scale. We expect existing
competitors will expand their operations, new competitors will enter the industry, and some competitors will merge to create
even stronger competitors. The digital asset mining industry is global. If the amount of competing computational power in the
Bitcoin network increases, then the difficulty of the mining process increases, which may lead to lower Bitcoin rewards for
Mawson. If we are unable to compete successfully, or if competing successfully requires us to take costly actions in response to
the actions of our competitors, our business, operating results and financial condition could be adversely affected. Global climate
change and-related-environmental-regilations-may have an adverse effect on our business operations and financial position.
Changes in climate and its effect on the environment such as changes in heat, humidity, snow, rainfall, weather patterns, water
supplies and shortages, sea level and changing temperatures could have an adverse effect on our operations and financial
performance. The potential physical effects of climate change on our operations, if any, are highly uncertain. Extreme weather
events may: @ cause damage to one or more of our modular data centers (that house our Miners) and therefore reduce our ability
to maximize the performance of or operate the Miners; @ affect the delivery times of equipment ordered from our manufacturers
and therefore impact our financial forecasts which were scheduled for a certain period of time; or ® cause power disruptions or
cuts to our Miners, reducing operating times and the performance of the Miners. Any legislative changes regarding climate
change or...... a material adverse effect on us. Banks and financial institutions may cease to provide financial services to persons
involved in eryptoeurreney-digital assets transactions. Banks and other financial institutions can and have made legal and risk-
based decisions to not accept customers such as digital assets investors or businesses that engage in Bitcoin- related activities or
that accept Bitcoin as payment. This may be because it would be illegal for them to do so, or in situations where the legal
position is unsure, but subject to material risk. If we, or our major business partners (e. g. exchanges, mining pools, or miner
suppliers) are unable to obtain banking services, this will cause material business disruption and loss and damage to our
business. If it occurs to a significant number of Bitcoin users, investors and traders, this may lead to a loss of confidence in
Bitcoin and its value, leading to a fall in the Bitcoin price. Risks Relating to €ryptoeurreney-Digital Assets and Technology
The digital assets industry and pricing can be volatile. Digital assets such as Bitcoin pricing has proven to be volatile,
characterized by periods of extreme upturns and downturns that have lasted over lengthy time periods multiple times in
digital assets’ history. A falling Bitcoin price directly affects our ability to generate revenue, which can affect our ability
to meet our financial obligations. Further, volatility in energy prices has often resulted in the major input cost to
generate Bitcoin increasing. The price of Bitcoin can fluctuate due to investment and trading sentiment amongst users,
speculators, and investors for a range of reasons, including changes in interest rate settings, or negative or positive
publicity (for example due to legal proceedings or losses to Bitcoin investors due to fraud or cyber- attacks a digital
assets exchange or online wallet). Large holders of Bitcoin may be able to effect large price swings, especially if they were
to liquidate their holdings, which would likely cause the price of Bitcoin to fall. A fall in the price of Bitcoin will have a
negative impact on our revenues. The prices that we receive for our Bitcoin depend on numerous market factors beyond
our control. Due to the highly volatile nature of the price of Bitcoin, our historical operating results have fluctuated, and
continue to fluctuate, significantly from period to period. Mawson does not use derivatives to hedge Bitcoin prices.
Corporate collapses of important companies in the Bitcoin ecosystem, such as exchanges, funds, lenders, wallet providers
and so on, or other digital assets can also have an impact on confidence and the Bitcoin price. We are also exposed to the



effect a falling price can have on our counterparties, including the exchanges we use and our colocation customers. In
particular, in July 2022, Celsius Networks, LL.C and Celsius Mining LLC ., BiteoinrPriee-filed for Chapter 11 bankruptcy.
A subsidiary of Mawson remains and-- an Feehnotogy-unsecured creditor of Celsius Mining LL.C, with two unpaid pre-
petition invoices totaling in excess of $ 1. 8 million. Subsequent disputes have led to litigation between Celsius entities and
Mawson entities, as further discussed in Note 10 — Commitments and Contingencies to the consolidated financial
statements included in Item 15. “ Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules > in this Annual Report. Significant
contributors to all or any digital asset network could propose amendments to the respective network’ s protocols and software
that, if accepted and authorized by such network, could adversely affect us. Forexample;with-With respect to Bitcoin networks,
a small group of individuals contribute to the Bitcoin Core project on GitHub. com. These individuals can propose refinements
or improvements to the Bitcoin network’ s source code through one or more software upgrades that alter the protocols and
software that govern the Bitcoin network and the properties of Bitcoin, including the irreversibility of transactions and
limitations on the mining of new Bitcoin. Proposals for upgrades and discussions relating therete—- there to take place on online
forums. For example, there is an ongoing debate regarding altering the blockchain by increasing the size of blocks to
accommodate a larger volume of transactions. Although some proponents support an increase, other market participants oppose
an increase to the block size as it may deter miners from confirming transactions and concentrate power into a smaller group of
miners. To the extent that a significant majority of the users and miners on the Bitcoin network install such software upgrade
(s), the Bitcoin network would be subject to new protocols and software that could materially adversely affect our business,
financial condition, results of operations and prospects. In the event a developer or group of developers proposes a modification
to the Bitcoin network that is not accepted by a majority of miners and users, but that is nonetheless accepted by a substantial
plurality of miners and users, two or more competing and incompatible blockchain implementations could result. This is known
as a “ hard fork. ” In such a case, the *“ hard fork ” in the blockchain could materially and adversely affect the perceived value of
digital assets as reflected on one or both incompatible blockchains, which may materially adversely affect our business, financial
condition, results of operations and prospects. If a malicious actor or botnet obtains control in excess of 50 % of the processing
power active on any digital asset network, including the Bitcoin network, it is possible that such actor or botnet could
manipulate the blockchain in a manner that adversely affects us. If a malicious actor or botnet (a volunteer or hacked collection
of computers controlled by networked software coordinating the actions of the computers) obtains a majority of the processing
power dedicated to mining on any digital asset network, including the Bitcoin network, it may be able to alter the blockchain by
constructing alternate blocks if it is able to solve for such blocks faster than the remainder of the miners on the blockchain can
add valid blocks. In such alternate blocks, the malicious actor or botnet could control, exclude or modify the ordering of
transactions, though it could not generate new digital assets or transactions using such control. Using alternate blocks, the
malicious actor could ““ double- spend ” its own digital assets (i. e., spend the same digital assets in more than one transaction)
and prevent the confirmation of other users’ transactions for so long as it maintains control. To the extent that such malicious
actor or botnet does not yield its majority control of the processing power, or the digital asset community does not reject the
fraudulent blocks as malicious, reversing any changes made to the blockchain may not be possible. Such changes could
materially adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects. A failure to properly monitor
and upgrade the Bitcoin network protocol could damage the Bitcoin network and adversely affect us. The open- source structure
of the eryptoeurrenetes-digital assets network protocols means that the contributors to the protocol are generally not directly
compensated for their contributions in maintaining and developing the protocol. The Bitcoin network, for example, operates
based on an open- source protocol maintained by contributors, largely on the Bitcoin Core project on GitHub. As an open-
source project, Bitcoin is not represented by an official organization or authority. As the Bitcoin network protocol is not sold
and its use does not generate revenues for contributors, contributors are generally not compensated for maintaining and updating
the Bitcoin network protocol. The lack of guaranteed financial incentive for contributors to maintain or develop the Bitcoin
network and the lack of guaranteed resources to adequately address emerging or latent issues with the Bitcoin network may
reduce incentives to address the issues adequately or in a timely manner. Modification or changes to the Bitcoin protocol by a
sufficient number of users (known as a *“ fork ”’) may lead to unforeseen bugs or other negative outcomes for Mawson and
miners in general. Changes to our latent issues in a digital asset network which we are mining could materially adversely affect
our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects. The incentive for Bitcoin mining may decrease over time
as the reward decreases. A Bitcoin halving occurs when block rewards, or the number of Bitcoins entering circulation whenever
a block is produced (approximately every 10 minutes), is reduced by half. This occurs on a schedule built into Bitcoin’ s
programming and happens every 210, 000 blocks with the purpose being to issue the total supply of Bitcoin into the market less
frequently over time. This supply effect increases Bitcoin’ s scarcity, which has, historically, increased its price. When Bitcoin
first started, 50 Bitcoins were rewarded to miners per block produced. The reward has decreased over the years and, the current
block reward is -3 . 25-125 Bitcoins per block. Halving events will continue until the block reward reaches zero. The process
will end with a predetermined total of 21 million Bitcoins being issued, estimated to be around the year 2140. At each prior
halving event, the short- term subsequent effect on the Bitcoin price has been an increase in price, however this trend may not
continue in the future, in which case, our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects may be materially
adversely affected. More significant reductions in aggregate hashrate on digital asset networks could result in material, though
temporary, delays in block solution confirmation time. Any reduction in confidence in the confirmation process or aggregate
hashrate of any digital asset network may negatively impact the value of digital assets, which will adversely impact our
business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects. The impact of the Bitcoin halving, which took place in
April 2024 has introduced uncertainly that could materially impact our self- mining revenue or our colocation services
customers businesses. The Bitcoin block reward halved on April 19, 2024, reducing the number of Bitcoins earned for
each block mined from 6. 25 to 3. 125. If the Bitcoin price does not appreciate sufficiently to offset this 50 % reduction in



mining rewards, our and / or our colocation services customers revenues, cash flows, and operating results could be
materially and adversely impacted. There can be no assurance that the market price of Bitcoin will increase in the near
term nor that our operating costs will decrease proportionally to mitigate the halving’ s adverse impact on our self-
mining profitability. As a result, the halving has introduced significant uncertainty to our near- term financial prospects
and could require us to modify our operating plans and growth strategies. inereasing-Increasing nctwork difficulty, plays a
crucial role in determining the profitability of Digital Assets and Bitcoin mining. Essentially, network difficulty refers to the
degree of effort required to solve the mathematical problems that validate transactions on the Bitcoin network. For
eryptoeurrenetes-digital assets that use a Proof- of- Work (PoW) validation system such as Bitcoin, creating new
eryptoeurrenetes-digital assets involves “ miners ” using their computers to solve complex mathematical puzzles. In the case of
Bitcoin, miners’ computers, also called nodes, collect and bundle individual transactions into blocks every ten minutes, which is
the fixed ““ block time ” of Bitcoin. The computers then compete to solve a complex cryptographic puzzle to be the first to
validate the new block for the blockchain. As a eryptoetrreney-digital assets like Bitcoin becomes more popular, the number of
computers participating in this peer- to- peer validation network increases. With more participants and more computing power,
the so- called “ hashpower ” of the entire network increases accordingly. The higher the network difficulty, the more
challenging it is to mine new Bitcoins. As a result, mining profitability is directly impacted by changes in difficulty levels.
There are several other factors that can influence network difficulty, such as: 1. Network difficulty adjustments: The Bitcoin
network adjusts difficulty every 2016 blocks or approximately every two weeks. The adjustment is based on the total network
hash rate, which is the measure of computing power being used to mine on the network. If the hashing power on the network
increases, the difficulty level also increases to maintain a consistent rate of new blocks being added to the blockchain.
Conversely, if the hashing power decreases, the difficulty level decreases as well. This means that the profitability of mining can
be impacted by changes in the number of miners on the network. 2. Block time: As mentioned earlier, the target block time for
Bitcoin is 10 minutes. If blocks are being generated too quickly, the difficulty level will increase to slow down the rate of block
creation. Conversely, if blocks are being generated too slowly, the difficulty level will decrease to speed up the rate of block
creation. 3. Hardware efficiency: The efficiency of mining hardware can have a significant impact on mining difficulty. More
efficient hardware can mine more hashes per second, which increases the hash rate and can cause the difficulty level to rise. 4.
Electricity costs: Mining requires a lot of electricity, and the cost of electricity can have a significant impact on mining
difficulty. If electricity costs are high, miners may need to shut down their operations or switch to more efficient hardware to
remain profitable. 5. Market conditions: The price of Bitcoin can have a significant impact on mining difficulty. If the price of
Bitcoin increases, more miners may join the network, causing the hash rate to increase and the difficulty level to rise.
Conversely, if the price of Bitcoin decreases, some miners may exit the network, causing the hash rate to drop and the difficulty
level to decrease. 6. Fhe-Halving: Bitcoin undergoes a halving event roughly every four years, where the reward for mining a
new block is cut in half. This means that miners need to mine twice as many blocks to earn the same amount of biteeirrBitcoin .
This can lead to a drop in hashrate hashrate-, as some miners may find it less profitable to continue mining. An increase in
transaction fees could reduce the price of digital assets. If fees increase for recording transactions on the Bitcoin network,
demand for eryptoeurrenetes-digital assets may decrease and prevent the expansion of the network to retail merchants and
commercial businesses, resulting in a reduction in the price of digital assets that could adversely affect our business, financial
condition, results of operations and prospects. Eryptoenrreney-Digital assets firms may be forced to sell their Bitcoin or
eryptoeurreney-digital assets holdings putting downward pressure on the Bitcoin price. A professionalized mining operation
may be more likely to sell a higher percentage of its newly mined digital assets rapidly if it is operating at a low profit margin. In
a low profit margin environment, a higher percentage could be sold into the digital asset exchange market more rapidly, thereby
potentially reducing digital asset prices. Lower digital asset prices could result in further tightening of profit margins,
particularly for mining operations with higher costs and more limited capital reserves, creating a network effect that may further
reduce the price of digital assets until mining operations with higher operating costs become unprofitable and remove mining
power from the respective digital asset network. The network effect of reduced profit margins resulting in greater sales of newly
mined digital assets could result in a reduction in the price of digital assets that could adversely impact our business, financial
condition, results of operations and prospects. To the extent that the digital asset exchanges / custodians representing a
substantial portion of the volume in digital asset trading are involved in fraud or experience security failures or other operational
issues, such digital asset exchanges / custodians’ failures may result in a reduction in the price of some or all digital assets and
can adversely affect us. The digital asset exchanges / custodians on which the digital assets trade are relatively new (compared
to actors in traditional financial services) and, in most cases, largely unregulated, or subject to little oversight. Furthermore,
many digital asset exchanges / custodians (including several of the most prominent USD denominated digital asset exchanges)
do not provide the public with significant information regarding their ownership structure, management teams, corporate
practices or regulatory compliance. As a result, the marketplace may lose confidence in, or may experience problems relating to,
digital asset exchanges / custodians, including prominent exchanges / custodians handling a significant portion of the volume of
digital asset trading. A lack of stability in the digital asset exchange market and the closure or temporary shutdown of digital
asset exchanges due to fraud, business failure, hackers or malware, or government- mandated regulation may reduce confidence
in the digital asset networks and result in greater volatility in digital asset values. These potential consequences of a digital asset
exchange’ s failure could materially adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects. The
further development and acceptance of digital asset networks and other digital assets, which represent a new and rapidly
changing industry, are subject to a variety of factors that are difficult to evaluate. The slowing or stopping of the development or
acceptance of digital asset systems may adversely affect us. Currently, there is relatively small use of Bitcoins and other
eryptoeurrenetes-digital assets in the retail and commercial marketplace in comparison to relatively large use by speculators,
thus contributing to price volatility that could adversely affect an investment in us. €ryptoeurreneies-Digital assets arc a



relatively new concept and asset class, so there is still some degree of uncertainty and skepticism about their use. Whether their
popularity will gain further traction is difficult to predict. If the popularity and use of eryptoeurrenetes-digital assets diminish
and leads to their value decreasing, our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects may be materially
adversely affected. Future digital assets and digital currency development may lessen the usage of Bitcoin. Digital asset
technology is evolving, and new digital assets can be created. New digital assets competing with Bitcoin may increase in
popularity and in turn cause a decline in the value of Bitcoin, which may in turn lead to a decline in the Bitcoin network and our
ability to generate revenue from our current mining activities. This may include the development of so- called central bank
digital currencies ( “ CBCDs ” ). Many governments around the world, and central banks are reportedly considering or studying
the potential for CBCDs, including the United States Federal Reserve. The development of quantum computing threatens the
cryptographic protections of blockchain protocols. Governments and corporations around the world are conducting research and
development to produce quantum computers which will be much more powerful than modern computers. The potential
capability of quantum computers poses a potential threat to the underlying cryptographic protections that the Bitcoin blockchain
protocol relies on, and therefore to the reliability of the blockchain, and may therefore undermine users’ trust in Bitcoin and
digital currencies in general. For example, a quantum computer may provide the possibility of decrypting user private keys and
forging transaction signatures, undermining the integrity of the blockchain. A loss of trust in the digital currencies due to the
ability of quantum computing to undermine security protocols will likely have a material adverse effect on our business, results

oirthe-environment—We are subject to a highly- evolving regulatory landscape and any adverse changes to,or our failure to
comply with,any laws and regulations could adversely affect our business,reputation,prospects or operations.Obtaining and
complying with required government permits and approvals may be time- consuming and costly.We are required to obtain,and to
comply with,numerous permits and licenses from federal,state and local governmental agencies.The process of obtaining and
renewing necessary permits and licenses can be lengthy and complex,requiring up to months or years for approval depending on
the nature of the permit or license and such process could be further complicated or extended in the event regulations change.In
addition,obtaining such permit or license can sometimes result in the establishment of conditions that create a significant
ongoing impact to the nature or costs of operations or even make the project or activity for which the permit or license was
sought unprofitable or otherwise unattractive.In addition,such permits or licenses may be subject to denial,revocation or
modification under various circumstances.Failure to obtain or comply with the conditions of permits or licenses,or failure to
comply with applicable laws or regulations,may result in the delay or temporary suspension of our operations and electricity
sales or the curtailment of our delivery of electricity to our customers and may subject us to penalties and other
sanctions.Although various regulators routinely renew existing permits and licenses,renewal of our existing permits or licenses
could be denied or jeopardized by various factors,including failure to provide adequate financial assurance for closure,failure to
comply with environmental,health and safety laws and regulations or permit conditions,local community,political or other
opposition and executive,legislative or regulatory action.Our inability to procure and comply with the permits and licenses
required for these operations,or the cost to us of such procurement or compliance,could have a material adverse effect on us.In
addition,new environmental legislation or regulations,if enacted,or changed interpretations of existing laws,may cause activities
at our facilities to need to be changed to avoid violating applicable laws and regulations or eliciting claims that historical
activities at our facilities violated applicable laws and regulations.In addition to the possible imposition of fines in the case of
any such violations,we may be required to undertake significant capital investments and obtain additional operating
permits or licenses,which could have a material adverse effect on us. Digital assets such as Bitcoin are likely to be more
highly regulated. Digital assets and-eryptoeutrenetes-have been subject to ongoing scrutiny by regulators and government. It is
possible that regulation in the digital asset industry will increase. We cannot be certain of future regulatory developments or
interpretations, and it is difficult to list or describe all the risks that Mawson may be subject to in this space. In addition,
regulatory actions, as well as any other political developments in the regions with active eryptoeurreney-digital assets trading or
mining, may increase our domestic competition as some of those eryptoeurreney-digital assets miners or new entrants in this
market may move their eryptoeurreney-digital assets mining operations or establishing new operations in the United States.
Furthermore, government scrutiny related to restrictions on eryptoentreney-digital assets mining facilities and their energy
consumption has increased over the past few years as eryptoenrreney-digital assets mining has become more widespread. The
consumption of electricity by mining operators may also have a negative environmental impact, including contribution to
climate change, which could set the public opinion against allowing the use of electricity for biteoirrBitcoin mining activities or
create a negative consumer sentiment and perception of biteeinrBitcoin . State and federal regulators are increasingly focused on
the energy and environmental impact of biteeirrBitcoin mining activities. Additionally, if the regulatory and economic
environment in Pennsylvania and Ohio were to become less favorable to biteoirrBitcoin mining and hosting companies,
including by way of increased taxes, means our business, financial condition and results of operations could be adversely
affected. Bitcoin and Bitcoin mining are presently legal in the U. S.; however, they may become illegal in the future, or subject
to regulation (such as caps, taxes or licensing regimes). Regulatory changes or interpretations could cause us (or any of our
related entities) to register and comply with new regulations, resulting in potentially extraordinary, recurring or non- recurring
expenses to continuing our digital assets business, or entering into new business ventures. We may not be able to timely and
effectively implement controls and procedures required by Section 404 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002. We are required to
comply with certain provisions of Section 404 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002 ( the “ Sarbanes- Oxley Act ™). Section 404
requires that our management maintain a system of internal control over financial reporting that provides reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. It also requires that our management annually evaluate whether our internal



control over financial reporting is effective at providing reasonable assurance and to disclose its assessment to investors. Our
management conducted an assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2623-2024 , based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“ COSO ). As a result of this assessment, management identified material
weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting as described in Item 9A. *“ Controls and Procedures . As a result of
the material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting, the Company’ s management has concluded that, as
December 31, 2623-2024 , the Company’ s internal control over financial reporting was not effective based on the criteria in
Internal Control - lntegrated F rarnework 1ssued by COSO In addltlon, whlle Mawson continues may-netbe-able-to work on

f-, as a smaller reporting
company and non- accelerated ﬁler we are not subject to the auditor attestation requrrements of Sectron 404 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act. However, as we grow, we may become subject to the auditor attestation requirements of Section 404 of the
Sarbanes- Oxley Act. If we fail to comply with the requirements of Section 404 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act, the accuracy and
timeliness of the filing of our annual and quarterly reports may be materially adversely affected and could cause investors to
lose conﬁdence in our reported financial 1nf0rmatron whrch could have a negatrve effect on the tradlng prrce of our Comrnon

fesa-l-ts—e%epef&&eﬁs—aﬁd—ﬁnaﬁeiﬁ-l—eﬂﬂdﬁteﬁ- Future developments regardrng the treatment of drgrtal assets for U S. federal

income and foreign tax purposes could adversely impact our business. Globally, many taxation laws, rules and guidelines have
not been developed with digital assets er-eryptoeurreneies-in focus. For example, many significant aspects of the U. S. federal
income and foreign tax treatment of transactions involving digital assets are uncertain, and it is unclear what guidance may be
issued in the future on the treatment of digital asset transactions for U. S. federal income and foreign tax purposes. There can be
no assurance that the IRS or other foreign tax authorities will not alter their position or introduce new laws, regulations or
guidance with respect to digital assets. Any such alteration of existing IRS and other foreign tax authority positions or additional
guidance regarding digital asset products and transactions could result in adverse tax consequences for our business and could
have an adverse effect on the value of digital asset and the broader digital assets markets. In addition, the IRS and other foreign
tax authorities may disagree with tax positions that we have taken, which could result in increased tax liabilities. Future
technological and operational developments that may arise with respect to digital currencies may increase the uncertainty with
respect to the treatment of digital currencies for U. S. federal income and foreign tax purposes. Another example of an adverse
ruling would be if we were classified as a passive foreign investment company (a “ PFIC ”) for any taxable year. Based on the
current and anticipated composition of our income, assets and operations, and our business generally, we do not expect to be
treated as a PFIC for the current taxable year or in the foreseeable future. The application of the PFIC rules to digital assets and
transactions related thereto is subject to uncertainty. There can be no assurance that Mawson will not be classified as a PFIC for
the current taxable year or for any future taxable year. If Mawson is considered a PFIC then there may be negative tax
consequences for U. S. holders of our ordinary shares, as well as being subject to annual information reporting requirements. U.
S. holders may wish to consult their tax advisors about the potential application of the PFIC rules to an investment in our
ordinary shares. Regulatory intervention by governments could affect the right to acquire, own, hold, sell, exchange or use
Bitcoin or other eryptoeurrenetes-digital assets . Governments have and may take regulatory actions to restrict the right to
acquire, own, hold, sell, exchange or use Bitcoin or other eryptoeurrenetes-digital assets . For example, it may be, or may
become, illegal to accept payment in Bitcoin for consumer transactions and banking institutions could be barred from accepting
deposits of erypteeurrenetes-digital assets . Such restrictions would have a negative effect on the value and price of Bitcoin. On
the other hand, some governments could decide to subsidize or support certain Bitcoin mining projects, thus adding hash rate to
the overall network, and having a material adverse effect on the amount of Bitcoin we may be able to mine, the value of Bitcoin
and, consequently, our business, prospects, financial condition and operating results. Additional legislation or guidance may be
issued by U. S. and non- U. S. governing bodies that may differ significantly from our practices or interpretation of the law,
which could have unforeseen effects on our financial condition and results of operations. As eryptoetrrenetes-digital assets
have grown in both popularity and market size, governments around the world have reacted differently to eryptoenrrenetes
digital assets ; certain governments have deemed them illegal, and others have allowed their use and trade without restriction,
while in some jurisdictions, such as in the United States, subject the mining, ownership and exchange of eryptoeurreneies
digital assets to extensive, and in some cases overlapping, unclear and evolving regulatory requirements. We are subject to
various federal, state, and local laws and regulations, including those relating to the generation of power, noise, storage,
handling, and disposal of hazardous substances and wastes. Certain of these laws and regulations also impose joint and several
liability, without regard to fault, for investigation and cleanup costs on current and former owners and operators of real property
and persons who have disposed of or released hazardous substances into the environment. Electricity costs could also be
affected due to existing or new regulations on greenhouse gas emissions, whether such regulations apply to all consumers of
electricity or just to specified uses, such as Bitcoin mining. These regulations may be federal, state or local. There has been
interest in the U. S. federal government and in some state governments in addressing climate change, including through
regulation of Bitcoin mining. Past policy proposals to address climate change include measures ranging from taxes on carbon
use or generation to energy consumption disclosure regimes to federally imposed limits on greenhouse gas emissions or energy



use restrictions specific to Bitcoin mining. It is unclear how any such future legislation and regulation will affect our
Pennsylvania and Ohio facilities. The course of future legislation and regulation in the United States remains difficult to predict,
and potential increased costs associated with new legislation or regulation cannot be estimated at this time. Given the difficulty
of predicting the outcomes of ongoing and future regulatory actions and legislative developments, it is possible that they could
have a material adverse effect on our business, prospects or operations. Legislative, regulatory, and litigation threats regarding
climate change and energy conservation could add significant burden, costs and reputational damage to our business .
Changing environmental regulatlon and public energy policy may expose our business to new risks. Our Bitcoin ee—loeation
colocation services and mining operations require a substantial amount of power and can only be successful, and ultimately
profitable, if the costs we incur, including for electricity, are lower than the revenue we generate from our operations. As a
result, our operations can only be successful if we can obtain sufficient electrical power for that mine on a cost- effective basis.
For instance, our plans and strategic initiatives for our Pennsylvania and Ohio facilities are based, in part, on our understanding
of current environmental and energy regulations, policies, and initiatives enacted by federal and state regulators. If new
regulations are imposed, or if existing regulations are modified, the assumptions we made underlying our plans and strategic
initiatives may be inaccurate, and we may incur additional costs to adapt our planned business, if we are able to adapt at all, to
such regulations. In addition, there continues to be a lack of consistent climate legislation, which creates economic and
regulatory uncertainty for our business because the eryptoeurreney-digital assets mining industry, with its high energy demand,
may become a target for future environmental and energy regulation. New legislation and increased regulation regarding climate
change could impose significant costs on us and our suppliers, including costs related to increased energy requirements, capital
equipment, environmental monitoring and reporting, and other costs to comply with such regulations. Further, any future climate
change regulations could also negatively impact our ability to compete with companies situated in areas not subject to such
limitations. Moreover, we currently participate in energy demand response programs to curtail operations, return capacity to the
electrical grid, and receive funds to offset foregone operational revenue when necessary, such as in extreme weather events.
Given the political significance and uncertainty around the impact of climate change and how it should be addressed, and energy
disclosure and use regulations, we cannot predict how legislation and regulation will affect our financial condition and results of
operations in the future in the United States and the states of Pennsylvania and Ohio. Further, even without such regulation,
increased awareness and any adverse publicity in the global marketplace about potential impacts on climate change or energy
use by us or other companies in our industry could harm our reputation. Any of the foregoing could result in a material adverse
effect on our business and financial condition. Changes to laws regarding the operation of Bitcoin mining and Bitcoin and
eryptoeurreney-digital assets exchanges by third parties may make the business model unsustainable and may lead to an
inability to exchange mined Bitcoin for fiat currency efficiently ;-or. Digital assets mining may be made illegal in certain
jurisdictions, including the ones we operate in, which could adversely affect our business prospects and operations. It is possible
that state or federal regulators may seek to impose harsh restrictions or total bans on eryptoentreney-digital assets mining which
may make it impossible for us to do business without relocating our ee—teeation-colocation and self- mining operations, which
could be very costly and time consuming. Further, although Bitcoin and Bitcoin mining, as well as eryptoeurrenetes-digital
assets generally, are largely unregulated in most countries (including the United States), regulators could undertake new or
intensify regulatory actions that could severely restrict the right to mine, acquire, own, hold, sell, or use eryptoetrreney-digital
assets or to exchange it for traditional fiat currency such as the United States Dollar. Such restrictions may adversely affect us as
the large- scale use of eryptoentrenetes-digital assets as a means of exchange is presently confined to certain regions globally.
Such circumstances could have a material adverse effect on us, which could have a material adverse effect on our business,
prospects, or operations and potentially the value of any Bitcoin or other eryptoetrrenetes-digital assets we or our ee—leeation
colocation customers mine, or otherwise acquire or hold, and thus harm investors. We are unable to predict the nature or extent
of new and proposed legislation and regulation affecting the eryptoeurreney-digital assets industry, or the potential impact of
the use of eryptoenrrenetes-digital assets , which could have material adverse effects on our business and our industry more
broadly. We may be subject to material litigation (including with our lenders and counter- parties counterparties), investigations,
or enforcement actions by regulators and governmental authorities that are expensive to support, and if resolved adversely, could
harm our business, revenue, and financial results. We have been the subject to certain claims, legal proceedings ( See-see Item 3.
“ Legal Proceedings seetion-” for more information about ongoing litigation ) and may be subject in the future to claims,
legal proceedings, government investigations or enforcement actions, including in the ordinary course of business. Agreements
entered into by Mawson sometimes include indemnification provisions which can subject Mawson to costs and damages in the
event of a claim against an indemnified third party. Regardless of the merit of particular claims, defending against litigation or
responding to government investigations can be expensive, time- consuming, disruptive to operations and distracting to
management. If Mawson is unable to successfully defend itself against such claims, then it may become liable to make
substantial payments to satisfy judgments, fines or penalties, or alter, delay, limit or cease some or all its business practices.
Mawson may alse suffer damage to our brand and reputation as a result of such adverse judgment . Because there has been
limited precedent set for financial accounting for biteeirrBitcoin and other eryptoentreney-digital assets, the determinations that
we have made for how to account for erypteeurreney-digital assets transactions may be subject to change. Because there has
been limited precedent set for the financial accounting for biteeinr-Bitcoin and other eryptoenrreney-digital assets and related
revenue recognition and no official guidance has yet been provided by the Financial Accounting Standards Board or the SEC, it
is unclear how companies may in the future be required to account for eryptoenrreney-digital assets transactions and-assets-and
related revenue recognition. A change in regulatory or financial accounting standards could result in the necessity to change the
accounting methods we currently intend to employ in respect of our anticipated revenues and assets and restate any financial
statements produced based on those methods. Such a restatement could adversely affect our business, prospects, financial
condition, and results of operation. Risks Relating to the Ownership of Our Common Stock and Other Risks If we fail to



comply with the continued listing standards of The Nasdaq Capital Market (“ Nasdaq ), we may be delisted and the
price of our Common Risks-Stock, our ability to access the capital markets and our financial condition could be
negatively impacted. Although our Common Stock is currently listed on Nasdaq, we may not be able to continue to meet
Nasdaq’ s minimum listing requirements, including, among others, maintaining a minimum closing bid price of $ 1. 00
per share pursuant to Nasdaq Listing Rule 5550 (a) (2) and a minimum Market Value of Listed Securities of $ 35. 0
million pursuant to Nasdaq Listing Rule 5550 (b). We have recently been notified by Nasdaq that we are out of
compliance with the minimum closing bid price and minimum Market Value of Listed Securities requirements as
further described in Note 15 — Subsequent Events to the consolidated financial statements included in Item 15. «
Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules ” in this Annual Report. If we are unable to regain compliance and maintain
listing on Nasdaq and Nasdaq delists our securities from trading on its exchange, we and our stockholders could face
significant negative consequences including: reducing the liquidity and market price of our Common Stock; reducing the
number of investors willing to hold or acquire our Common Stock, which could negatively impact our ability to raise
equity financing; decreasing the amount of news and analyst coverage of the Company; and limiting our ability to issue
additional securities or obtain additional financing in the future. The trading price of our Common Stock is likely to
continue to be volatile. The trading price of our Common Stock has been highly volatile and could continue to be subject to wide
fluctuations in response to various factors, some of which are beyond our control. Our Common Stock has experienced
fluctuations due to market dynamics ;-and the Bitcoin downturn. The stock market in general, and the market for technology
companies in particular, has experienced extreme price and volume fluctuations that have often been unrelated or
disproportionate to the operating performance of those companies. Our Common Stock may be traded by short sellers, which
may put pressure on the supply and demand for our Common Stock, further influencing volatility in its market price. Public
perception of our company or management and other factors outside of our control may additionally impact Mawson’ s stock
price. Our financial results may vary significantly from period to period due to fluctuations in our revenue, operating costs and
other factors. We expect our period- to- period financial results to vary based on a variety of factors, which we anticipate will
fluctuate due to external factors such as the Bitcoin price and energy costs, may not be consistent or linear between periods. As a
result of these factors, quarter- to- quarter comparisons of our financial results may not be useful, and that these comparisons
cannot be relied upon as indicators of future performance. Moreover, our financial results may not meet the expectations of
equity research analysts, ratings agencies or investors, who may be focused only on short- term quarterly financial results. If any
of this occurs, the trading price of our stock could fall substantially, either suddenly or over time. We may fail to meet our
publicly announced guidance or other expectations about our business, which could cause our stock price to decline. We may
provide from time- to- time guidance regarding our expected financial and business performance. Correctly identifying key
factors affecting business conditions and predicting future events is inherently an uncertain process, and our guidance may not
ultimately be accurate and has in the past been inaccurate in certain respects, such as the timing of new exahash. Our guidance is
based on certain assumptions, and may vary from actual results, if our assumptions are not met or are impacted as a result of
various risks and uncertainties, the market value of our Common Stock could decline significantly. ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED
STAFF COMMENTS. Not applicable. ITEM 1C. CYBERSECURITY. Risk Management and Strategy We recognize the
importance of assessing, identifying, and managing risks associated with cybersecurity threats. Accordingly, we address these
risks by implementing and maintaining processes, and technologies designed to prevent, detect, and mitigate incidents that could
pose cybersecurity risk. We are equally subject to various cybersecurity risks that could adversely affect our business, financial
condition, and results of operations, including : intellectual property theft; fraud; extortion; harm to employees or customers;
interruption of business activities and activities of our customers 53 violation of privacy laws ; and-ether-litigation and legal risk;
and reputational risk. In adopting our risk assessment and management program, we are committed to safeguarding our systems
and data. We have implemented a risk- based approach, guided by Federal Information Processing Standards Publication 199, to
identify, classify, and appropriately assess the range of cybersecurity threats that could affect our business and information
systems. We also rely on information technology and third- party vendors to support our operations, including our secure
processing of personal, confidential, sensitive, proprietary, and other types of information. Our cybersecurity risk management
program is integrated into our overall enterprise risk management program, and shares common methodologies, reporting
channels, and governance processes that apply across the enterprise risk management program to other legal, compliance,
strategic, operational, and financial risk areas. Additionally, we monitor emerging laws, industry standards, and regulations
related to information security and data protection. Although we have not experienced any cybersecurity incidents or threats that
have materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect our business strategy, results of operations, or financial
condition to date, and though we are actively monitoring our networks and access points by implementing security updates
regularly, we cannot provide any assurance that there will not be incidents or threats in the future that may materially affect us,

mcludmg our bu%mei% %trategy, re%ult% of operatlonq or financial condltlon Pursuantto-ourtisk-managementpoley;

as—pess%b-}e—Our cybersecurlty p011c1e§ %tandards proceqsei and practices are regularly assessed —and :Phese-these assessments
incorporate various activities including information security assessments and independent reviews of our information security
control environment and operating effectiveness. We utilize managed detection and response systems, endpoint protection,
content filtering aimed at blocking malware and software to eliminate phishing, ransomware, and fraud. We also utilize multi-
factor authentication on all sensitive applications and information entry- points, review access to data regularly, and have
failover- protected business disaster recovery and backup storage systems. The Company conducts cybersecurity training and
testing programs regularly. Governance Pursuant to our risk management policy, responsibility for the implementation of



our risk management policy resides with the Chief Financial Officer. Management performs a periodic assessment (at
least annual) of compliance, financial, IT, and fraud risks. Responses are consolidated and reviewed with management
and the Audit Committee. The result of the risk assessment effort is leveraged to formalize management’ s operating
effectiveness testing plan for the next year. The Audit Committee receives an update on the Company’ s risk
management process, risk trends and any incidents at least annually from the management team. In the event of any
incident, the Company expects to notify the Audit Committee immediately, or as soon as possible. For additional
information regarding cybersecurity risks, see Item 1A “ Risk Factors. ” [TEM 2. PROPERTIES. Our principal place of
business is located at 950 Railroad Avenue, Midland, Pennsylvania 15059. We-have-thefeltewingleases:-The Company leases
8 6—acres of land in Midland, Pennsylvania, swhieh-beganin-Oetober-where one of our data center facilities is located. On
September 9, 26212024 for-thirty—six-menths-with, the Company entered into a lease amendment that extended the term
of the lease from September 14, 2024 to September 14, 2027. The lease provides the option to exercise feur-three additional
three- year extensions for an aggregate of 12 more years from date of the lease amendment . Effective May 24, 2023,
Mawson Bellefonte LLC entered into a lease agreement for a 9, 918 square foot developed mining facility in Bellefonte,
Pennsylvania. The term of the lease is for two years and seven months, with an option to extend for five years. On March 16,
2022, Luna Squares Property LLC entered into a lease with ILSDCCI toa plopuly m the C 1tv of Sharon, Mercer County,
Pennsylvania with Vertua Property, Inc. Fh S A years-each:
February 2, 2024 , the Sharenrlease was turmmatud by ﬁnd—as—e-ﬁM&feh—Z-e%l he €emp&ny—has—me¥ed—eefﬁp-}etel-yheﬁt—e%ﬂ%e
faetlity-landlord, whlch is currently in a legal dispute, and is currently in litigation . Effective May 1, 2023, Mawson Ohio
LLC took an assignment of a lease agreement for approximately 64, 600 square feet for an undeveloped site in Corning, Ohio.
The term of the lease is five forfeur-years, with an option to extend for five years. We do not own or lease any other land or
buildings. We believe that our existing facilities are suitable and adequate to meet our current business requirements. However,
Mawson is growing and, should we require additional or alternative facilities, we believe that such facilities can be obtained in
reasonable time frames at acceptable commercial rates. ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS. Wehave-beenrmadea-defendantAs
disclosed in Note 10 — Commitments and Contingencies to the consolidated financial statements included in Item 15.
Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules ” in this Annual Report we are engaged in certain legal pfeeeedmgs—wh-teh—m&y
have—e%h&ve—had—matters, and the dlsclosure set forth in th




t ; s-frof-time-to-tin i p 'ITEM4MINE
SAFETY DISC LOSURES Not appllcable PART [T ITEM 5. MARKET FOR RE(JlSTRANT S (OMMON EQUITY,
RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES. Market Information Our
Common Stock 7parvatue-$-0-0014-trades on The Nasdaq Stock Market LLC under the symbol “ MIGI . ” -Holders As of
March 26-3 , 2624-2025 , there were approximately H8-81 stockholders on record of our eemmen-Common steel-Stock . The
actual number of beneficial owners of our stock is greater than this number of record holders because there are beneficial
owners whose shares are held in street name by brokers and other nominees. Dividend Policy We have not paid any cash
dividends on our Common Stock and do not anticipate paying any cash dividends on our Common Stock in the foreseeable
future. We intend to retain future earnings to fund ongoing operations and future capital requirements of our business. Any
future determination to pay cash dividends will be at the discretion of our Board of Directors (“ Board ) and will be dependent
upon our financial condition, results of operatlons Cdpltdl 1equ1rements llmltatlons 1mposed by state laws and such other
factors as our Board deems relevant. ; e i a
Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds Bur—rﬁg—On September 11, 2024 the ye&r—eﬂéed-Company
entered into a Marketing Services Agreement (the “ MSA ”) with Outside The Box Capital Inc. (“ Box Capital )
pursuant to which Box Capital will provide certain marketing and distribution services to the Company for a six month
term in consideration for the payment of a fee of $ 100, 000 worth of restricted shares of the Company’ s Common Stock,
as approved by our Board. In accordance with the MSA, the Company issued 84, 746 restricted shares of Common Stock
to Box Capital on December 3417 , 2623-2024 ;-. Such issuance was exempt from there—- the were-ne-registration
requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “ Securities Act ”) pursuant to Section 4 (a) (2) of the
Securities Act and / or Rule 506 (b) of Regulation D promulgated thereunder because, among other unregistered-sates-of
otr-things, the transaction did not involve a public offering, Box Capital is an accredited investor, Box Capital is taking
the securities t-hat—wefe-for investment and not resale, and we took approprlate measures to restrict the transfer of the
securities 0 . Purchase of Equity Securities by
the Issuer and Aﬁlhdted Purchasers We did not Iepmchdse any securities in the fOLlIth quarter of the fiscal year covered by this
Annual Report. ITEM 6. [ RESERVED ] ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’ S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL
CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS. The following discussion of our financial condition and results of
operations for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-should be read in conjunction with our consolidated
financial statements and the notes to those statements that are included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10- K. This
discussion and analysis contain forward- looking statements that involve risks, uncertainties and assumptions. The actual results
may differ materially from those anticipated in these forward- looking statements as a result of certain factors, including, but not
limited to, those set forth under Item 1A “ Risk Factors ” and elsewhere in this Annual Report. AH-ameunts-Business overview
We are tn—U—a technology company focused on dlgltal 1nfrastructure platforms The -S—de-l-laﬁlﬁ-less-et-heﬁﬁse-st&ted-

dlgltal 1nfrastructure platforms for enterprlse customers and for da

feverse—steelesp-l-rt—e%m own purposes. The eutstand

s-a-digital 1ntmstructureeemp&ny—headquaftefed—'rﬂ—t-he

U-meed—StafesJPhe—Gemp&nyhhasﬁaruﬁ&ry—btmesses—platforms can be used to operate computing resources for a
number of appllcatlons, and are offered across Al, HPC d1g,1tal asseets eurreﬁey—n‘nﬂmg— ee-—lee&&eﬁ—dnd felated-seﬁiees—




program-through-management business, which utilizes software and analysis, to generate revenue when the Company
adapts it-its eanreeeivenet-operations to the real- time needs of the power grid. The Company also periodically transacts
in digital computational machines, data center infrastructure, and related equipment, subject to business and
commercial opportunities. The Company has a strategy to prioritize the usage of carbon- free cnergy benefits-inexehange
-fer—eufta-rl-rng—the—sources, 1nclud1ng nuclear energy, to pow er its dlgltal infrastructure platforms and computational
machines w y . The Company manages and As-efthe
da-te—e-ﬁtlﬂsﬂ%nﬂua-l—Repert—we-epera-te-operates two data center aulmu in Pennsylvania delivering a total current capacity
of approximately 129 megawatts (MW) and has an additional 24 MW of future capacity in Ohio that is under
development , BSA-all strategically located in locations served by the PJM Energy Market in the United States. The PJM
Energy Market is the largest wholesale power market in North America . The Company may-aise-transaet-previously had
interests in dig-rta-l—the Austrahan market however for strateglc and commercial reasons, the Company is eurreney
currently focused g : d ment-on advancing its interests in North America a
die-b ons-. The ( ompany currently designs;-develops;operates facilities in the
Umted States of Amerlca and does not have operatlng sites in Australia. For the Years Ended December 31, 2024 2023
Revenues: Digital colocation revenue $ 38, 546, 912 $ 16, 364, 767 Energy management revenue 7, 576, S53 5, 354, 272
Digital assets mining revenue 12, 591, 660 21, 590, 523 Equipment sales 550, 000 262, 158 Total revenues 59, 265, 125 43,
571, 720 Less: Cost of revenues (excluding depreciation) 38, 987, 911 28, 557, 004 Gross profit 20, 277, 214 15, 014, 716
Operating expenses: Selling, general and administrative 18, 313, 904 19, 177, 492 Stock based compensation 14, 064, 883
10, 834, 838 Depreciation and amortization 17, 877, 770 38, 080, 506 Change in fair value of derivative asset 1, 173, 104 7,
241, 883 Total operating expenses 51, 429, 661 75, 334, 719 Loss from operations (31, 152, 447) (60, 320, 003) Non-
operating income (expense): Total non- operating income (expense), net (14, 207, 770) 7, 723, 529 Loss before income
taxes (45, 360, 217) (52, 596, 474) Digital colocation revenue for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, were $ 38.
5 million and $ 16. 4 million, respectively. This represented and-- an manages-increase of $ 22. 1 million or a 136 % year-
over- year revenue increase. The increase in revenue was due to the Company expanding its number of digital colocation
customers, lncreasmg the number of machmes us1ng our dlgltal colocatlon 1nfrastructure serv1ces, and growmg its digital

inately-8-. 6 mllllon S—We-fe&paetﬁy—dm $5
eenﬁnues—te—be—used—eﬁ&re}y—fer—se}f-—mmmg-ptu?eses— Reeeﬂt—Beve}epmeﬁts—Gn—eefebeﬁﬁf mllhon respectlvely Th1s

-5 -1—2 2 mllhon Ge—mrnnﬁum—btd-pﬂee—reqturemeﬂt—fer— or
ed h-inNasds a 42 % year H2)(the~“BidPriee
Ruﬂ}e—)—}n—aeeefd&neeﬂv&fr&ﬂ@a*sdaq—hsﬁng—l%tdeé%@— over- year revenue 1ncrease 2+ 3)A)-the-Company-had-apertod-of
St . This increase is due to Fo-regaint
eemph&nee—t-he—e}esmg—lﬁd-pﬂee—e-ﬁl he ( ompam s enhanced energy management programs Gemmen—Stoelehad—meet—ef

whlch utlhzes software and analys1s to generate revenue when the C ompam feeewed—fefma-l—wrrtteﬂ—net-tee-adapts its
power usage to the real— time needs of the gr1d The revenue opportunlty from energy management N&Sd&q—lﬁd'te&tﬂ‘kg—t-h&f




iy ey parationApg rent-sh A e-18S by-th e Dwndleﬁrreﬂey—assets
mlnlng reventies— revenue from self- mmmg of bitcoin for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, were $ 12. 6

million and $ 21. 6 million, respectively. This represented a decrease of $ 9. 0 million or 42 % over the prior year period.
The decrease for the year ended December 31, 2023-2024 and2022-, was due to were-$21--59-millionand $43—H-millien
respeetively—Thisrepresented-a deerease-number of factors, including $24-—-52-millienror50-%-overthe prieryearperiod—The
deerease—rmpact of the Aprll 2024 halvmg event, and a hlgher global network dlfﬁculty rate in sef—mining reventefor

December 31 2024 compared to the same perlod in 2()2% and%@%%—remamed—re}atweb!-eeﬂsrﬁeﬂ-t—whlch led to lower
bitcoin production from self- mining . Buring-In the year ended December 31, 2623-2024 , the average-priee-Company also

significantly expanded and grew its digital colocation services business across multiple customers reallocating some of its
digital asset mining capacities. The Company believes its digital asset mining revenue may continue to fluctuate with
bitcoin pricing and market conditions was— as $28;-893-whereas-the averagepriee-ofbitcoin during-year-ended-Deeember3+;
industry works through the expected volatility inherently associated with bitcoin including the impact post the April 2622
2024 halving event was-$-28,205- Co—loeation-servieestrevente-Sales of digital mining equipment for the years ended
December 31,2024 and 2023 and2622-, were $ +6-0 . 36-6 million and S -1-3—0 34—3 mllllon 1cspcc11\ le This represented 2—3

%rye&ﬁever—yeaﬁnerease—was-due—te—dn mcrcasc-l-n—t-he—nttmbeﬁ) At

Mr&mg—bb&wh-te%re*ptred—eﬂﬁ*&gﬁs%—}% Net—eﬁerg-y—beﬁeﬁ-ts—Our overall revenue Ior the years cndcd Dcumbu 31
2024 and 2023 and2022-, were § 5-59 . 35-3 million and $ 43-43 . 76-6 million, respectively. This represented a-an deefease
increase of $ 8—15 35—7 mllllon ora 6{—36 % year- over- year revenue deerease-increase . Our cost This-deerease-is-dte-to

e g ; of tewerrevenues consists primarily of direct power
costs related to pﬂees—t-han—rn—Z-GQ—Z—Sa-}es—e-Pdwnal asset m1n1ng and colocation services and cost of mining equipment sold.
Cost of revenues for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-, were $ 39. 0 —26-million and $ +4-28 . 24-6
million, respectively. Operating-The increase in cost of revenues was primarily attributable to an increase in power costs
related to and-- an expenses-increase in energy used to operate the colocated equipment for our enterprise digital
colocation customers within our facilities. Our operating eests-and-cxpenses include : eestofreventes—selling, general and
administrative expenses; stock based compcnsduon chancc in fair value of derivative asscl and deICCldll()n and dmonuduon.

he i-Oetob ;e al-and-admintstrattve-Our scllm 1c1<11 and admmlsllall\c expenses consist
pnmdlllv 01 audlt legal, and other professional and-management-fees , re}a-t-'rng—te—cmplovcc compensation, director fees,
andittegal-equipment repairs; marketing; freight; insurance; consultant fees; lease amortization and general expenses. Selling,
general and administrative expenses for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2022-, were § 18. 3 million and $
19 2 -l-8—n‘1-rl-l-teﬁ—aﬂd—$£§—8§—mllllon lLSpCCII\ le TOldl scllmg QCHLIJI and administrative c\pcnscs Were—}ewer—by—$-6—67-
miHionn 55 etors-eontributing-to-the-deerease r-the-expenses W Jecreased
by $ 0 5149 million —eeﬁSﬂ'l-t-&ﬁt—feeS—t-h&t—ln 2024 The deereased» decrease by—was prlmarlly due decreases in rent and
equipment rental of $ 0. —7—3—9 mllllon each markctnm of $ 0 4 mllhon, and property costs t-hat—deereased—of $ 0 3 million,
partially offset by € y
deereased—by—lncrease in overall employee and personnel compensatlon of S 2.36-0 mllllon Fas-a-result-ofthe-eostreduetion
actions-that-the-Company had-undertaken-during 2023~ -Steelebased—eempens&t—ren—%tom based compensation expenses for the
years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2022-, were $ +6-14 . 83-1 million and $ 10. 8 million, respectively. The
increase was primarily due to an increase in stock- based compensation related to service- based restricted stock awards
of $ 5. 3 —6+-million as a result of an increase in awards issued of 6. 4 million shares, partially offset by a decrease in




stock- based compensation related to stock warrants / options of $ 1. 8 million as a result of a decrease in stock warrants /
options issued of 3. 0 million shares. Depreciation consists primarily of depreciation of digital asset mining hardware and
MDC equipment. Depreciation and amortization for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, were $ 17. 9 million
and $ 38. 1 million . respectively. #+-The lower depreciation and amortization expense is the result of an increased
number of the Company’ s dlgltal asset mining hardware belng fully depreclated during 2023 and 2024, and a lower
number of dlgltal asset miners belng acqulred durlng th

ear cndcd Dcumbu 31, 2623-2024 stoek-based-compensation

met-hed—frem—t-ha—t—d&te—@h&nge—m—[dn value of the derivative asset -Bﬂﬂﬂg—the—ye&rs—eﬁéedd%eeﬁ‘rber%&%@%—&ﬂd%@%%—there
was-atoss-on-the-fairvalue-of the-derivative-assetby-$ 1. 2 million and $ 7. 2 24-mitlienand-again-of$3H-—30-million,
respectively, in relation to our power supply arrangements. The change in fair value between December 31, 2023 and
December 31, 2024 is primarily due to one less year remaining on the derivative asset as of December 31, 2024 and a
reduction of approximately 5 % in the forward market prices between 2024 and 2025. Non- operating expense was $ 14.
2 million for the year ended December 31, 2024, compared to non- operating income of $ 7. 7 million for the year ended
December 31 2023. The expense for 2024 was prlmarlly attrlbuted to the 0ss on deconsohdatlon the—derwat—we—asset—rn—t-he

agreement-. 4 million and Nex

million , tesses-partially offset by galn on [omon currency transactions of $1.0 mllhon The income for 2023 was prlmarlly
attributed to the gain on deconsolidation of $ 9. 5 million, profit from the sale of site of $ 3. 4 million, and gain on sale of
marketable securltles of $ 1.4 mllhon, partlally offset by interest expense of $ 3.0 mllhon lmpaumcnl of financial assets 5

%GQ—Z—the—re&hzed—aﬁd-&nrea-hfed—loxs on lmuon currency transactions Was—of % 9’-4-7 million and-. Durlng the year ended
December 31, 2024, we recorded a net loss on deconsolidation of $ 6-12 . 674 million srespeetively-relating to the
liquidation and deconsolidation of MIG No . Thismeventent-1, Mawson AU, and Mawson PL. During the year ended
December 31, 2023, we recorded a gain on deconsolidation of $ 9. 5 million relating to the liquidation and
deconsolidation of Mawson PL. The deconsolidation gain and loss recorded were the result of removing the net assets
and certain liabilities of the various subsidiaries from the consolidated financial statements. During the year ended
December 31, 2024, we recorded a gain on foreign currency transactions of $ 1. 0 million, compared to a loss on foreign
currency transactions of $ 1. 7 million for the year ended December 31 2023 The change was duc to the movement
change in [omon exchange rates. Durlng Not e p y 38

the—ye&rs— year cndul Dcccmbu 71 2023 aﬁd—2-92—2— yrere-we recorded proﬁt from the sale of site of § 3. 35-4 million and-,
of which $ 82 . 286 million —respeetwel-y—’Phe—Z—GQ%—amet&rts—re}ated-relates to Ilc sdlc of hc Luna Squares Texas LLC along

with 59 transformers —Wh

2022 ~were-$1—44-mithon-and $ ( —respeefwel-y— fPhe—garn—S mllhon relates to sale of the Georgla site. d&rmg—Durlng lhc
year ended December 31, 2023 was-inrelation-, we recorded gain on sale of marketable securities of $ 1. 4 million, which is
related to the sale of CleanSpark, Inc shares. During the year ended December 31, 2023, the Company recognized an

1mpa1rment a—deeeﬂsohdat-reﬂ—gam—\ $ 9—1 47—8 million —’Phrs—g&m—was—as—a—resc&t—ef—k‘fawseﬁ—for the equlty accounted

Mcdsulcx The Company reports all ﬂtﬁtzes-a—ntua‘rbefe%dfffereﬁt— inancial measares—bet-h—mformatlon requlred in
accordance w1th generally accepted accountlng prlnclples in the Unlted States of Amerlca (“ GAAP ”) and—neﬁ-GA—AP—m




pertods-. The Company eenstders-the-tse-ofbelieves, however, that evaluating its ongoing operating results will be
enhanced if it also discloses certain non- GAAP 1nformatlon Ad]usted EBITDA, whlch is a non- GAAP financial measures

- measure, helpfulin-assessing-tts— is defined by €
-future—\‘olhrle—the C ompany uses—neﬁ—GA—AP—ﬁﬂaneial—measures—ds net loss plus a—teel—te—eﬂh&nee—rts—tmderst&ndmg—e-ﬁeeﬁam

-rntefes{—mcome tax, dep1ec1dt1on —and amortization , further adjusted by impairment of ﬁnancnal assets, net loss of equity
method investments . stock based compensation , loss on foreign currency, other non- operatlng 1ncome and expeﬁse
expenses change in fair value of derivative asset, fair value tmpairm 9

net-loss on efeguity-method-investments, and gain on deconsolldat]onaﬂd—eeﬁam—neﬂ—reeurmrg—e*peﬂses— We—beheve—t-haf
adjus’fed-AdJusted EBITDA ts—usefu-l—should not be con51dered an alternatlve to net income investors-eomparing-our

g v ne-, operating income, net cash provided by ornon-

feeurring—g&ins—eﬂesses-erexpeﬂseﬁmrelafeﬁe-opemtlm activ mes or any would-otherwise-mask-the-other measure of
financial Cempany—s-operating-performance or liquidity presented in accordance with GAAP. Adjusted EBITDA may
have material limitations as a performance measure because it excludes items that are necessary elements of our costs
and operations. In addition, Adjusted EBITDA presented by other companies may not be comparable to our
presentation, since each company may define these terms differently. The table below reconciles Adjusted EBITDA,
which is a non- GAAP financial measure, to net loss . For the Years Ended December 31, 2024 2023 (unaudited) 2622
Reeenethationofnon—GAAPadjusted EBIFDA=Net loss: § (46, 336, 787) $ (58, 545, 093 3$54,-635;-559-) Impairment of
financial assets - 1, 837, 063 3;3%5;236-Share of net loss of equity method investments - 36, 356 +5254;-825-Depreciation and
amortization 17, 877, 770 38, 080, 506 63;260;3+78-Stock based compensation 14, 064, 883 10, 834, 838 (Gain) loss 3;-642;
486-Fesses-on foreign currency transactions ( 1, 009, 223) 1, 738, 845 6;673;+24-Other non- operating income ( 364, 382) (
517, 918 H2Z464-555-) Other non- operating expenses 3, 137, 278 3, 445, 461 F-624;435-Change in fair value of derivative

asset 1, 173, 104 7, 241, 883 (H5299-9H)Fair-valuetoss-eninvestments—H5-694;388-Income tax 976, 570 5, 948, 619 —Loss (
Ga-rn—galn ) on deconsolldat]on 12 444, 097 (9, 477 976) rAdJusted EBITDA (non (JAAP) $ 1 963 310 b 627, 584 $49;

fneﬂ—G%n%P)—$—698—399—$—l—7—595—8-15—L1qu1dltv and ( dpltdl Resouues qumdlty is the ablllty of a compdny to Lenemte funds

to support its current and future operations, satisfy its obligations, and otherwise operate on an ongoing basis. Significant factors
in the management of liquidity are funds generated by operations, levels of accounts receivable and accounts payable and
capital expenditures. For the year ended December 31, 2023-2024 , we financed our operations primarily through net positive -

-l—Net—cash used—rn—ﬂow prov1ded by opemtmg dCtl\ mes e%%é—ﬁnHmnﬁ—@ﬁ—Sepferﬁber—Zﬁ@%Mawserh%U—eﬂfered—uﬁe

mfermation—3-. On May 27, 2022, the ( ompany enteled into an At the Market Oﬁelmg Aﬂleement (the ATM A;:reement )
with H. C. Wainwright & Co., LL( (““ Wainwright ), and filed a prospectus supplement, to sell shares of our Common Stock
through an “ at the market oﬁelmg ” p10gram as defined in Rule 415 p1omulgdted under the Securities Acte-l‘—l—%%—as—&ﬂ&eﬁeled-

Durmo the year ended Decembe1 31,2023, 41 5 271 shares were 1ssued as—part—e—ﬁln accordance with the ATM Agreement f01
cash proceeds of $ 1. $9-2 million, net of issuance costs. Effective September 6 AH-ofthese-shares-weresold-priorto-May3-,



2023-2024 ~when;in-eonnee t the Company terminated the entered-a
eeﬂtfaetuai—restﬂe&eﬂ—freﬁﬁssﬁmg—aﬂ-yhsteeietmder—rts—ATM A;:reement w1th Walnwrlght wntiHNevember7;2623- On

shel-%ru-ies—4—9ﬂ—May—3—29%3— the ( ompany enteled into a deﬁmt-rve—Sales agfeemeﬁt—Agreement (the “ Sales Agreement
”) with institationaHnvestors-for-Roth Capital Partners, LLC ( the 1sstanee- Lead Agent ) and A. G. P./ Alliance Global

Partners (collectively with the Lead Agent, the “ Agents ” and individually and-- an sale-of2-“ Agent ”) , to sell 683;336
shares of #s-our eemmoen-Common steek-Stock ( er-the “ Shares ”), having an aggregate sales pre-price —funded-warrants-of
up to $ 12 million, from time to time, through an “ at the market offering ” program under which the Agents will act as
sales agent. The sales, if any, of the Shares made under the Sales Agreement will be made by any method permitted by
law deemed to be an “ at the market offerlng ” as deﬁned n Rule 415 promulgated under i-teu—t-hereeﬂ—&t—a—pttrehase—pﬂee

M&fsh&H—&ﬂd—“LG&ptta-lﬁdﬂsefs—Pt-y—I:td— We belle\ € our near- term w orkm(r capltal 1equnements will Contmue to be iunded

through a combination of the cash we expect to generate from future operations, our existing funds, external debt facilities that
may be available to us, further-future issuances of shares, and other potential sources of capital, monetization , or funds. We
believe a combination of These-these opportunities arc expected to be adequate to fund our long- term operations needed
over the next twelve months. For our business te-grew-growth , it is expected ;-we may continue investing in mining-expanding
our infrastructure, expanding and / or upgrading our infrastructure and / or other ecquipment and-infrastraetare-and will
require additional working capital in the short- term and long- term. As of December 31, 2023-2024 , we had an aggregate of §
49-20 . 35-9 million of debt , all of which $36-8Fmiltten-is overdue for repayment and-the-remaining-is-al-required-to-be
fepatd—Wtﬂﬂrrhﬁe—meﬂfhs—e%BeeembeHHO%—unless we refinance , renegotiate the terms, or renegotiate-the-terms-prevail
in our disputes and / or related claims and / or counterclaims . In dddlthIl. the Celsius deposit of $ 15. 33-3 million is the
subject of an ongoing legal dispute in arbitration with Mawson and Celsius having claims and counterclaims. We will need
to raise substantial additional capital to continue our operations, execute our business strategy and meet our debt service
obligations. We may not be able to raise adequate capital on a timely basis, on favorable terms, or at all. Our inability to
raise sufficient capital would have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and business . Working Capital and
Cash Flows As of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2022-, we had a cash and cash equivalent balance of § 6. 1 million and $ 4.
5 48-million-and-$-0-95-million, respectively. The Company expects to continue to focus on improving its cash flows through a
number of various activities thatshould-betterposition-our-future-eash-position-. As of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-,
the trade receivables balance was $ 15. 2 million and $ 12. 1 H-mitherand-$10-46-million, respectively. As of December 31,
2024 and 2023, we had $ 20. 9 million and $ 19. 354 million , respectively, of outstanding shert—termrberrowings; and-as-of
Deeember 3152022 wehad-$ 236+ millienefshort- term bmrowmes The short- term borrowings as of December 31, 2623
2024 , relate to Celsius Mining LLC, W Capital Advisors Pty Ltd, the secured convertible promissory notes issued to investors
and Marshall Investments MIG Pty Ltd (these loans are currently in default, refer to Material Cash Requirements section below
for more inibrmation) As of Deeember 31,2024 and 2()2% aﬂd%@%%—we—had%-e-&nd%—HJ—m&heﬁ—respeetwel-y—ef
dinngte -botre 8 At , we had negative working capital of § 35. 9 million

and $ 33. 2 -l-8—n‘1-ﬂ-l-ieﬁ—aﬂd—$—lé—l—7—mllllon 1espect1\ ely The iollou ing tdble presents the major components of net cash flows
(used in) provided by operating, investing and imdncme activities i01 the yedls ending Decembel 31 2024 and 2023 &nd—?&GQ—Z—
Year-Years Ended December 31, 2024 2023 Net-ea P epera e 6 6

294-Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities $ 3, 562 603 $ (2 545 664) Net cash (used 1n) pr0v1ded by inv estme
activities $ (1, 119, 038) $ 10, 741, 617 $32,-546,422)-Net cash €used in yprevidedby-financing activities $ ( 830, 067) $ (4,
647, 279)-$—1—3—9—86—496—F0r the year ended December 21 %92—3—2024 ﬂet—eash—used—byeperaﬁﬂg—aetwrﬁes—waﬁ%é—mﬂheﬂ

cash prov 1ded by opemtmg activ mes was pruﬁ&ﬂ-}y—attﬂbutab-ie—te—trﬁﬁﬁg—di-ffefertees—$ 3. 6 mlllion and for the year ended
December 31, 2023, net cash used in trade-and-operating activities was $ 2. 5 million. We had a net loss of $ 46. 3 million

for other—- the reeeivables-year ended December 31, 2024, which included $ 17. 9 million of depreciation and trade
amortization expense, $ 14. 1 million of stock based compensation, $ 13. 0 million of loss on deconsolidation, and $ 3. 1
million of non- cash interest expense. We had a net loss of $ 58. 5 million for other—-- the payables-year ended December
31, 2023, which included $ 38. 1 million of depreciation and amortization expense, $ 10. 8 million of stock based
compensation, $ 9. S million of gain on deconsolidation, and $ 7. 2 million of unrealized loss on derivative asset . For the
year ended December 31, 2024, net cash used in investing activities was $ 1. 1 million and for the year ended December 31,
2023, net cash provided by investing activities was $ 10. #4-7 million . Net and-for-the-yearended-Deeember3+2022net-cash
used in investing activities for the year ended December 31, 2024 was due to capital expenditures of $ 32-2 . 54-0 million
partially offset by proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment of $ 0 . The-net-8 million. Net cash provided by



investing activities during the year ended December 31, 2023, was primarily attributable to the proceeds from the sale of the
substétary-Luna Squares Texas LLC and the 59 transformers of $ 9. 2 million , as well as the proceeds from the sale of shares in
CleanSpark, Inc of $ 6. 9 million, partially offset by capital expenditures of $ 5. 4 million . For the year-years ended
December 31, 2024 and 2023, net cash used in 1‘1nane1ng dCtl\ 1t1es was ‘{> 0. 8 million and $ 4. 65-6 million and-for-the-year
h-provid o . 99-milhien, respectively . The-Net cash used in
fmdncme aem ities dttﬂ-ng—for the year ended December 3 1, 2024 was due to loan payments of $ 0. 5 million and lease
payments of $ 0. 3 million. Net cash used in financing activities for the year ended December 31, 2023 ;was primarily
attributable-due to the-loan repayment--- payments of borrowings-$ 12. 5 million, partially offset by proceeds from issuance
of common stock of $ 6. 2 million and proceeds from loans of $ 2. 0 million . The following discussion summarizes our
material cash requirements from contractual and other obligations. For more information on these matters, please see Note 10 —
Commitments and Contingencies to the consolidated financial statements included in Item 3-15 . “ Exhibits Fegat
Proeeedings-seetion—OnDeeember9-, 2025 MIGNo-Financial Statement Schedules ” in this Annual Report . The
Company is 1ncluded {—Pfyhbtd-fefrk&arel%l—kﬁe%—l—%y—lﬁdﬂﬁas— as plaeed—rn’fe—a guarantor of eeurt-appeinted
v proeess;-as-diselosed-nnote bsegten A A d+rte-a Secured Loan Facility Agreement
(the « Marshall Loan ”) by MIG N0 1 Pty Ltd (“ MIG No 1”)w 1th Marshall Investments MIG-GCP Pty Ltd ATF for the
Marshall Investments MIG Trust (collectively, “ Marshall ”) . The loan matured in February 2024 and bears interest at a rate
of 12 % per annum (with an overdue rate provision of an additional 500bps), payable monthly with interest payments that
commenced in December 2021. This loan facility is secured by direct assets of MIG No. 1 PEtd-and a general security
agreement given by the Company. Principal repayments began during November 2022. There has been no principal and
interest payments made since May 2023. The outstandmo balance including interest is $ 9. +6-9 million as of December 31,
2623-2024 , all of which is currently classified as a current liability. M#GNe—+-The Company is included as a guarantor of
a Secured Loan Facility Agreement (the “ W Capital Loan ) for working capital by Mawson PL with W Capital
Adyvisors Pty Ltd for the W Capital Advisors Fund (collectively, “ W Capital ). As of December 31, 2024, the balance was
AUD $ 2. 1 million (USD $ 1. 3 mllllon) representlng outstandlng 1nterest all of whlch is currently class1ﬁed has= as 'l‘le'f
fﬁade—a current llablllty prinepe - - W

-Seeured—Prefﬂrsser—Ne’fe—W Capltal Loan accrues interest da1ly ata late of 12 % per annum (W1th an 0\’erdue rate provision of
an additional 266bps-800bps ). The W Capital Loan expired in March 2023. On February 23, 2022, Luna Squares LLC 15-(*
Luna ”) entered into a Digital Colocation Agreement with Celsius Mining LL.C. In connection with this agreement,
Celsius Mining LL.C loaned Luna a principal amount of $ 20. 0 million, for the purpose of funding the infrastructure
1equ11ed to amer&ze—meet the J:ezarﬂ—a’c—obllgatlons of the Digital Colocatlon Agreement, for which Luna issued a rate-of+5-%

Seculed Promlssmy Note (has—a—maft&rt-y—da’ee—e-f

-Faeﬂ-rﬁy—accrues interest da11y at a rate of 12 % per annum (w1th and-—- an overdue rate provision of an addltlonal 200bps)
Luna is paid-menthly-—required to amortize the loan at a rate of 15 % per quarter, Prinetpal-principal repayments began at

are-patd-ad-hoe-intine-with-the -lean—faeﬂ-rw—&greeme&t—end 0f September 2022 The -Seeﬂred-Celsms Loan F&erl-rtry—e*p-l-red—m

M&reh—had a maturlty date of August 23, 2() rre-y , dt P dare
The utstandlng balance 1nclud1ng 1nterest is $ 9.7 mllllon eﬁ—ee’fe-ber—}()—
artary-administrators;-and ged-as part-of the-voluntary-administration-

Rote steta atton h rratton December 31, 2024, all of which is currently classified as a
current liability . On July 8, 2()22 the Company issued secured convertible promissory notes to investors in the aggregate
principal amount of $ 3. 66-6 million (the “ Secured Convertible Promissory Notes ™) in exchange for an aggregate of $ 3. 66-6
million in cash. On September 29, 2022, the Company entered into a letter variation relating to some of the Secured Convertible
Promissory Notes, with an aggregate principal amount of $ 3. 1 million, which gave those holders the option to elect for pre-
payment (including accrued interest to maturity) subject to certain conditions. All of the investors included in this letter variation
elected for the pre- payment option and therefore there were § 3. 1 million principal repayments made during November 2022.
The final convertible noteholder who was not a party to this variation opted to enter into an arrangement whereby it received
pre- payment of interest but agreed that repayment of the principal was not required therefore the remaining $ 0. 50 million kas
had been classified as a current liability. The convertible note matured in July 2023 and-the-Company-hasnotrepaid-the
prinetpat-amountas-of Deeember3+,2023-. Interest has been accrued from July onwards and therefore the outstanding balance
is $ 0. 571 million as of December 31, 2023-2024 , all of which is classified as a current liability. During Mareh-2024 the
principal amount outstanding of $ 0. 50 million was repaid to the investor. Financial condition As of December 31, 2024, and



2023 ;and2022-, we had neteurrenttiabilitiesnegative working capital of $ 35. 9 million and $ 33. 2 +8-millienand-$4+5317
million, respectively. As of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2622-, we had net assets of ($ 3. 2) million and $ 30. 4 38-mithien
and-$F6-+Fmillion, respectively. As of December 31, 2023-2024 | we had an accumulated deficit of $ 482-228 . 67-8 million
compared to $ $22-182 . 26-7 million as of December 31, 20222023 . Our cash position of December 31, 2023-2024 , was $ 4-6
. 481 million in comparison to $ -4 . 95-5 million as of December 31,2622-2023 . For the years ended December 31,2024 and
2023 , and2022-the Company incurred a loss after tax of $ 46. 1 mllllon and $ 60. 4 42—&rx-1-1-teﬁ-aftd—a—less—a—fteﬁa*ef—$§2—?6
mllhon, respectively. Included in trade and other receivables is a $ 2 . 0 million payment being the final payment due from
CleanSpark, Inc . for the sale of the Georgia facility. CleanSpark, Inc . has disputed this payment. On December 22, 2023, the
Company made formal demand on CleanSpark Inc. and CSRE Properties Sandersville, LLC for at least $ 2 . 0 million -066;
866-for breach of contract of a Bill of Sale dated October 1, 2022 between the parties. Subsequently, on January 12, 2024,
Mawson and Luna filed notice of its claim for formal arbitration before the American Arbitration Association which was
dismissed on May 1, 2024, as it was determined that the arbitration was not the proper forum. On July 16, 2024 the
Company filed a formal complaint in the matter entitled Mawson Infrastructure Group, Inc., and Luna Squares, LLC v.
CleanSpark, Inc. and CSRE Properties Sandersville, LLC in the US District Court for the Southern District of New
York, Civil Action No. 1: 24- cv- 5379 against CleanSpark Inc. and CSRE Properties Sandersville, LLC for $ 2. 0 million
for breach of contract of the debtors’ obligation to pay for an energy earnout provision contained in a Bill of Sale dated
October 1, 2022 between the parties. On September 13 Subsequently-ondanuary+2-, 2024, the defendants Mawsenand-tuna
filed notiee-ofits-elatm-for-formal-arbitration-a motion to dismiss the proceedings. The parties briefed their positions, and a
determination remains before the Court AmerteanArbitration-Assoetation. The-arbitration-At this time, the matter is
proeeeding-pending . Our primary requirements for liquidity and capital are working capital, capital expenditures, public
company costs and general corporate needs. In particular, we have large power usage costs, and other significant costs include
our lease, operational and employee costs. We expect these capital and liquidity needs to continue as we further develop and
grow our business. Our principal sources of liquidity have been and are expected to be our cash and cash equivalents, which are
external-debt-faetlities-available to us , and further issuances of shares. We require additional capital to respond to near- term
debt repayment obligations, competitive pressure, market dynamics, new technologies, customer demands, business
opportunities, challenges, potential acquisitions or unforeseen circumstances, and we will likely need te-determirre-to engage in
equity or debt financings in the short term. If we are unable to obtain adequate financing on terms satisfactory to us when we
require it, our ability to continue to fund, grow or support our business model and to respond to business challenges could be
significantly limited, our business, financial condition and results of operations could be adversely affected, and this may result
in bankruptcy or our ceasing operatlonq The C ompany is takmg qtep% to preqerve cash by optimizing operations, reducing
costs and pursuing efficiencies reg : ade-. The Company has been improving its
revenue generation by enhancing -rmpfeﬁﬁg—t-he—efﬁeteﬁey—e-ﬁm operations ane, drlvmg growth in business lines, adding ee~-
multiple digital teeation-colocation services customers and diversifying its businesses . The Company will continue to seek to
optimize its cashflows through these and other initiatives . Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements For information with
respect to recent accounting pronouncements, see Note 2 to our Consolidated Financial Statements included in this Annual
Report enFerm30-—K—for the year ended December 31, 2023-2024 . Critical Accounting Estimates The preparation of the
financial statements in conformity with 8=5-GAAP requires management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions that
affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. The Company evaluates on an ongoing basis its
assumptions. The Company’ s management believes that the estimates, judgments, and assumptions used are reasonable based
upon information available at the time they are made. These estimates, judgments and assumptions can affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the dates of the consolidated financial
statements, and the reported amounts of income and expenses during the reporting periods. Actual results could differ from
those estimates. The Company has considered the following to be significant estimates made by management, including but not
limited to, going concern assumptions, estimating the useful lives of fixed assets, realization of long- lived assets, unrealized tax
positions and-, the realization of digital currencies, valuing the derivative asset classified under Level 3 fair value hierarchy, and
the contingent obligation with respect to future revenues. ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES
ABOUT MARKET RISK. As a smaller reporting company, we are have-eleetednot required to provide the disclosure required
by this item. ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA. All information required by this item is
included in Item 15 of Part IV of this Annual Report and is incorporated into this item by reference. ITEM 9. CHANGES IN
AND DlSAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DlSCLOSURE None fPhe

ﬁﬂ&ﬁet&l—s’t&terﬁeﬁts— lTEM 9A CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES Evaluatlon of Disclosure Contlols and Procedure% Our
Board of Directors and management, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer (principal executive officer) and



Chief Financial Officer (principal financial officer), has evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Rules 13a- 15 (e)) and 15d- 15 (e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the *“ Exchange Act ), as
of the end of the period covered by this Annual Report. Our management recognizes that any controls and procedures, no matter
how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving their objectives and management
necessarily applies its judgment in evaluating the cost benefit relationship of possible controls and procedures. Based on this
evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures
were not effective at the reasonable assurance level as of December 31, 2023-2024 , due to the material weaknesses in our
internal control over financial reporting described below. Management’ s assessment of the effectiveness of our disclosure
controls and procedures is expressed at a level of reasonable assurance because management recognizes that any controls and
procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving their objectives. A
material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting, such that there is
a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of our annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or
detected on a timely basis. Management” s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting Our Board of Directors and
management is-are responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as defined in
Rules 13a- 15 (f) and 15d- 15 (f) under the Exchange Act. Our internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of our financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States. Internal control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of our companys; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations
of our management and directors; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the company’ s assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements. Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. Management
assessed our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2623-2024 , the end of our fiscal year. Management
based its assessment on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission ( * COSO » ). Management’ s assessment included evaluation of such
elements as the design and operating effectiveness of key financial reporting controls, process documentation, accounting
policies, and our overall control environment. The material weaknesses identified are described below. SignifieantRelianee-on
KeyIndividuats-Segregation of Duties and Staff Turnover . There is inadequate segregation of duties in place related to our
financial reporting and other management review and oversight procedures due to the lack of sufficient accounting personnel.
This is not inconsistent with similar small , fast- growing organizations. This gives rise to the risk of lack of ability to react in a
timely manner to operations issues and meet increased GAAP / PCAOB / SOX / SEC registrant requirements. In addition, this
poses the risk that compliance and other reporting obligations are not dealt with in an adequate manner. Controls over the
finanetal-Financial statement-Statement elose-Close and reperting-Reporting preeess-Process . Controls were not adequately
designed , implemented or imptemented-documented in the financial statement close and reporting process. This includes
controls related to complex and judgmental accounting transactions including business acquisitions and divestures, derivatives,
manual journal entries, account reconciliations and financial statement policies and disclosures. Information and Technology
Controls There are eenﬁre-l—deﬁeteneies-materlal weaknesses related to information technology (“ IT ™) general controls that
ertabweakness—De ed-include lack of controls over access to programs and data, program
changes program developrnent —and program changes and-generaHTeontrols-. Data from third parties. The Company did not
property-fully execute to its satisfaction its designed controls to ensure that data received from third parties is complete and
accurate. Such data is relied on by the Company in determining amounts pertaining to mining and hosting revenue, net energy
benefits, and eryptoeurreney-digital assets. Fixed asset-Asset verifteation-Verification . The Company did not preperty-fully
execute to its satisfaction its designed controls around physical asset verification at HS-mining-its facilities and sites. Together
with system limitations, restricting tracking of fixed asset movements, there is a risk around the existence of fixed assets. The
root cause is the lack of sufficient, capable personnel to perform physical asset inspections, combined with system limitations.
Notwithstanding the identified material weaknesses and management’ s assessment that our internal control over financial
reporting was not effective as of December 31, 2623-2024 , management believes that the consolidated financial statements
included in this aangat-Annual Report on Form 10- K fairly present, in all material respects, our financial condition, results of
operations and cash flows as of and for the years presented in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. We rely
on the assistance of outside advisors with expertise in these matters in preparing the financial statements. Remediation Our
Board of Directors and management take internal control over financial reporting and the integrity of our financial statements
seriously. Our management continues to work to improve its-the Company’ s controls related to eur-its material weaknesses.
With the oversight of senior management and our Board’ s auditAudit eommittee-Committee , we continue to remediate the
underlying causes of the identified deficiencies materialweaknesses-, primarily through the performance of a risk assessment
process; the development and implementation of formal, documented policies and procedures, improved processes and control
activities (including an assessment of the segregation of duties); as well as the hiring of additional finance personnel for specific
roles such as financial reporting. During the year ended December 31, 2623-2024 , we made the following changes to our
internal control over financial reporting that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal
control over financial reporting: e In fiscal year 2623-2024 , management updated the initial risk assessment, refined control




designs, continued the implementation of controls and performed ongoing remediation efforts to uplift the quality and
effectiveness of existing controls. Remediation efforts included the implementationraddition and modification of disclosure
and tax controls tineluding-the-appointment-ofa-Diselosure-Committee), the implementation of new [T and Finance systems
and applications with robust controls, segregating duties through implementing system workflows and the hiring of qualified
personnel in financial reporting and IT. A small number of controls remain to be implemented-operating effectively in the
upcoming financial year. Whilst controls have been implemented across all business processes and are operating, the material
weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting will not be considered remediated as controls did not operate
effectively on a consistent basis or did not operate for a sufficient period of time up to the end of the financial year, to be tested
for and concluded on for effectiveness. Remediation efforts for the upcoming financial year will be focused on refining and
implementing the remainder of controls, uplifting the effectiveness of existing controls and validating the effectiveness of
implemented controls using criteria set forth by COSO. We cannot provide any assurance that these remediation efforts will be
successful or that our internal control over financial reporting will be effective as a result of these efforts. In addition, we
continue to evaluate and work to improve our internal control over financial reporting related to the identified material
weaknesses 5. management-Management may determine to take additional measures to address eentrot-defietenetes-material
weaknesses or determlne to modlfy the re1ned1at10n plan described above. Changes in internal control over financial reporting

; ve-there-There have been no etherchanges in our internal control over financial
reportlng (as deﬁned in Rules 13a- 15 (f) or 15d 15 (f) of the Exchange Act) that occurred during the most recently completed
fiscal quarter that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’ s internal control over
financial reporting. Limitations on Effectiveness of Controls and Procedures and Internal Control over Financial Reporting In
designing and evaluating the disclosure controls and procedures and internal control over financial reporting, management
recognizes that any controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance
of achieving the desired control objectives. In addition, the design of disclosure controls and procedures and internal control
over financial reporting must reflect the fact that there are resource constraints and that management is required to apply
judgment in evaluating the benefits of possible controls and procedures relative to their costs. ITEM 9B. OTHER
INFORMATION. Nesrie--ITEM 9C. DISCLOSURE REGARDING FOREIGN JURISDICTIONS THAT PREVENT
INSPECTIONS. PART I ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE.
Information required to be disclosed by this Item with respect to our executive officers and directors is incorporated into this
Annual Report enFermt8-—Kk-by reference from the section entitled *“ Directors, Named Executive Officers and Corporate
Governance ” contained in our definitive proxy statement for our 2624-2025 annual stockholder meeting, which we intend to file
within 120 days of the end of our fiscal year ended December 31, 2623-2024 . ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION.
Information required to be disclosed by this Item with respect to our executive officers is incorporated into this Annual Report
enrForm1H0-K-by reference from the section entitled “ Executive Compensation ” contained in our definitive proxy statement
for our 2624-2025 annual stockholder meeting, which we intend to file within 120 days of the end of our fiscal year ended
December 31, 2623-2024 . ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND
MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS. Information required to be disclosed by this Item with
respect to our beneficial owners and management is incorporated into this Annual Report enFermt0-I-by reference from the
section entitled ““ Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters ™
contained in our definitive proxy statement for our 2624-2025 annual stockholder meeting, which we intend to file within 120
days of the end of our fiscal year ended December 31, 2623-2024 . ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED
TRANSACTIONS, DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE. Information required to be disclosed by this Item with respect to our
executive officers and directors is incorporated into this Annual Report enFerm+8-K-by reference from the section entitled
Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence ” contained in our definitive proxy statement for our
2624-2025 annual stockholder meeting, which we intend to file within 120 days of the end of our fiscal year ended December
31,2623-2024 . ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES. Information required to be disclosed by this
Item is incorporated into this Annual Report enFerm36-—I-by reference from the section entitled *“ Principal Accountant Fees
and Services ” contained in our definitive proxy statement for our 2624-2025 annual stockholder meeting, which we intend to
file within 120 days of the end of our fiscal year ended December 31, 2623-2024 . PART IV ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND
FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES (a) Index to Exhibit and Financial Statement Schedules (1) Financial Statements.
The following consolidated financial statements are filed as part of this Annual Report: MAWSON INFRASTRUCTURE
GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2623-2024
U. S. DOLLARS INDEX Page Report of Independent Reglstered Pubhc Accountmg Flrm (Wolf & Company PC PCAOB ID
Number 392) F- 2 R g ;
P%GB—I—BNmﬁbefWConsohdated Balance Sheets F-4 Consolldated Statements of Operatlons F- 5 Consolldated
Statements of Comprehensive Loss F- 6 Consohdated Statements of epefaﬁeﬂs—Stockholders’ Equlty (Deﬁclt) F- 7
Consolidated Statements of v RERtS : y
G&nse-l-td&ted—St&temeﬁts—ef—Cash F lows F- -1—1—9 Notes to Consohdated F man01al Statements F- 10 -1—2—RE-P9R—T—9F
- To the Stockholders and the Board of
Directors of Mawson lnfrastructure Group, Inc.: Op1n10n on the F inancial Statements We have audited the accompanying
consolidated balance sheet-sheets of Mawson Infrastructure Group, Inc. (the “ Company ) as of December 31, 2024 and 2023,
the related consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss, stockholders’ equity and cash flows for the year-years
then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements (collectively, the “ financial statements ™). In our
opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of December
31, 2024 and 2023, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended, in conformity with accounting




Concern The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming thdt the Company W111 contmue asa 5omg
concern. As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, the Company has incurred net losses since its inception, and had
negative working capital and will need additional funding to continue operations. This raises substantial doubt about the
Company’ s ability to continue as a going concern. Management’ s plans in regard to these matters also are described in Note 1.
The financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty. Basis for
Opinion These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’ s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on the Company’ s financial statements based on our audit-audits . We are a public accounting firm registered with the
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (“ PCAOB ) and are required to be independent with respect to
the Company in accordance with U. S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and
Exchange Commission and the PCAOB. We conducted our audit-audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to
perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. As part of our audit-audits , we are required to obtain an
understanding of internal control over financial reporting but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Company’ s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. Our aadit-audits included
performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and
performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our agdit-audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We
believe that our audit-audits provides— provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. Critical Audit Matters The critical audit
matters— matter communicated below are-is a matters— matter arising from the current period audit of the financial statements
that was communicated or required to be communicated to the audit committee and that: (1) relates to accounts or disclosures
that are material to the financial statements and (2) involved our especially challenging, subjective, or complex judgments. The
communication of critical audit matters does not alter in any way our opinion on the financial statements, taken as a whole, and
we are not, by communicating the critical audit matter below, providing separate opinions on the critical audit matter or on the
accounts or disclosures to which it relates. Bitcoin Mining Revenue Recognition Description of the Matter: One of the
Company’ s revenue- generating activities is to-previde-participating in bitcoin mining pools through contractual
agreements with mining pool operators (see Note 2). Under these agreements, the Company provides computing power
to fac1lltate cryptocurrency transaction verlflcatlon services to the tmn%actlon requester and to the bitcoin netwmk (i.e.

verify the completeness and occurrence of WASV q
ensuring-that-revenue fromand reliability on data pr0V1ded by mining pool operators was—eeﬂap-}ete— HOW We Addlessed the
Matter in Our Audit: We performed the following procedures: e Stte-visits-at-Independently tracing select financial and
operational data to the blockchain to confirm the occurrence and accuracy of mining revenue transactions. ® Reviewed
mining pool operator agreements and SOC reports and reconciled the blockchain data directly to mining pool operator
data to test accuracy and completeness of the data provided by the mining pool operator. We compared to the mining
difficulty data and the-other Company-inputs provided by the mining pool operator to reliable third- party sources. o
Applying detailed testing and analytical procedures to evaluate the accuracy, completeness, and occurrence of
recognized revenue 1nclud1ng testlng management s faeﬂ-rttes—whefe—t-he—analysm of expected mmmg rewards hardwarets

eeeuﬁeﬂee—aﬂd—&eeufaey—ef—mmmg feveﬂtte—ef—rewards earned during the year. eperator—e-Certain-reasonableness-tests-of
mintng-peotreventerand-e Used specialized software to verlfy the complete populatlon of the Company s on- chain
transactions —Realization-and Verlfylng cut- e-f—off RE ;

a-meuﬂt—of these transactions minineeq

Company, P. C. We have sewed as the Company S dudltOl‘ since 2023 Boston Mas%achu%etts March 28, 2025 F 3 REPORT




e y y ireeto d Austratie ONSOLIDATED
BALAN( E SHEETS DecembeI 31 DecembeI 31,2024 "O"? %OQQ—ASSETS ( unent assets C asl and cash equivalents $ 6,
089, 837 $ 4,476, 339 $946,265-Prepaid expenses 4, 748, 749 3, 556, 933 3;488,868-Trade and other receivables , net 15,
167,729 12, 105, 387 +6;458;-676-Assetsheldforsale—5-446;-059-Total current assets 26, 006, 315 20, 138, 659 %9—3-}91'16'8
Property , plant and equipment, net 28, 071, 415 57, 740, 291 95-6+6;498-Derivative asset 2, 884, 984 4, 058, 088 H5;299;-97+
[nvestments, equity method = 106, 807 2,885,373 Marketableseenrities—3;243;-957-Sccurity deposits 494, 403 415, 000 25
524-065-Operating lease right- of- use asset 3, 983, 378 2, 307, 399 2:-849;-933-Total assets $ 61, 440, 495 $ 84, 766, 244 $
-1-3-3,—3%9,—965—L1ABIL1T1ES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIT) Current liabilities: Trade and other payables $ 39,
398,160 $ 32, 513, 113 $346,592,864-Current portion of operating lease liability 1, 270,989 1, 416, 310 4;366;962-Current
portion of finance lease liability 358, 515 33, 059 36;-702-Current portion of long- term berrewings-loans 20, 919, 754 19, 352,
752 23-6+6;-583-Total current liabilities 61, 947, 418 53, 315, 234 35:-543;468-Customer-deposits—5;328;-445-Operating
lease liability, net of current poltlon 2, 523 957 1, 016, 716-1—72—7—9—75—F1name lease liability, net of current portion 207, 957
50, g al liabilities 64, 679, 332 54, 381, 614 57162




945-Commitments and Contingencies Stockholders’ equity (deficit) : Series A preferred stock; 1, 000, 000 shares authorized, no
shares issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622—- Common stock, $ 0. 001 par value per share; 90,
000, 000 shares authorized, 18, 792, 360 and 16, 644, 711 andd3;625:-882-shares issued and outstanding as of December 31,
2024 and 2023 and2022-, respectively 18,792 16, 645 43:-626-Additional paid- in capital 225,341,912 211, 279, 176 494;
204--559-Accumulated other comprehensive income 198, 625 608, 688 5;-624;467Accumulated deficit ( 228, 798, 166) ( 182,
660, 465 HI22;25%-628-) Total Mawson Infrastructure Group, Inc. (* Mawson ”) stockholders’ equity (deficit) (3, 238, 837)
29, 238, 044 F95-0692-624-Non- controlling interest - 1, 146, 586 £985;-984)-Total stockholders’ equity (deficit) (3, 238, 837) 30,
384, 630 —7’-6—1-66—1%9—T0tc11 llabllltleS and stocl(holdeIs equlty (defic1t) $ 61 440 495 § 84, 766 244 $433,329065-Adl-share

—Sce reperts-ofindependent

fegisfefed-pﬂbﬁ&&eeetﬂ‘r&ng—ﬁfms—&ﬂd-&re—aecompanyum notes to -t-he—consohdated fmanClal statements CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS For the Years Ended December 31, 2024 2023 2022-Revenues: Digital ewrreney-colocation

revenue $ 38, 546, 912 $ 16, 364, 767 Energy management revenue 7 576, 553 5 354 272 Dlgltal assets mmm,g_ revenue $

7—91—242—Sa}e—e-f—equfpmeﬁt—Equ1pment sales 550 000 262 158 -1-4%—3—7—869—T0ta1 revenues 359, 265 125 43, 571 720 -84—3-85—
407Less: Cost of revenues (excluding depreciation) 38, 987, 911 28, 557, 004 44-H4-895-Gross profit 20, 277, 214 15, 014,
716 36:-670;-512-Operating expenses: Selling, general and administrative 18, 313,904 19, 177, 492 25;-856;+77Stock based
compensation 14, 064, 883 10, 834, 838 3;-042;486-Depreciation and amortization 17, 877, 770 38, 080, 506 63;206;3+7+8
Change in fair value of derivative asset 1, 173, 104 7, 241, 883 H5299:-9FH)-Total operating expenses 51, 429, 661 75, 334,
719 807762864 oss from operations ( 31, 152, 447) (60, 320, 003 H44;-692;-352-) Non- operating income (expense): osses
Gain (loss) on foreign currency transactions €1, 009, 223 (1, 738, 845 H6;6737424) Interest expense (3, 097, 640) (3, 048, 770
H6;-063-894-) Impairment of financial assets - (1, 837, 063 H35375;230-) Profit on sale of site - 3, 353, 130 8-Gain (loss) on
deconsolidation (12 , 276-444 , 446-097) 9, 472, 976 Gain on deeenselidatien9,472,976—Gaindess)en—sale of marketable

securities = 1, 437, 230 4:-867)-Other expenses ( 39, 638) ( 396, 691 )-—Fatﬁa%ue—less—eﬂ—mﬁlest-merﬁs—&l—é%%%%—) Other
income 364, 382 517, 918 2,466;362-Loss from on P et 6 e-ofn 3

assoetates-aceounted-for-using-the-cquity method investments- (36 356 )—61—254—925—) Total non- operating income (expense)
net (14, 207, 770) 7, 723, 529 €95943:267)-Loss before income taxes ( 45, 360, 217) (52, 596, 474 3H54;-035:-559-) Income tax
expenses (976, 570) (5, 948, 619) —Net Loss ( 46, 336, 787) ( 58, 545, 093 H54:-635:-559-) Less: Net (loss) gain attributable to
non- controlling interests (205, 086) 1, 876, 729 (5243;25H-Net Loss attributed to Mawson common Tnfrastraeture-Group
shareholders stockholders $ ( 46, 131, 701) $ ( 60, 421, 822 3$+52,762,368-) Net Loss per share, basic & diluted $ ( 2.59) $ (
3. 86 )—$—€4—1—6—) Welghted average numbel of shares outstanding 17, 828, 761 15, 659, 241 +2:-695:654-Sce reportsof

e At s-and-the-accompanying netes-Notes to the-eonselidated-Consolidated finaneiat
Flnanc1al s’f&temeﬁts—Statements ( ONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE LOSS For the Years Ended
December 31, 2024 2023 2622-Net Loss $ ( 46, 336, 787) $ (58, 545, 093 ¥$+54;-0635:-559-) Other comprehensive income
(loss) Foreign currency translation adjustment ( 461, 904) (4, 224, 033) 5:-542;-56+Comprehensive loss ( 46, 798, 691) ( 62,
769, 126 H48;492;-998-) Less: Comprehensive loss (gain) attributable to non- controlling interests (205, 086) 1, 876, 729 {5
2—75—29—79—( omplehensne 10ss attrlbutdble to common stockholders $ ( 46, 593 605) $ ( 64, 645, 855) -$—(47%—1—7—79—H—See

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF GHANGE—S—I—N—STO( KHOLDERS EQUITY (DEFICIT) For the Year Ended
December 31, 2024 Common Stock (#) Common Stock ($) Additional Paid- in- Capital Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Income / (Loss) Accumulated Deficit Total Mawson Stockholders’ Equity (Deficit) Non- controlling
interest Total Equity (Deficit) Balance as of December 31, 2023 16, 644, 711 $ 16, 645 § 211, 279, 176 $ 608, 688 $ (182,
666, 465) $ 29, 238, 044 $ 1, 146, 586 $ 30, 384, 630 Exercising of RSU’ s and stock options 2, 147, 649 2, 147 (2, 147)-----
Stock based compensation expense for RSU’ s and stock options-- 14, 064, 883-- 14, 064, 883- 14, 064, 883
Deconsolidation of MIG No. 1 Pty Ltd------ (889, 659) (889, 659) Net loss---- (46, 131, 701) (46, 131, 701) (205, 086) (46,
336, 787) Other comprehensive loss--- (410, 063)- (410, 063) (51, 841) (461, 904) Balance as of December 31, 2024 18, 792,
360 $ 18, 792 $ 225, 341,912 $ 198, 625 $ (228, 798, 166) $ (3, 238, 837) $- 8 (3, 238, 837) For the Year Ended December 31,
2023 Common Stock (#) Common Stock ($) Additional Paid- in- Capital Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income / (Loss)
Accumulated Deficit Total Mawson Stockholders’ Equity Non- controlling interest Total Equity Balance as of December 31,
2022 13, 625, 882 $ 13, 626 $ 194,294, 559 § 5, 021, 467 $ (122, 257, 628) $ 77, 072, 024 $ (905, 904) $ 76, 166, 120
Conversion of notes payable into common stock 104, 319 104 276, 855-- 276, 959- 276, 959 Issuance of common stock in lieu
of interest on berrewings-loans 18, 807 19 63, 926-- 63, 945- 63, 945 Issuance of common stock for services 93, 334 93 306,
976-- 307, 069- 307, 069 Issuance of warrants-- 1, 835, 166-- 1, 835, 166- 1, 835, 166 Exercising of RSUs and stock options
303, 762 304 490, 015-- 490, 319- 490, 319 Stock based compensation for RSUs-- 8, 202, 283-- 8, 202, 283- 8, 202, 283
Issuance of common stock, net of issuance costs 2, 498, 607 2, 499 5, 809, 396-- 5, 811, 895- 5, 811, 895 Net loss---- (60, 421,
822) (60, 421, 822) 1, 876, 729 (58, 545, 093) Other comprehensive income (loss)--- (4, 412, 779) 12, 985 (4, 399, 794) 175, 761
(4, 224, 033) Balance as of December 31 2023 16, 644 711§ 16, 645 $211,279,176 $ 608, 688 $ (182 666, 465) b 29 238,
044$ 1 146, 586$30 384, 630 ot-th 4 ¢ HHOH A A




-1-66—1—29—F -1-9-8 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF (ASH FLOWS F01 the Yecus Ended December 3I 2024 2023 %92—2—
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES Net loss $ ( 46, 336, 787) $ ( 58, 545, 093 9—$—64,—93§,JJ§9—) Adjustments
to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities: Depreciation and amortization 17, 877, 770 38, 080,
506 63;266;1+78-Amortization of operating lease right- of- use asset 958, 571 1, 436, 186 +;-619;-627Foreign exchange loss
(gain) (1, 626, 705) 1, 644, 484 -1—547—Sa-Ie—ef—rﬂteI-IeefuaI—pfepeﬁy—H—448—l-8%—StoeI< based compensation 14, 064, 883 10,
834, 838 3—9—1—2—4%9—Unreqhzed {gaim)-loss on derivative asset 1, 173, 104 7, 241, 883 Share of (H5299,-97Fair-value-loss
efnvestments—-694;4H-Share-of from tess-efequity accounted method investments - 36, 356 5284;-398~(Gain) loss on
saIe of marketable seeurmes (I 437, 730) 4—897—Loss on write-sale off-- of en-property , plant and equipment 18 —, 262 560;
6 d pment-137, 427 37526;226)-Non- cash interest expense 3, 079, 113 1, 624, 537
Loss -39%92—Neﬁ—~ on lease termlnatlon 312 —eontrotinginterest—, 375- 244;274-Profit on sale of site - (3, 353, 13()) —(
Gam ) loss on deconsohddtlon 12 959 923 (9 472, 976) -—Impdnment on equity accounted method investment - 1, 837, 063 2;

S h 3 “hanges in operating assets and IldblIltleS Trade
and other recewdbles (3 062 342) A3, 907 067 )—(695—4'8-9—) Opemtmg Ie"lse liabilities (771, 190) (1, 511, 688) —Other current
assets (1, 271, 220) 2, 040, 999 €4;863:945)-Trade and other payables 6, 186, 846 10, 767, 241 2—1—355—8-8—3—Net cash (used in)
prowded by opemtmg activities 3, 562 603 (2 545, 664) +4;256;294-CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

S o y pment-Capital expenditures (1, 957, 902) (5, 352, 024 H49;-978;-074-) Proceeds
hom sale of'site = 8, IO7 508 -—Bepes%ﬁeeeﬁedﬁnfe&&erﬁeﬁ&&e%@eergﬁte%#@%ﬁoceeds from sales of
propeIty 8 plant and equlpment 838 864 1, 059 290 22—166—1—3—1—Proceeds from sale of marketable securities - 6, 926, 843 +65;

A perty 3 6)-Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (1, 119,

038) I() 741, 617 (—32%49—4229—CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITES Proceeds from common share issuances - 6,
192, 845 6—69-8—2—2—1—Payments of stock issuance costs = (380, 950 HF93;:3+72) Proceeds from loans eenvertible-notes— 3;-660;
999—Preeeeds—frem—berrewmgs—2 043, 360 34;256:475RepaymentPayment of finance lease liabilities ( 330, 067) (38, 176)
77644 Repayments-Payments of borrowings-loans (500, 000) (12, 464, 358 H27998;:884-) Net cash fused in yprovided
by-financing activities ( 830, 067) (4, 647, 279) +3;:-986;496-Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents - (18,
600 H2237376-) Net increase {deerease)-in cash and cash equivalents 1, 613, 498 3, 530, 074 ¢4;524-068)-Cash and cash
equivalents at beginning of period 4, 476, 339 946, 265 5;46%293-Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 6, 089, 837 $ 4,
476, 339 $946,265-Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information Cash paid for interest $ 18,527 $ 1, 424, 233 $-5;87%
99-1—Cdsh pald for 1ncome taxes $ -896 247 $- Non cash tmnsactlonsSﬁI&eﬁsﬁeﬁexehaﬂge—fQPs%wres—&%%mﬂHﬁe

pre chang Recognition of right of use operating asset and lease liability
‘I> 2, 634, 550 $ 923, 651 -$-—Aecrued mtelest on conv ertlble notes settled in common stock $ - $ 276, 959 $-NOTES TO
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEI\/IENTS NOTE 1: —=GENERAL Nature of operations Mawson Infrastructure Group
Inc. (“ Mawson, ” the *“ Company, ” “ we, ” “us, 7 and “ our ”) is a eorporation-ineorporated-technology company focused on
digital infrastructure platforms, headquartered in Pelaware-in2642-the United States of America . On March 9, 2021, the
Company acquired the shares of Cosmos Capital Limited (now known as Mawson Infrastructure Group Pty Ltd and referred to
herein as “ Mawson AU—PL ) in a stock for stock exehange This transaction has been aecounted for as a reverse asset
acquisition. Maws 3 e

ef—Mawseﬁ—AU—Shares of Mmeﬁ—the Company s common stock , par value $ 0 001 per share (“ Common Stock ”) ha\ e
been listed on -t-he—The Nqsdaq Cdpltdl Market since Septembe1 29, 2021 Mawseﬁ—ts—a—dig-rtai—rﬂ-fras{-rueﬁlre—eeﬂapa&y

Iee&ﬁeﬁ—aﬁd-reIa{ed—seﬁﬂees—aﬁd-eﬂefgy—rﬂarkefs—The C ompany develops and opemtes dlutal mfrastructure platforms IOI

enterprise customers and for its digital-eurreney—sueh-as-biteoin;-mining-aetivities-on-own purposes the-Biteoirbloekehain
network-. The Company a-Ise—pre’ﬁdes— s di gltal infrastructure semees—platforms can be used to operate computmg

ﬂ&e—eeﬁrpan-yheharges—feﬁhe—use-of -rts—apphcatlons, and are offered across artlﬁclal 1ntelhgence (“ AI ”) high-
performance computing (“ HPC *), digital infrastraetare-assets, and related-serviees-other computing applications . The

Company also has an energy markets-management business, which utilizes software and analysis, to generate revenue
when the Company participates in energy management program related to the real- time needs of thretgh-whieh-it-ean
reeetve-netenergy-benefitsirexchange-for-eurtathing-the power the-Company-utitizes-from-the-grid inresponse-to-instanees-of
high-eleetrietty-demand-. The Company may-also periodically transaet-transacts in digital ewrreney-mining-computational
machlnes data center mhdsnuctule and related eqmpment ora-periodie-basis-, subject to business prevathing-market

- v : , and commercnal opportunltles maﬁages—rts—d-rg-&a-l—m-frasfrue&rre—te

operates dlgltal 1nfrastructure platforms and data centers deIlvenné a total current cap%lty of dpplOledter -1-99-129

megawatts (“ MV aeross-twoPennsylvanta"") with its current operational sites with an apipetine-ofadditional sites-24 MW
of future capacity that is under development, all strategically located in ©hte-locations served by the PJM Energy Market



in the United States. The PJM Energy Market is the largest wholesale power market in North America. Previously, the
Company also had interests in the Australian market, however for strategic and commercial reasons, the Company is
currently focused on advancing its interests in North America. The Company currently operates facilities in the United
States of Amerlca and does not have operatlng 51tes in Australia . The aecompanyms_ consolidated financial statements,

; b - Mawson AU ”), Mawson Serv1ces Pty Ltd (“ Mawson
SPL ”) Lund Squares LLC (“ Luna Squares ”), Mawson Bellel‘onte LLC, Luna Squares Repairs LLC, Luna Squares Property
LLC (* Luna Property ”) , Mawson Midland LLC, Mawson Hosting LLC (* Mawson Hosting ) , Mawson Ohio LLC and
Mawson Mining LLC (collectively referred to as the “ Group ), have been prepared by the Company spursuant to the rules and
regulations of the U. S. Securities and Exchange Commission (“ SEC ) and in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles in the United States of America (“ GAAP 7). NOTE 1: —GENERAL (Cont.) Going concern The accompanying
consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming the Company will continue as-em a going concern basis and in
accordance with GAAP. The going concern basis of presentation assumes that the Company will continue in operation one year
after the date these financial statements are issued and will be able to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities and
commitments in the normal course of business. Pursuant to the requirements of the Financial Accounting Standards Board’ s
Accounting Standards Codification (“ ASC ) Topic 205- 40, Disclosure of Uncertainties about an Entity’ s Ability to Continue
as a Going Concern, management must evaluate whether there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
substantial doubt about the Company’ s ability to continue as a going concern for one year from the date these financial
statements are issued. This evaluation does not take into consideration the potential mitigating effect of management’ s plans
that have not been fully implemented or are not within control of the Company as of the date the financial statements are issued.
When substantial doubt exists under this methodology, management evaluates whether the mitigating effect of its plans
sufficiently alleviates substantial doubt about the Company’ s ability to continue as a going concern. The mitigating effect of
management’ s plans, however, is only considered if both (1) it is probable that the plans will be effectively implemented within
one year after the date that the financial statements are issued, and (2) it is probable that the plans, when implemented, will
mitigate the relevant conditions or events that raise substantial doubt about the entity’ s ability to continue as a going concern
within one year after the date that the financial statements are issued. For the year ended December 31, 2623-2024 , the
Company incurred a loss after tax of § 58-46 . 55-1 million, and as of December 31, 2623-2024 , had negative working capital of
$33-35 . 79 million, stockholders’ deficit had-totalret-assets-of § 36-3 . 38-2 million and had-an accumulated deficit of $ $82
228 . 67—8 1n11110r1 The C ompany S cash posmon as of Decembel 31, %92—3—2024 was 3> 46 . 48—1 million. The Biteetnpriees

y y “ompany typteatty
e&ms—}ess—btteeﬁrfer—ﬂ&e—s&fne—effeﬁ—kl-&ddtﬁen- s revenue is dependent on a number of external factors , the-rewards-that

biteoirminers-earnare-expeeted-to-halve-(not-including transaetion-feesHnorabout-Aprit2624-commercial terms, payments
from customers, payments from partners, counterparty risks, and market conditions, including those related to digital
assets, Al, HPC and other markets . These factors are outside the Company” s direct control, and the Company may not be
able to practically mitigate their 1mpdct The Company cannot predict with any certainty whether these trends will reverse or
persist. In addition, the Company’ s miners-and-other-mining-cquipment and infrastructure will require replacement over time
as -t-he—they come to the end of their useful hves to ensure that the Company can continue to operate competlm ely and




The Company has evaluated the above conditions and concluded that these conditions raise substantial doubt regaldlng our
ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least one year from the date of issuance of these consolidated financial
statements. F—4-To mitigate these conditions, the Company has explored various avenues to enhance liquidity, fund the
Company’ s expenditures, and meet debt servicing requirements. These strategies include, among others: ® Expanding its
digital infrastructure platform and increasing capacities for either digital colocation services and / or AI and HPC
markets; ® Exccuting andHmplementing-farthernew customer digital ee—toeation-colocation service agreements in either Al,
HPC, and / or digital assets mining to diversify its exposure across customers and / or markets ; ® Engaging in discussions

with capital providers rew-and-existinglenders-, relating ineludingrelated-to equity and / refinaneing-debt;raising-additionat
debt-or modifring-terms-ofexisting-debt; ® Considering equity issuances such as capital raises and at- the- market (“ ATM ”)

transactions ; ® Assessing and evaluating corporate and snateglc transactlons tne{ud-rng—eﬂg&gmg—aﬁ—rmfesfment—b&ﬂ-l&; °

Assessing and evaluating commercial opportunities m
infrastraeture-equipment,-miners; operational-sttes;-or e*pa-nﬁeﬁ—}eeaﬁeﬂs—other busmess opportunltles under comldel ation;
and-e Conducting assessments to identify and implement operational improvements and / or efficiencies ;-eest—eutting
meastres;-and other actions aimed at enhancing revenue and / or optimizing expenses ; and o Evaluating, assessing and
pursuing business revenue and margin expansion opportunities. Mawson successfully expanded its Midland Facility by
20 MW in June 2024, increasing its total operating capacity to about 129 MW from about 109 MW. In August 2024,
Mawson expanded into Perry County, Ohio securing an initial 24 MW of capacity that could expand Mawson’ s
operating capacity to 153 MW once completed. F- 12 On December 13, 2024, the Company entered into a Sales
Agreement (the “ Sales Agreement ”’) with Roth Capital Partners, LLC (the “ Lead Agent ) and A. G. P./ Alliance
Global Partners (collectively with the Lead Agent, the “ Agents ” and individually an “ Agent ), to sell shares of our
Common Stock (the “ Shares ) having an aggregate sales price of up to $ 12 million, from time to time, through an “ at
the market offering ” program under which the Agents will act as sales agent . Although the Company may have access to
capital, debt, egaitys-and / or other sources of funding, these may require additional time and cost, may impose operational
restrictions and other covenants on the Company, may not be available on attractive terms, and may not be available at all. If the
Company raises additional capital or debt, this could cause additional dilution to the Company’ s earrent-stockholders. The
terms of any future capital raise or debt issuance and the costs of any financing are uncertain and may be unfavorable to the
Company and-the-Company—s-earrent-stoekhelders- Should the Company be unable to source sufficient funding, the Company
may not be able to realize assets at their recognized values and fulfill its liabilities in the normal course of bu%lnes@ at the
amounts stated in these consolidated financial statements. The Company v
bank-and-is-obtaining-obtains advice from outside tegal-eounsel1tresources; however, it is 1mportant to note that strategic
and other initiatives may not lead to any transaction or other outcome. These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis, which contemplates the realization of assets and satisfaction of liabilities and other
commitments in the normal course of business. They do not include any adjustments relating to the recoverability and carrying
amounts of assets and the amounts of liabilities should the Company be unable to continue as a going concern and meet its
obligations and debts as and when they fall due. F- 45-13 NOTE 2: —=SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES Use of
estimates in preparation of Financial Statements The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires
management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and
accompanying notes. These estimates, judgments and assumptions can affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the dates of the consolidated financial statements, and the reported amounts of
income and expenses during the reporting periods. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The Company has
considered the following to be significant estimates made by management, including but not limited to, going concern
assumptions, estimating the useful lives of fixed assets, realization of long- lived assets, unrealized tax positions, valuing the
derivative asset classified under Level 3 fair value hierarchy, and the contingent obligation with respect to future revenues.
Principles of consolidation The accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Company include the accounts of the
Company and its wholly or majority owned and controlled subsidiaries. Intercompany investments, balances and transactions
have been eliminated in consolidation. Non — controlling interests represent the minority equity investment in the Company’ s
subsidiaries, plus the minority investors’ share of the net operating results and other components of equity relating to the non —
controlling interest. Any change in the Company’ s ownership interest in a consolidated subsidiary, through additional equity
issuances by the consolidated subsidiary or from the Company acquiring the shares from existing stockholders, in which the
Company maintains control is recognized as an equity transaction, with appropriate adjustments to both the Company’ s




additional paid- in capital and the corresponding non- controlling interest. F—+6-NOFE2:—SIGNIFHCANT-ACCOUNTING
POHICHES{Centy-Revenue recognition The Company recognizes revenue under ASC 606, Revenue from Contracts with
Customers. The core principle of ASC 606 is that a company should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the company expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services. Five steps are required to be followed in evaluating revenue recognition: (i) identify the contract with
the customer; (ii) identity the performance obligations in the contract; (iii) determine the transaction price; (iv) allocate the
transaction price; and (v) recognize revenue when or as the entity satisfies a performance obligation. In order to identify the
performance obligations in a contract with a customer, a company must assess the promised goods or services in the contract and
identify each promised good or service that is distinct. A performance obligation meets ASC 606’ s definition of a *“ distinct
good or service (or bundle of goods or services) if both of the following criteria are met: the customer can benefit from the good
or service either on its own or together with other resources that are readily available to the customer (i. e., the good or service is
capable of being distinct), and the entity’ s promise to transfer the good or service to the customer is separately identifiable from
other promises 1n the contract (i. e., the promise to transfer the good or service 19 distinct within the context of the contract).

colocatlon customers typlcally pay for energy
used in connectlon Wlth the customer ee-—lee&t—ten—colocatlon services agreement on a pass- through basis, which may be on a
fixed or variable basis calculated on the portion of energy used by the customer on the site. The Company addittenatiy-eharges
eo—loeation-fees-for-satisfies the performance obligation when the customer has the ability to direct the usc efthe-faeilittes;
and obtain substantially all of ether—- the related-fees-remaining benefits of the good or service . Revenue is typiealty
recognized over time as customers simultaneously reeetved-- receive monthty-fromand consume the benefits because
another party would not need to substantially reperform the work completed by the Company were that other party to
fulfill the remaining performance obligation to the customer based-er-. Revenue is recognized upon confirmation of the
Company’ s power usage by the electricity provider and billed at the rates outlined in each customer contract on a monthly
basis . The customer contracts contain variable consideration to be allocated to and recognized in the period to which the
consideration relates. Usually this is when it is invoiced, rather than obtaining an estimation of variable consideration at the
beginning of the customer contracts. Inexehange-F- 14 NOTE 2: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont.)
Revenue recognition (Cont.) The Company also has an energy management business to generate revenue when the
Company adapts 1ts power usage to the real- tlme needs of the power grid. Energy management revenue consists of

revenue for pow urtailing power usage-inresponse-to-instanees-othigh
e}eetﬂetty—&ema-nd— and through a power prlclng arrangement the-Companyreeetvesnet-energy benefits-from-the-grid-.

Revenue for curtailing power is recognized over the period eftime-that the services are being provided. The Company estimates
the amount of curtailable power and the expected payment for that curtailment and recognizes revenue based on the proportion
of the service that has been provided. In this arrangement, the Company is considered the principal and revenue is recognized on
a gross basis. Revenue through the Company’ s power pricing arrangement is recognized over the period eftime-that the
services are being provided. The Company estimates the amount of energy available for sale and the expected payment for that
energy, and recognizes revenue based on the proportion of the service that has been provided. In this arrangement, the Company
is considered the principal and revenue is recognized on a gross basis. Equtpmentsates-The Company had-previoustyearned
reventies-has a contract with mining pools and has undertaken the performance obligation of providing computing power
in exchange for non- cash consideration in the from— form the-sale-of earlier-generatton-digital enrreney-assets. The
provision of computing power is the only performance obligation in the Company’ s contract with its pool operators.
Where the cons1derat10n recelved is varlable (for example, due to payment only belng made upon successful mining tnits
d 2, it Revenuefromthe
sa-}e—e-H-I-ardware—li reco;cmzed upen—tr&nsfeﬁ)-feeﬁtre-l-e-ﬁwhen 1t is hlghly probable that the varlablhty is resolved
Hardware-to-the-eustomer—At-the-date-of sate-, which is generally when the net-beek-digital asset is received. The Company
measures the non- cash consideration received at the fair market valuc is-expensed-ineost-of reventues-the digital asset
received. Management estimates fair value on a daily basis, as the quantity of digital assets received multiplied by the
price quoted on the exchange that the Company uses to dispose of digital assets . Cost of revenue consists primarily of
expenses that are directly related to providing the Company’ s service to its paying customers. These primarily consist of costs
associated with operating our ee—leeatterr-colocation facilities such as direct power costs, energy costs, freight costs and
material costs related to digital enrreney-asset mining. F- +8-15 Income taxes Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and
liability method. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences
between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and operating
loss and tax credit carryforwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to
taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred
tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date. A
valuation allowance may be established to reduce the deferred tax asset to the level at which it is “ more likely than not ™ that




the tax asset or benefits will be realized. Realization of tax benefits of deductible temporary differences and operating loss
carryforwards depends on having sufficient taxable income of an appropriate character within the carryback or carryforward
periods. The Company recognizes the effect of income tax positions only if those positions are more likely than not of being
sustained upon review by the taxing authority. Recognized income tax positions are measured at the largest amount that is
greater than 50 % likely of being realized. Changes in recognition or measurement are reflected in the period in which the
change in judgment occurs. Functional currency All subsidiaries of Company have a functional currency of United States dollar
(““ USD ”) with the exceptions of MIG No. 1 Pty Ltd (on March 19, 2024, MIG No. 1 Pty Ltd was placed into a court appointed
liquidation and wind- up process ) , Mawson SPL (on April 29, 2024, Mawson SPL as-was
events-placed into a Australian court appointed liquidation and wind- up process ) and Mawson AU (on April 23 . 2024,
the Australian entity Mawson AU was placed mto a Australlan court appomted llquldatlon and wind- up process) and
Cosmos Trading Pty Ltd and G o e-3)3-whose functional currency is
the Australian Dollar (“ AUD ”) ?he—ﬁnaner&l—sf&temeﬂts-Assets and llablhtles of Austrahan entities are foretgn-bustnesses
have-been-translated into USD at earrentexchange rates for-in effect on the consolidated balance sheet #tems-dates. Revenue
and at-expense accounts are translated using thc monthly average exchange rate-rates during the period for-ineome
statementitems-. Translation of all the consolidated companies’ financial records into USD is required due to the reporting
currency for these consolidated financial statements presented as USD and the functional currency of the parent company being
that of AU-B—USD Tran%latlon adju%tmenti are accumulated in other comprehensive income (loss) —Revenue-and-expense
v ehe rear-. Gains or losses on foreign currency transactions and translation

adjustment% in hlghly mﬂatlonary economies are recorded as income in the period in which they are incurred. Segment
Reporting Operating segments are defined as components of an enterprise about which separate financial information is
available that is evaluated regularly by the chief operating decision maker, or decision — making group in deciding how to
allocate resources and in assessing performance. Our-ehief The Company operates as one opcrating deeistor—segment and
uses net income as a measure of profit or loss on a consolidated basis in making greup-decisions regarding resource
allocation and performance assessment. Additionally, the Company’ s CODM regularly reviews the Company’ s
expenses on a consolidated basis. The financial metrics used by the CODM help make key operating decisions, such as
determination of purchases and significant acquisitions and allocation of budget between cost of revenues, general and
administrative and research and development expenses. The Company does not evaluate performance or allocate
resources based on segment assets, and therefore such information is eempesed-ofnot presented in the ehiefexeettive
offteer-notes to the financial statements . We currently operate in one segment surretnding-our-digital-eurreney-mining
operation. F- 49-16 Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, cash held
with digital earrerey-asset exchanges, and other short- term and highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and have original maturities of three months or less. Digital eurrenretes-assets are included in current assets in
the consolidated balance sheets. Digital earrenetes-assets are classified as indefinite- lived intangible assets in accordance with
ASC 350, Intangibles — Goodwill and Other, and are accounted for in connection with the Company”’ s revenue recognition
policy detailed above. The following table presents the Company’ s digital earrerey-assets (bitcoin) activities for the years
ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622- December 31, 2024 2023 2622-Opening number of bitcoin held 0. 00 0. 92-00
Number of bitcoin received 214. 68 74 1. 33 5342-59-Number of bitcoin sold ( 214. 68) ( 741. 33 H343—5+) Closing number
of bitcoin held 0. 00 0. 00 Digital earreretes-assets are not amortized but assessed for impairment annually, or more frequently,
when events or changes in circumstances occur indicating that it is more likely than not that the indefinite- lived asset is
impaired. Impairment exists when the carrying amount exceeds its fair value. In testing for impairment, the Company has the
option to first perform a qualitative assessment to determine whether it is more likely than not that an impairment exists. If it is
determined that it is not likely that an impairment exists, a quantitative impairment test is not necessary. If the Company
concludes otherwise, it is required to perform a quantitative impairment test. To the extent an impairment loss is recognized, the
loss establishes the new cost basis of the asset. Subiequent reversal of impairment losses is not permitted. The Company’ s
policy is to dispose of bitcoin received from mining operations at-the-earliestoppertunity-soon after it receives it , therefore the
holding period is minimal, usually no more than a few days. Due to the short period for which bitcoin is held prior to sale and
the consequent small numbers held, the risk of impairment is not material. No impairment charges have been recorded during
the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2622-. F- 26-17 Fair value of financial instruments The Company accounts
for financial instruments under ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements. Fhis-statement-defines-fair-Fair value ;establishes-is
deﬁned as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability framewerkformeasuring-fair-valae

in generalty-aceepted-aceounting prineiplesrand- an expands-diselosures-about-fair-valie-orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurements— measurement date —To-inerease-eonsisteney-and-eomparability-in fair-valie-measturements;
a principal or most advantageous market. ASC 820 establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value into three levels as follows: Level 1 — quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities; Level 2 — observable inputs other than Level 1, quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in
active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets and liabilities in markets that are not active, and model- derived
priees-valuations whose significant inputs and are-ebservable-or-whese-significant value drivers are observable in active
markets ; and-Level 3 — assets and liabilities whose significant value drivers are unobservable. Observable inputs are based on
market data obtained from independent sources, while unobservable inputs are based on the Company’ s market assumptions.
Unobservable inputs require significant management judgment or estimation. In some cases, the inputs used to measure an asset
or liability may fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy. In those instances, the fair value measurement is required to
be classified using the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Such determination requires
significant management judgment. Fair value measured of December 31 , 2024 Total Total Level 1 Total Level 2 Total Level




3 Derivative asset $ 2, 884, 984-- § 2, 884, 984 Fair value measured at December 2023 Total Total Level 1 Total Level 2
Total Level 3 Derivative aqset $4,058,088-- % 4,058, 088 Eairv

Fair Value of ﬁnanc1al instruments (Cont ) Level 3 A%set% In June 2022 the Company entered mto a Pewer—power Supply
supply Agreement-agreement (“ PSA ”) with Energy Harbor LLC (“ Energy ), the energy supplier to the Company” s
Midland, Pennsylvania facility, to provide the delivery of a fixed portion of the total amount of electricity for a fixed price
through te-December 2026. There were #we-five amendments to the contract with Energy Harbor H=€-entered into in November
2023 and, December 2023, both-January 2024, April 2024 and May 2024. All the contracts were to purchase additional
electricity at a fixed price for the months of December 2023 and-, January 2024, February 2024, April 2024, May 2024 and
June 2024. If the Midland, Pennsylvania facility uses more electricity than contracted, the cost of the excess is incurred at a
new price quoted by Energy HarborE€-. While the Company ﬁrafxages—epef&&ng—eesfs—partlc1pates m energy management
programs at the-its Midland, Pennsylvania facility tn-pa

mardeet, the Company does not consider such actions as tradlng activities. That is is, the Company does not engage in @peculatlon
in the power market as part of its ordinary activities. Because the sale of any electricity under a curtailment program allows for
net settlement, the Company has determined the PSA Power-SupplyAgreement-meects the definition of a derivative under ASC
815, Derivatives and Hedging. However, because the Company has the ability to sell the power back to the grid rather than take
physical delivery, physical delivery is not probable through the entirety of the contract and therefore, the Company does not
believe the normal purchases and normal sales scope exception applies to the PSA Pewer-Supply-Agreement- Accordingly, the
PSA Power-Supply-Agreement-(the non- hedging derivative contract) is recorded at estimated fair value each reporting period
with the change in the fair value recorded in “ change in fair value of derivative asset ” in the consolidated statements of
operations. The PSA Pewer-Supply-Agreement-was classified as a derivative asset beginning in the quarter ended June
September 30, 2022, and measured at fair value on the date of the PSA Power-Supply-Agreement, with changes in fair value
recognized in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations. The estimated fair value of the Company’ s derivative
asset is classified in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy due to the significant unobservable inputs utilized in the valuation.
Specifically, the Company’ s discounted cash flow estimation models contain quoted commodity exchange spot and forward
prices and are adjusted for basis spreads for load zone- to- hub differentials through the term of the PSA Pewer-Supply
Agreement, which expires in December 2026. In addition, the Company adopted a discount rate of approximately 20 % above
the terminal value of the observable market inputs, but also includes unobservable inputs based on qualitative judgment related
to company- specific risk factors. The terms of the PSA Pewer-Supply-Agreement-require pre- payment of collateral, calculated
as forward cost based on the market cost rate of electricity versus the fixed price stated in the contract. Equity method
investments Equity investments are accounted for under the equity method if we are able to exercise significant influence, but
not control, over an investee. Our share of the earmings-er-losses as reported by the investees is classified as #reeme-loss from
equity investees method investments on our consolidated statements of operations. The investments are evaluated for
impairment annually and when facts and circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. If a decline in
fair value is determined to be other- than- temporary, an impairment charge is recorded in our consolidated statements of
operations. The Company has had a 34. 9 % holding in Tasmania Data Infrastructure Pty Ltd. ( TDI ) through its
subsidiary Mawson AU . During the year ended December 31, 2024, the investment was written off as part of the
deconsolidation of Mawson AU (on April 23, 2024, the Australian entity Mawson AU was placed into a Australian court
appointed liquidation and wind- up process). During the year ended December 31, 2023, there—- the was-Company

recogmzed an 1mpa1rment reeegmzed—loss on ettﬂts mve%tment in TDI of $ L. 84-8 m11110n :Phe—rmpamﬁeﬂt—ﬁms-reeegmfed-eﬂ

credlt risk Financial instruments that potentlally subject the Company to concentrations of Credlt rlsk consist principally of cash;
and cash equivalents and-marketable-seeurtttes- Cash and cash equivalents and-restrieted-banldepeosits-are invested in banks. If
the counterparty completely failed to perform in accordance with the terms of the contract, the maximum amount of loss to the
Company would be the balance. Management believes that the financial institutions that hold the Company’ s investments are
financially sound and, accordingly, minimal credit risk exists with respect to these investments. The Company has no off-
balance- sheet concentration of credit risk such as foreign exchange contracts, option contracts or other foreign hedging
arrangements. Property , Plant, and Equipment Property, plant and equipment (“ PP & E ) are stated at cost, net of
accumulated depreciation. All other repair and maintenance costs are charged to operating expenses as incurred. The present
value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in the cost of the respective asset if the
recognition criteria for a provision are met. Property-and-equipmentPP & E transferred from customers is initially measured at
the fair value at the date on which control is obtained. Property-and-equipment-PP & E are depreciated ona %traight line or
declining balance basis based on the asset classification, over their useful lives to the economic entity commencing from the
time the assets arrive at their destination where they are ready for use —ow-—eostassets-are-eapitalized-andimmediately
depreetated-. Depreciation is calculated over the following estimated useful lives: Asset class Useful life Depreciation Method
Fixtures 5 years Straight- Line Plant and equipment 10 years Straight- Line Modular data center 5 years Declining Motor
vehicles 5 years Straight- Line Computer equipment 3 years Straight- Line Computational and Processing machinery (Miners) 2
years Straight- Line Transformers 15 years Straight- Line Leasehold improvements Shorter of useful life or lease term Straight-
-I:mePfepeny—aﬁd—equfpﬁaeﬂt—Llne PP & E are derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset is included in the consolidated statement of
operations. The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of prepetty-and-equipment PP & E are reviewed at
each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. The Company’ s long- lived assets are reviewed for



impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable.
The Reeoverability-recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset
to the future undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated by the assets. If such an asset is considered to be impaired, the
impairment to be recognized is measured by the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its fair value. Assets
to be disposed of are reported at the lower of the carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell. F- 23-20 The Company follows
ASC 718- 10, Compensation- Stock Compensation. The Company expenses stock = based compensation to employees and non-
employees over the requisite service period based on the grant- date fair value of the awards. The Company determines the grant
date fair value of options using the Trinomial Lattice Method. The assumptions used in calculating the fair value of stock- based
awards represent management’ s best estimates and involve inherent uncertainties and the application of management’ s
judgment. These assumptions are the expected stock volatility, the risk — free interest rate, the expected life of the option, and
the expected forfeiture rate. Expected volatility computes stock price volatility over expected terms based on its historical
common stock trading prices. Risk — free interest rates are Calculated based on the yleld of a 3- year or 5- year United States
Trea@ury constant maturlty bond - : g ;

ASC 842, Leases and determlne% 1f an arrangement is a lease at 1ncept10n U%mg ASC 842, leases are claqilhed as operatmg or
finance leases on the balance sheet as a right of use (“ ROU ”) assets and lease liabilities within current liabilities and long- term
liabilities on our consolidated balance sheets. ROU assets and lease liabilities are recognized based on the present value of the
future minimum lease payments over the lease term at commencement date. The Company’ s lease does not provide an implicit
rate and therefore the Company measured the ROU asset and lease obligation based upon the present value of future minimum
lease payments. The Company’ s incremental borrowing rate is estimated based on a risk- free discount rate for the lease,
determined using a period comparable with that of the lease term and in a similar economic environment. The lease terms may
include options to extend or terminate the lease when it is reasonably certain that we will exercise such options. The Company
does not record leases on the consolidated balance sheets with a term of one year or less. The Company does not separate lease
and non- lease components but rather account for each separate component as a single lease component for all underlying classes
of assets. Where leases contain escalation clauses, rent abatements, or concessions, such as rent holidays and landlord or tenant
incentives or allowances, the Company applies them in the determination of straight- line operating lease cost over the lease
term. Accounts receivable The Company’ s Aeeounts-accounts receivable mainty-balance consists of amounts due from ee—its
digital -}eeat-ten—colocatlon customers. 5Phey—~ The Company are-mitiallyreeorded-records accounts receivable at the invoiced
amount less upenthe-sale-ofgoods nd-- an do-notbear-interest-allowance for any potentially
uncollectable accounts under the current expected credlt loss (“ CECL ”) impairment model and presents the net
amount of the receivable expected to be collected . The Company performs ongoing credit evaluation of its customers and
management closely monitors outstanding recelvables based on factors Surroundlng the credlt risk of ipecmc customers,
historical trends, and othel 1nf0rm"lt10n : ; ; : ; ;

WrH-ne{—be-eeHeefed—ts-reeefded—F 25—21 Account% recelvable (Cont ) Accounts recelvable net conswtq of the tollowmg
December 31, 2024 2023 2622-Trade receivables $ 15,367,383 $ 12, 304, 830 $40,-663--03+Goods and service tax refund 346
557 45:-845-Provisions (200, 000) (256-200 , 000) $ 15,167, 729 $ 12, 105, 387 $40;458076-Recent Accounting
Pronouncements From time to time, new accounting pronouncements are issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (
“FASB ”) or other standard setting bodies and adopted by the Company as of the specified effective date. Unless otherwise
discussed, the impact of recently issued standards that are not yet effective will not have a material impact on the Company’ s



financial position or results of operations upon adoption. In November 2023, the FASB issued ASU 2023- 07, Segment
Reporting (Topic 280): Improvements to Reportable Segment Disclosures. The new FASB guidance requires incremental
disclosures in annual and interim periods related to a public entity’ s reportable segments (particularly on segment
expenses) but does not change the definition of a segment, the method for determining segments, or the criteria for
aggregating operating segments into reportable segments. The new guidance is effective for annual financial statements
of public entities for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2023 (e. g., in 2024 year- end financial statements for
calendar year entities) and in interim periods in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2024 (e. g., in 2025 interim
financial statements for calendar year entities) and should be adopted retrospectively unless impracticable. The
Company adopted ASU 2023- 07 in 2024. In November 2024, the FASB issued ASU 2024- 04, Debt — Debt with
Conversion and Other Options (Subtopic 470- 20), Induced Conversions of Convertible Debt Instruments. This ASU
includes amendments to the guidance to determine whether the settlement of a convertible debt instrument should be
accounted for as an induced conversion or an extinguishment. In June 2022, the FASB issued ASU 2022- 03, Fair Value
Measurements of Equity Securities Subject to Contractual Sale Restrictions. ASU 2022- 03 amended Example 6, Case A
in ASC 820 and further clarified within ASC 820 that a contractual restriction on the sale of an equity security (for
example, an underwriter lock- up agreement) is not considered part of the unit of account of an equity security. As a
result, such restriction is not considered in measuring the fair value of the equity security. In terms of transition, there is
a notable distinction between investment companies, as defined in ASC 946, and non- investment companies. For non-
investment companies, ASU 2022- 03 is applied prospectively with adjustments resulting from the initial adoption
recognized in earnings and disclosed. For investment companies, ASU 2022- 03 is applied prospectively to any
contractual sale restriction that is executed or modified on or after the date of adoption. An investment company that
holds an equity security subject to a contractual sale restriction that was executed prior to adoption would continue to
account for the equity security using its existing accounting policy, until the contractual restriction expires or is modified.
ASU 2022- 03 is effective for public business entities for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2023, and interim
periods within those fiscal years. For all other entities, the guidance is effective for fiscal years beginning after December
15, 2024, and interim periods within those fiscal years. Early adoption is permitted for both interim and annual financial
statements that have not yet been issued or made available for issuance. In December 2023, the FASB issued ASU 2023-
08, Intangibles — Goodwill and Other — Crypto Assets (Topic 3580- 60): Accounting for and Disclosure of Crypto Assets.
Under the new guidance, an entity would be required to subsequently measure certain crypto assets at fair value, with changes in
fair value included in net income in each reporting period. The propeses-proposed set of rules would also require presentation
of crypto assets and related fair value changes separately in the balance sheet and income statement and require various
disclosures in interim and annual periods. The Company does not expect the adoption of ASU 2023- 08 to have a material
impact on its consolidated financial statements since the Company’ s policy is to dispose of bitcoin received from mining
operations at the earliest opportunity, therefore the holding period is minimal, usually no more than a few days. ASU 2023- 08
is LHLLII\L or fiscal years bwmmng after December 15, 2( 24 and interim periods \\nhm those fiscal years. Early-adoption-is

-ﬁsea-l—ye&rs—E&rly—aéepﬁefﬁs—pefmf&ed—Tlm ( ompany has—wﬂl adepfed——— adopt t-hts—ASU 2023 08 on January 1, 2025 F-
22 NOTE 3: SUBSIDIARY DECONSOLIDATION The Company currently operates facilities in the United States of
America and does it-did-not have a-matertal-impaet-on-operating sites in Australia. MIG No. 1 Liquidation and
Deconsohdatlon of an Austrahan entlty MIG N0 1 On March 19 2024 tl e C ompam s eeﬂse-l-rd&ted—ﬁﬁaﬁewl—sfatefneﬂ%s

O A NCA D A A A A . A 1\ O A O nta adiainicteo
and-- an Australian entity Deconsolidation-On-Oetober30-, was placed into an Australian court 2623;-the-direetors-of
MawsenAb-appointed voluntary-administrators-liquidation due to MawsenAU-it being deemed insolvent in Australia .
Voluntary-administration-The liquidation of an insolvent company in Australia allows an independent registered
Australian liquidator (the liquidator) to take control of the Australian entity so its affairs can be wound up in an orderly
and fair way and to beneﬁt credltors In the instance of MIG N0 1,iti Is an Austrahan court hquldatlon, where a
liquidator p ; alta Fpote h ofs

fake—eeﬁtfe-l-e-ﬁlhe Austrahan court fe}evaﬂ-t—eﬁ&fy—rm%es{-rgate—zmd-repeﬁ—m wmd up ered-rtefs—abeﬂ-t—fhe—re}eva-rﬁ—eﬂ&fy—s




ad-mnﬂsff&ﬁeﬁ— As a 1uuh of thls court appomted llquldatlon Mawson2 tith it 0 7, the
Company ceded authority for managing the-business-this Australian entity to the A&m&&aﬁefs—Australlan llquldator and
the Company could not carry on MawsenrAH-MIG No. 1 ° s activities in the ordinary course of business withett-the
Admintstrators—approval-. For these reasons, it was concluded that the Company had test-ceded control of MawsenrAJ-MIG
No. 1, and no longer had significant influence over MawsenrAt-white-this Australian entity since the Admintstrators-were
liquidator was in control of the-Company-this Australian entity . Therefore, MawsenrA5-MIG No. 1 loss of control was
effective with-the-when it was placed into Australian court appeintment— appointed liquidation e%fheﬁdﬁﬁnrs&afefs—on
Oeteber30-March 19 , 2023-2024 , and was deconsolidated at this date, in accordance with ASC 810- 10- 15. Deeeﬁse-l-td&t-teﬁ
ef MawsenAb-In order to deconsolidate MawsenA-this Australian entity, MIG No. 1 , the carrying v dlULS of the assets,
liabilities and equity components previously recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income of Mawsen-AE-MIG No.
1 were removed from the Company’ s consolidated balance sheet as of Oetober368-March 19 , 2623-2024 , in accordance with
ASC 810, Consolidation. The net impact of removing the assets and liabilities resulted in a loss on deconsolidation of $ 12.
4 million being recorded in the consolidated statement of operations. Investment in MIG No. 1 The investment in MIG
No. 1 held by the Company was accounted for under ASC 321, Investments — Equity Securities as it was concluded the
Company did not have significant influence over MIG No. 1 from March 19, 2024. The fair value of MIG No. 1 was
estimated to be $ 0 at the time of the deconsolidation, MIG No. 1 had negative equity, and its directors have no intention
to carry out this business in the future. Australian entity MIG No. 1 Secured Loan Facility Agreement MIG No. 1 has a
Secured Loan Facility Agreement with Marshall. The loan matured in February 2024 and the total outstanding balance
is $ 9. 9 million as of December 31, 2024. The Company is included as a guarantor of this loan. F- 23 NOTE 3:
SUBSIDIARY DECONSOLIDATION (Cont.) Liquidation and Deconsolidation of an Australian entity Mawson AU Pty
Ltd On April 23, 2024, the Company’ s Australian entity and a subsidiary, Mawson AU was placed into an Australian
court appointed liquidation. As a result of this court appointed liquidation, the Company ceded authority for this
Australian entity to the Australian liquidator. It was concluded that the Company had ceded control of Mawson AU, and
no longer had significant influence over this Australian entity since the liquidator was in control of this Australian entity.
Therefore, Mawson AU loss of control was effective when it was placed into Australian court appointed liquidation on
April 23, 2024, and was deconsolidated at this date, in accordance with ASC 810- 10- 15. In order to deconsolidate this
Australian entity, Mawson AU, the carrying values of the assets, liabilities and equity components previously recognized
in accumulated other comprehensive income of Mawson AU were removed from the Company’ s consolidated balance
sheet as of April 23, 2024, in accordance with ASC 810, Consolidation. The net impact of removing the assets and liabilities
ILSLlllLd ina gain on ([LLOHS()]IddIlOH 0f$ 3.5 mllllon bung ereditedto-recorded in the consolidated statement of operations of
i htehte hange-. [nvestment in the Australian entity Mawson AU Pty Ltd The
investment in thls Australian entlty, Mawson AU held by the C ompany was accounted for under ASC 321, Investments —
Equity Securities as it was concluded the Company did not have significant influence ov er Mawson AU from Oetober36-April
23 %92—3—2024 Tt he 411 value of Maw son AU was estimated to bu % sasat the time of the deconsolidation ;s MawsenAbt-had
g g and-ts-direetorshave o Attorto out-businessinthe-fature- Treatment of 1nluwmpdnv balances and
Seetlfed-efed-l-te-PT he Company had total receivables ow L(I from Mawson AU of A-$ #8-3 . 26-8 million . In accordance with
ASC 310, these receivables have been treated as external receivables from the date of liquidation, April 23, 2024 and
written off in net loss on the deconsolidation in the consolidated financial statements. Liquidation and Deconsolidation of
and-- an Australian entity Mawson Services Pty Ltd On April 29, 2024, the Company’ s Australian entity and a
subsidiary, Mawson SPL was placed into an Australian court appointed liquidation. As a result of this court appointed
liquidation, the Company ceded authority for this Australian entity to the Australian liquidator. For these reasons, it
was concluded that the Company had totat-ceded control of Mawson SPL, and no longer had significant influence over
this Australian entity since the liquidator was in control of this Australian entity. Therefore, Mawson SPL loss of control
was effective when it was placed into Australian court appointed liquidation on April 29, 2024, and was deconsolidated
at this date, in accordance with ASC 810- 10- 15. In order to deconsolidate this Australian entity, Mawson SPL, the
carrying values of the assets, liabilitics ewed-te-and equity components previously recognized in accumulated other

comprehensive income of Mawson SPL were removed from the Ab-amounting-to-A-$55-95-mithen—Fhe-Company
consolidated balance sheet has— as utilized-itsrightto-offset-to-write-off— of the-reeetvables-and-payables-April 29, 2024 in
accordance with MawsenAH-ASC 810, Consohdatlon Tlu net 1mpau of &efeeegm-zrﬁg—removmg fhese——— the assets
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gain on deconsohdatlon of § 5—0 682 mllllon bemg recorded in the consohdated statement of operations . I'- 24 Mawson
Services Pty Ltd 27 NOTE3—SUBSIDARY-DECONSOHDAHONLCont.) Investment in the Australian entity Mawson
Services Pty Ltd The investment in this Australian entity, Mawson SPL, held by the Company was accounted for under
ASC 321, Investments — Equity Securities as it was concluded the Company did not have significant influence over
Mawson SPL from April 29, 2024. The fair value of Mawson SPL was estimated to be $ 0 at the time of the
deconsolidation. Summary of the impact on consolidated statement of operations Oetober36-Year ended December 31 , 2024
2023 Deconsolidation gain ef(less)- MIG No. 1 $ (12, 359, 353) $- Deconsolidation gain (loss)- Mawson AU $-(278, 263)-
Deconsolidation gain (loss)- Mawson SPL 193, 520- Deconsolidation gain (loss)- Mawson PL- 3, 797, 784 Foreign exchange
gain en-write-offofintergroup-balanees-(loss)- Mawson PL- 5. 675, 492-195 Total gain (loss) on deconsolidation $ (12, 444,
097) $9,472,976 F-25 NOTE 4: —BASIC AND DILUTED LOSS PER SHARE: Net loss per common share is calculated in
accordance with ASC 260, Earnings Per Share. Basic loss per share is computed by dividing net loss attributed to Mawson by




the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding during the period . Diluted loss per share is computed
by dividing net loss attributed to Mawson by the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding plus
the dilutive effect of unvested restricted stock units (“ RSUs ”), and outstanding warrants and options . The computation
of diluted net loss per share does not include dilutive common stock equivalents in the weighted average shares outstanding, as
they would be anti- dilutive. Securities that could potentially dilute loss per share in the future that were not included in the
computation of diluted loss per share as of December 31, 2024, and 2023 ;and2022-, are as follows: Year ended December 31,
2024 2023 2022-Warrants to purchase eemmen-Common steel-Stock 4, 480, 839 4, 904, 016 2:-825;278-Options to purchase
eommoen-Common steek-Stock 3, 500, 417 4-3 ;| 500, 417 9+0-Restrieted-Stoek—Units-RSUs Z-issued under a management
equity plan 14, 250,559 5, 317, 938 426-22 , 94+4-231, 815 13, 722, 371 3;2545462-The following table sets forth the
computation of basic and diluted loss per share: Year ended December 31, 2024 2023 2622-Numerator: Net loss attributed to
Mawson common shareholders $ ( 46, 131, 701) $ ( 60, 421, 822 3$52,762,308-) Denominator: Weighted average common
shares- basic and dlluted 17 828 761 15 659, 241 -12—695—654—Net loss per share of Common Stock, basrc and d11uted $ (2.

PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT Property ! plant and equrpment net, con%l%ted ofthe following: December 31,
20623-2024 December 31, 20222023 Plant and equipment $ 4-10 , 973-404 , +94-241 $ 4, 263973 | 662-191 Computer
equipment 176, 151 125, 695 +63;-066-Furnttare-&fixtares—29;492-Processing machines (Miners) 77, 447, 520 102, 984, 186
+03;33F-H9-Modular data center 22, 103, 986 25, 449, 717 9-H3534-Motor Vehicles 199, 246 326-199 , 764-246
Transformers 9, 344, 544 9, 843, 359 8;886;576-Low- cost assets 1, 069, 260 998, 815 995;292-Assets under construction - 4,
764, 051 H5-592-582-1 easehold improvements 487, 527 487, 527 Total 121 232 475 149, 825, 787 -I-49—796—I-48—Le§§
Accumulated depreciation ( 93, 161, 060) ( 92, 085, 496) a € a 3 or-sale
Property , plant and equipment, net $ 28, 071, 415 $ 57, 740, 291 -$—9-I—9—I-6—498—The Company mcurred deprecratron and
amortization expense in the amounts of $ 17. 9 million and $ 38. 1 88-mithenand-$63-—26-million for the years ended
December 31, 2024 and 2023 a-nd%@%%— reipectlvely There were no 1mpa1rment chargeq for the year—years ended December
31 2024 and 2023 —There-v : ; e ae -

d 3 Re NOTE 6:=
SECURITY DEPOSITS The Company ] %ecurlty depo%lt% consist of amount% pald by the Company to location providers in
case of any event of default. The security deposits are refundable to the Company when location provider services cease or are
cancelled. Security deposits are included in non- current assets on the consolidated balance sheets as such amounts are not
expected to be refunded for at least twelve months after December 31, 2623-2024 . As of December 31, 2024, and 2023 ;and
2022~ the Company had $ 0. 42-5 million and $ 2-0 . 524 million, respectively, in refundable security deposits. F=29-NOTE 7: -
LEASES The Company’ s operating leases are for digital asset mining sites and its finance leases which are primarily related to
plant and equipment. The Company leases 6-8 - acres of land in Midland Pennsylvania under a lease which began-was
amended and renewed in Oetober-September 26242024 for an additional thirty- six months with-. The lease can be
renewed the-three more times option-to-exereise-forur— for an additional nine three—yeat-years extenstons-in total . F- 27
NOTE 7: LEASES (Cont.) Effective May 24, 2023, Mawson Bellefonte LLC entered into a lease agreement for a 9, 918
square foot developed mmmg f"tcrhty in Bellefonte PA. The term of the lease is for two year% and seven months, with an optron
toextendforﬁveyear% A qrares—Propert h 08 A-the

eemp-Ie’feIry—eut—e-Pt-he—faeﬁ-rw—Effectrve May 1, 2023, Mawson Ohro LLC took an a%srgnment ofa lease agreement f01
approximately 64, 600 square feet for an undeveloped site in Corning, Ohio. The term of the lease is five ferfour-years, with an
option to extend for five years. Other than the foregoing leases, the Company does not lease any other material assets. The
Company behevei that the@e facrhtle% are suitable and adequate for its operatronq as currentIy conducted and as currentIy

foreseen.
eenﬂnefeta-l—lry—reaseﬂab-}e—rate—The Company S Ieaqe co%t@ recogmzed in the con%ohdated statements of operatronq and
comprehensive loss consist of the following: For the Years Ended December 31, 2024 2023 2022-Operating lease charges (1)
$1,698771 ,383-150 $ 1, 608-698 . 695-383 Finance lease charges: Amortization of right- of- use assets 253, 432 32, 574 28;
662-Interest on lease obligations 56, 086 7, 474 £-567-(1) Included in Selling, General & Administrative Expenses. The
following is a schedule of the Company’ s lease liabilities by contractual maturity as of December 31, 2623-2024 : Operating
feases-Leases Finance Leases 2624-2025 $ 1, 569-712 , 549-681 $ 413 38;1762625-599,356-38-, 176 2026 443-1 , 586 +83—15-,
846-044 216, 266 2027 721 , 652270, 570 - Total undiscounted lease obligations 2-4 , 684-569 , 746-91-295 629 , 368-442
Less: imputed interest (252774 , 244-349 ) (862 , 445970 ) Total present value of lease liabilities 23 , 432-794 , 526-83-946
566 ,223-472 | ess: current portion of lease liabilities 1, 4+6-270 , 3+0-33-989 358 , 659-515 Non- current lease liabilities $ +2 ,
816523 | 216957 $ 56-207 , +64-957 Other lease information as of December 31, 2023-2024 : Operating feases-Leases Finance
Leases Operating cash out flows from leases $ 1, 585-899 , 895426 $ 38-330 , +76-067 Weighted- average remaining lease term
(years) 2. +82-65 1 . 46-34 Weighted- average discount rate (%) 9-8 . +6 % #13 . 54 % F-36-28 NOTE §: =TRADE AND
OTHER PAYABLES December 31, 2024 2023 2622-Trade payables $ 20, 646,599 $ 17, 042, 206 $2:-823:-954-Accrued
expenses 1, 845,347 4, 011, 991 234644F8-Deferred income 10,977, 678 7, 109, 717 25-800;,-806-Employee payables 2, 093,
219 593, 834 4;-884;-89F-Tax payables 3, 835,318 3, 755, 3654-$ 39 , 702-398 , 632-160 $ 32, 513, 113 $46; 57206+ NOTE
9: —LOANS Outstanding loans as of December 31, 2023-2024 : Maturity Date Rate Loan Balance Marshall Feb- 24 17. 00 % $
9,462-868 , 726-977 Celsius Aug- 23 14. 00 % 89 , 536-659 , 366-429 W Capital Mar- 23 20. 00 % 1, 445276 , +78-642




Convertible notes Jun- 23 28. 00 % 568114 , 494-706 Total Loans Outstanding 20,49-919 , 754 352,521 ess: current portion
of long- term loans ( 20,4+9-919 , 754 352-752-) Long- term loans, excluding net of current pomon $- DLSLIlpll()n of
Outstanding Loans The Company is included Marsha ; to- yEtd
Ne—l—Pfy—I:td—was—asp-}aeed—rﬂ-te—aguarantorof tqtidati trd—tp diselosed-n
subseqtuentevents)enterednto-a Sccured Loan Facility Agreement (the « Marshall Loan ”) by MIG No 1 W 11h Marshall
Investments GCP Pty Ltd ATF for the Marshall Iny estments MIG PtyEted-Trust (collectively, “ Marshall ) The loan
matured in February 2024 and bears interest at a rate of 12 % per annum (with an overdue rate provision of an additional
500bps), payable monthly with interest payments eemmeﬂerﬁg—lhdl commenced in December 2021. This loan facility is secured
by direct assets of MIG No. 1 P#Etd-and a general security agreement given by the Company. Principal repayments began
during November 2022. The outstanding balance including interest is $ 9. +6-9 million as of December 31, 2024, all of which is
currently classified as a current liability. There has been no principal and interest payments made since May 2023 . See
Note 10 — Commitments and Contingencies, Marshall Loan and W Capital Loan. F- 29 NOTE 9: LOANS (Cont.)
Description of Outstanding Loans (Cont.) The Company is included as a guarantor of a Secured Loan Facility
Agreement (the “ W Capital Loan ”) for working capital by Mawson PL with W Capital Advisors Pty Ltd for the W
Capital Advisors Fund (collectively, “ W Capital ”). As of December 31, 2024, the balance was AUD $ 2. 0 million (USD $
1. 3 million), all of which is currently classified as a current liability. The W Capital Loan accrues interest daily at a rate
of 12 % per annum (with an overdue rate provision of an additional 800bps). The W Capital Loan expired in March
2023. See Note 10 — Commitments and Contingencies, Marshall Loan and W Capital Loan. On February 23, 2022, Luna
entered into a Digital Colocation Agreement with Celsius Mining LL.C. In connection with this agreement, Celsius
Mining LLC loaned Luna a principal amount of $ 20. 0 million, for the purpose of funding the infrastructure required to
meet the obligations of the Digital Colocation Agreement, for which Luna issued a Secured Promissory Note (the
Celsius Loan ”) for repayment of such amount. The Celsius Loan accrues interest daily at a rate of 12 % per annum
(with an overdue rate provision of an additional 200bps). Luna is required to amortize the loan at a rate of 15 % per
quarter, principal repayments began at the end of September 2022. The Celsius Loan had a maturity date of August 23,
2023. The outstanding balance, including interest, is $ 9. 7 million as of December 31, 2024, all of which is currently
classified as a current liability. See Note 10 — Commitments and Contingencies, Celsius Loan and Colocation Agreement.
On July 8, 2022, the Company issued secured convertible promissory notes to investors in exchange for cash. The
outstanding balance relates to the interest on the convertible note which has been accrued from July 2022 onwards and
therefore the outstandmg balance is $ 0 1 mllllon as of December 31, 2024 , all of w lmh is Llasxmed as a current lmbllnv 2z
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wmatters;-provisions are reviewed and adjusted lo reflect the impact of negotiations, LSllmdlLd seulemenls legal 1ulmg d([\ ice of
legal counsel and other information and events pertaining to a particular matter.Legal costs incurred in connection with loss
contingencies are expensed as incurred. The Company is subject to the various legal proceedings and claims discussed below
fandinNete-D-that have not been fully resolved and that have arisen in the ordinary course of business.In the opinion of
management,there was not at least a reasonable possibility the Company may have incurred a material loss,or a material loss in
excess of a recorded accrual,with respect to loss contingencies.However,the outcome of legal proceedings and claims brought
against the Company is subject to significant uncertainty. Therefore,although management considers the likelihood of such an
outcome to be remote,if one or more of these legal matters were resolved against the Company in a reporting period for amounts
in excess of management’ s expectations,the Company’ s consolidated financial statements for that reporting period could be
materially adversely affected. Fhe-Celsius Mining LLC,et al.vs.Mawson Infrastructure Group,Inc.,et al.On July
13,2022,Celsius Mmmg LLC and Celsius Network LLC and other related entities (collectively,* Celsius ”),filed for
bankruptcy relief under Chapter 11 in the United States Bankruptcy Court for the Southern District of New York,Case
No.22- 10964.In that matter, MIG No. | , which was placed into a court appointed liquidation and wind- up process and
was deconsolidated from the Group on March 19, 2024. On March 19, 2024, Marshall appointed receivers and managers
in Australia under the terms of their security relating to their secured loan facility. The direct assets that secure this loan
include 5, 372 miners and 8 modular data centers (“ MDCs ). These assets are held by MIG No. 1 and therefore were
included in the deconsolidation. The receiver’ s statutory duty includes the obligation to sell the secured assets at market
value or, if market value is not known, at the best price reasonably obtainable to maximize the prospects of there being
sufficient proceeds available to satisfy the balance of the outstanding secured debt. It is therefore expected that this loan
balance will be offset in the future by the amount received from the sale of these miners and MDCs. On June 25, 2024,
Marshall inspected and inventoried the miners and MDCs located at the Company’ s Midland facilities. The Company is
currently not utilizing these miners or MDC:s for its operations and has asked Marshall to take these assets out of the
Company’ s storage. Marshall has not responded to the Company’ s request for these miners and MDCs to be removed
from the Company’ s storage. The Company is reserving all its rights and remedies against Marshall. The W Capital
Loan was originally with Mawson PL and this Australian entity was placed into Australian voluntary administration on
October 30, 2023 and on November 3, 2023, W Capital appointed receivers and managers in Australia under the terms
of their security relating to their working capital facility. The Company has corresponded with W Capital and / or its
representatives, the Company’ s ongoing significant concerns about W Capital and James Manning, a former board
director and Chief Executive Officer of the Company (“ Manning ), being related parties. W Capital has not responded
to the Company’ s concerns in a manner satisfactory to the Company. On October 3, 2024, a proceeding was filed by W
Capital and Marshall against the Company before the Federal Court of Australia, New South Wales, in the matter



entitled, “ W Capital Advisors Pty Ltd , in its capacity as Trustee for the W Capital Advisors Fund, v. Mawson
Infrastructure Group, Inc. ”, No. NSD 1395 /2024. In an effort to force the Company to pay the W Capital and Marshall
loans, W Capital and Marshall sought to have the Company declared insolvent under Australian law on the grounds
that the Company failed to pay W Capital the sums it claims the Company owed it under the aforesaid Australian
judgment. On February 11, 2025, the Australian court declared the Company to be insolvent under Australian law and
appointed an Australian liquidator. This Australian ruling completely disregarded the automatic stay in place as
established by the involuntary Chapter 11 petition described below in this Note 10. The Company has communicated its
objections and concerns to these Australian liquidator and entities. Concurrently with the above Australian litigation, on
December 4, 2024, Marshall, W Capital, and Rayra Pty Ltd, as Trustee for the Mountainview Trust (“ Rayra ” and
together with Marshall and W Capital, collectively, the “ Petitioners ), all Australian entities, concurrently filed an
involuntary Chapter 11 petition in the matter entitled “ In Re Mawson Infrastructure Group, Alleged Debtor ”, Case
No. 1: 24- bk- 12726, pursuant to Chapter 11 of Title 11 of the United States Code against the Company in the United
States Bankruptcy Court, District of Delaware (the “ Involuntary Petition ), seeking a determination of the court to
force the Company into a Chapter 11 proceeding. The Petitioners have claimed in the Involuntary Petition that they
have debts aggregating AUD $ 13. 7 million (approximately USD §$ 8. 9 million). The Company is disputing this and the
validity of the Involuntary Petition and the Petitioners’ debt claims, and expects to and seek other remedies against the
Petitioners for bad faith, pursue sanctions, and other damages as may be allowed by applicable law. On January 10,
2025, the Company filed an answer to the Involuntary Petition. The Company expects to continue to operate as usual
and execute its business plan accordingly. Nonetheless, under applicable federal law, all collection efforts by the
Company’ s creditors, including W Capital and Marshall, are stayed pending final resolution of the Involuntary Petition.
F-31 NOTE 10: COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Cont.) As previously noted, the Company believes that W
Capital and Marshall are using these proceedings in Australia and the United States as a bad faith attempt to gain
leverage in ongoing legal disputes between the parties. The Company believes that W Capital and Marshall were using
the Involuntary Petition and the Australian insolvency proceedings against the Company in an improper attempt to gain
leverage in ongoing legal disputes between the parties. The Company believes that the filing of the Involuntary Petition is
an extension of the ongoing disputes, including with Manning, and a continuation of the pattern of bad faith actions, by
Manning and the Petitioners, with the improper intention of harassing and intimidating the Company. The Company’ s
counsel plans to propound discovery requests to the Petitioners, including the depositions of the Petitioners’ principals.
In addition, Manning, who the Company believes has close ties to these Australian creditors, remains the subject of an
investigation by the Company’ s Audit Committee, including related to his dealings with W Capital — among several
other matters — including current litigation with an entity related to Manning, Vertua Property Inc. (“ Vertua ),
regarding alleged self- dealing, breach of contract, and tortious interference with a business relationship. The Company
had previously reported that it may seek to exit certain or all of its entities and holdings in Australia. The Company
currently operates facilities in the United States of America and does not have any operating sites or assets in Australia.
The Company expects to vigorously pursue sanctions, attorney fees, general and punitive damages against these
Australian Petitioners, as available to the full extent of the law. The Company expects to contlnue to Operate as usual and
execute its business plan accordingly. Luna has not repaid mad stie Muarsha
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Celsius filed an adversary proceeding against Mawson and its subsidiaries Luna and Cosmos, asserting various claims
related to the alleged breach of a Digital Colocation Agreement. Celsius filed for Chapter 11 bankruptcy protection on July
13,2022, Under the Digital €e—eeatien-Colocation Agreement, Celsius Mining LLC advanced $ 15. 33 million to Luna
SquaresEEC-that were held as a deposit. Whether that amount has been forfeited or must be returned to Celsius Mining LLC is
the subject of a dispute between the parties ;refer. Pursuant to a court order dated April 22, 2024, the Celsius civil lawsuit
against Luna and Mawson has been dismissed pursuant to the Company’ s successful motion to compel arbitration. On
July 18, 2024, Celsius Network, LLC filed for arbitration of its claims against the Company with the American
Arbitration Association in the matter entitled Celsius Network Ltd., Celsius Mining LL.C and Ionic Digital Mining LL.C
v. Mawson Infrastructure Group, Luna Squares LL.C and Cosmos Infrastructure LLC- Case 01- 24- 0006- 4462. An
arbitrator was appointed on September 30, 2024 and the parties submitted their respective positions on October 25, 2024
regarding the scheduling of the arbitration. The matter is temporarily stayed as to Mawson pending determination of
automatic stay in favor of the Company as a result of the Involuntary Petition. However, the stay does not apply to Luna
or Cosmos. On January 23, 2025, the arbitrator issued a Partial Final Award (the “ Partial Final Award ) granting in
part Celsius’ claim against Luna on the outstanding promissory notc 2tegal-and-executed by Luna Squares in favor of
Celsius. The Partial Final Award granted Celsius monetary damages in other—- the eentingenetes-amount of $ 8. 1 million,



plus interest and attorney fees. The ruling does not directly affect the Company, and the guarantee of the Company for
further-informatiorr-the promissory note has not been litigated . In addition, the Company’ s counterclaims and damages
against Celsius are still in litigation and the Company continues to expeditiously pursue its counterclaims and damages
against Celsius. F- 32 The Company and / or its applicable subsidiaries have not fulfilled specific payment obligations
related to the Marshall Loan, the W Capital fean-Loan and the Celsius Loan mentioned above. Consequently, the
creditors associated with these debt facilities may initiate actions as allowed by relevant grace periods. This includes the
possibility of opting to expedite the repayment of the principal debt, pursuing legal action against the Company or its
subsidiaries for payment default, raising interest rates to the default or overdue rate, or taking appropriate measures
concerning collateral (including appointing a receiver), if applicable. Flynt On January 8, 2024, a commercial demand
was made by an Australian entity, Flynt ICS Pty Ltd (“ Flynt ), to the Company’ s subsidiary, MIG No. 1, an
Australian entity, for $ 0. 13 million of alleged sums due under a service agreement. As determined by the Audit
Committee’ s investigation into Manning, Flynt is a party related to Manning. The Audit Committee’ s investigation
concluded that Manning had not disclosed such related party transactions to the Company, and Manning has not
cooperated with the Company in its investigation. On March 19, 2024, MIG No. 1 was placed into an Australian court
appointed liquidation and wind- up process. The Company has ongoing concerns about Flynt and Manning being related
parties and lack of disclosure by Flynt and Manning amongst other concerns. Flynt and Manning have not responded to
the Company’ s concerns in a satisfactory to the Company. Blockware On April 19, 2024, a civil suit entitled Blockware
Solutions, LL.C v. Mawson Bellefonte LLC and Mawson Infrastructure Group, Inc. was filed in the US District Court,
Southern District of New York. The parties have unsuccessfully concluded the court’ s Mediation Program and the
matter remains ongoing before the court. On July 16, 2024, the Company filed a civil lawsuit for its claims against
CleanSpark, Inc (CleanSpark ”) and CSRE Properties Sandersville, LLC with the United States District Court for the
Southern District of New York in the matter entitled “ Mawson Infrastructure Group, Inc. and Luna Squares, LLC v.
CleanSpark, Inc. and CSRE Properties Sandersville, LLC ”, Civil Action No. 1: 24- cv- 5379, for at least $ 2. 0 million for
breach of contract of a Bill of Sale dated October 1, 2022, between the parties. The matter is proceeding through the
court system. On September 2-13, 2024, the defendants filed a motion to dismiss the proceedings. The parties briefed their
positions, and a determination remains before the Court. At this time, the matter is pending. On March 16 , 2022,
MawsenAbU-Luna Squares cntered into a lease SeeuredoanFaeilityAgreement-with W-Capital-AdvisersPty-respect to a
property in the City of Sharon, Mercer County, Pennsylvania (the “ Sharon Lease ) with Vertua Property, Inc (“
Vertua ), a subsidiary entity in which Vertua Ltd wrt-h—has a teta-l—lea—n—faerh-ty—ef%rU—D%—Zv—GG—lOO % ownershlp interest
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significant stockholder of Vertua Ltd. On September 6, 2024, Luna Squares filed a praeclpe of llS pendens for the
property leased in Sharon, Pennsylvania in the Court of Common Pleas of Mercer County, Pennsylvania in the matter
entitled “ Luna Squares Property, LL.C v. Vertua Property, Inc. ” under case No 2024- 2332. It did so to also provide
third parties such as Bitfarms Ltd. notice that the property is encumbered by a lease between Luna Property and

Vertua. This property is the subject of a current civil lawsuit between the Company habiity—TFhe-SeeuredoanFaeility
aeerues—mferest—d&ﬂ-y—&t—a—rate—e%l%%—pefanntuﬁ—éwﬁh—an—and Luna Property agamst Vertua evefd-ue—ra-te—preﬁsren—e-ﬁan

fes-peet—e-ﬁthe—faeﬂ-rw— ()n ()LlObLl %9—17 %92—3—2024 Mawse ators-and-ihc Company filed
several clalms in faerh-ty—vw-l—l—be—rnarr&ged—as—p&ﬁ—e-ﬁlhe matter captloned above agamst Vertua, 1nclud1ng claims voluntary
a-for breachfurtheﬁrrferm&&eﬂ—eefweﬁlble—netes—eﬁ—k&y—H%%

greeﬂ-ﬁeld—leases— lease tn—Mrd-l&ﬁd—T%éagreement and wrongful termlnatlon of the lease as w ell as for tortlous
interference with a business relationship. The Company is seeking reinstatement of the lease, compensatory damages,
dlsgorgement of revenue, and exemplary and pumtlve damages, as well as relmbursement for its costs and lltlgatlon
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INCOME TAXES ONINCOMEIneome-oss-Loss y-before income taxes consisted of income from domestic and foreign
operations of €$ 5245 . 4 63million for the calendar year ended December 31, 2623-2024 . Income tax expense tbenefity
included in the statements of operations and comprehensive loss consisted of the following: December 31, 2024 2023 2622
Current Federal $ 935,717 $ 2, 381, 973 $=—Foreign - 2, 204, 454 —State (229, 642) 995, 545 —Total current 706, 075 5, 581, 972
—Deferred Federal 270, 495 366, 647 —Foreign-- State-- Total deferred 270, 495 366, 647 Total provision $ 976, 570 $ 5, 948,
619 $—Income tax expense differed from the amount computed by applying the Federal statutory income tax rate of 21 % to
pretax income (loss) for fiscal year 2823-2024 as a result of the following: December 31, 2623-2024 Amount Rate Income (loss)
before taxes $ (52-45 ,596-360 , 474-217 ) Federal tax at statutory rate (49 , 460-482 , 373-578 ) 21 —79-% State income
taxes, net of federal tax benefit (4311 , 211 446;-935-) 2-0 . #5-7 % Foreign taxes 452457243+ 237377, 077 ) 0. 8 % Change
in valuation allowance +67-085- 6325, 169, 650 ) 11. 5 % 162 (m) limitations 94-1 , 389-217, 581 ( 6-2 . 48-7 ) % Stock based
compensation +3 , 349-891 , 676-235 ( 28 . 576 ) % Permanent differences ( 367615 , 643-723 ) 6-1 . #6-4 % Difference and
changes in tax rates (496 , 667 368774 0. 2 —49-% Impact of deconsolidation 2 {4, 664-613 , 4399-3-260 (5 . 95-8) % Return
to provision 9-9 , 279-307 , 756-400 ( 36-20 . 66-6 ) % Total $ 5976 , 570 948;-6+9-( +H+2 . 321 ) % F- 34 NOTE 11:~
INCOME TAXES ONINEOME-(Cont.) The tax effects of temporary differences that gave rise to significant portions of the
Company’ s deferred tax assets and liabilities related to the following: December 31, 2024 2023 2022-Assets Net operating loss
carryforwards $ 20, 003, 160 $ 25, 994, 146 $35:-762;452-Operating Lease Liability 1, 097, 752 630, 235 782:-086-Accrued
Liabilities 1, 062, 960 1, 989, 103 +66;650-Unrecalized Loss 1, 127, 685 1, 428, 304 2,493;377-Stock based compensation 3,
278,494 5, 836, 809 5;-8F4-815-Disallowed Interest Expense- - 25-548;266-Business interest expense deduction limit 2, 578,
3112, 178, 167 —Other 22, 288 22, 865 +86;432-Total deferred tax assets 29, 170, 650 38, 079, 629 275-794-072-Liabilities
Right of Use Asset (1, 148, 959) (597, 503) F#0:-635)-Property , plant and equipment, net ( 6, 420, 798) ( 10, 150, 612 35
H2-435-) Derivative asset ( 726, 139) ( 1, 016, 616) =Total deferred tax liabilities ( 8,295, 896) (11, 764, 731 H5-883;-676-)
Valuation allowance ( 21, 511, 895) (26, 681, 545 H25;9445-602-) Net deferred tax liability $ ( 637, 141) $ (366, 647) $-
Management believes that, based on available evidence, both positive and negative, it is more likely than not that the deferred
tax assets will not be utilized. The valuation allowance inereased-decreased by $ 9-5 . 772 million for the year ended December
31,2023-2024 , primarily as a result of current year activities. As of December 31, 2623-2024 , the Company had approximately
$ 0 28~46-million Australian net operating losses (NOL), that will have an indefinite life carryforward. In addition, the
Company has approximately $ 6777 . 42-5 million of indefinite lived US Federal NOLs and $ AH-100 . +9-6 million of U. S.
state NOLs as of December 31, 2023-2024 . The Internal Revenue Code “ IRC ” limits the amount of NOL carryforwards that a
company may use in a given year in the event of certain cumulative changes in ownership over a three- year period as described
in Section 382 of the IRC. Utilization of NOL carryforwards and credits may be subject to a substantial annual limitation due to
the ownership change limitations provided by the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and similar state provisions. The
annual limitation may result in the expiration of net operating losses and credits before utilization. The Company has not
conducted a Section 382 study as of December 31, 2823-2024 . If recognized, all of the unrecognized tax benefits would not
impact the effective tax rate due to the valuation allowance against certain deferred tax assets. As of December 31, 2623-2024 ,
the Company had no unrecognized income tax benefits. The Company does not anticipate any significant increases or decreases
to unrecognized tax benefit during the next twelve months. The Company’ s policy is to classify interest and penalties
associated with unrecognized tax benefits as income tax expense. The Company had no interest or penalty accruals associated
with uncertain tax benefits in its consolidated balance sheet and consolidated statement of operations for the tax year ended
December 31, 2623-2024 . The Company files income tax returns in the U. S. Federal, U. S. State, and foreign jurisdictions. The
Company is not currently under examination by income tax authorities in federal or state jurisdictions. All tax returns will
remain open for examination by the federal and most state taxing authorities for three years and four years, respectively, from
the date of utilization of any net operating loss carryforwards or research and development credits. The Company has made no
provision for U. S. income taxes on cumulative undistributed non- U. S. earnings as of December 31, 2623-2024 due to the
Company’ s limited cumulative earnings and profits generated in its non- US jurisdictions. The Company doesn’ t anticipate any
material withholding taxes based on cumulative earnings as of December 31, 2623-2024 . F- 35 NOTE 12: =STOCKHOLDERS’
EQUITY (DEFICIT) On September 29, 2022, the Company entered into a letter variation relating to three out of four of the
Secured Convertible Promissory Notes, where it gave those holders the option to elect for pre- payment (including accrued
interest to maturity). Payments of the interest may be made partially in eemmen-Common steek-Stock efthe-Cempany-, at the
Company’ s election. All of the investors included in this letter variation elected for the pre- payment option and therefore there




were 104, 178 shares of eemmen-Common steek-Stock efthe-Company-issued as part of this letter variation. The final
convertible noteholder who was not a party to this variation opted to enter into an arrangement on January 16, 2023, whereby it
received pre- payment of interest which was also partially paid in shares. In total, 18, 807 shares of eemmen-Common steek

Stock e-Pt-he—Geﬂa-paﬂy—\x ere issued as pdlt of this arr dlmement —P&rsu&ﬁt—teﬁat—eeﬁatn—@er&ﬁe&te—e—ﬁ%rﬂeﬁdmeﬁ—te&e

s’fa-teﬂ‘reﬂfs—e-ﬁs’feekhe-lders—eqt&t—y— WC dpltdl Adwsms Pty Ltd was 1ssued 93, 334 shares 01‘ common stock du11n<y Februaly

2023 for consultancy and advisory services, the fair value of these shares was $ 0. 34-3 million. On May 3, 2023, the Company
has-entered into a definitive agreement with institutional investors for the issuance and sale of 2, 083, 336 shares of its common
stock (or prefunded warrants in lieu thereof) at a purchase price of § 2. 40 per share of common stock in a registered direct
offering for proceeds of $ 4. 6 million, net of issuance costs. Fhe-On May 27, 2022, the Company has-entered into an At the
ability-threugh-its-Market Offering Agreement (the “ ATM Agreement ) with H to-selshares-efits-eommon-stoek-.
E—ffeet-rve—May—4—C Wamwrlght & Co %92—3—LLC (“ Wamwrlght ”) and t-he—Gemp&ny—flled a plospectus supplement to

A—"PM—Ag-reeﬂ&eﬂt—&re—eﬂrreﬂt—bhdermaﬂ-t—aﬂd» an “ ﬁre—ﬂe{—expeefed-te—be—re-—sf&rted—&ﬂt-ﬂ-at %eash*&gttsi—e-ﬁ‘@%,—wheﬂ—the

}ﬂsﬁﬁeﬁeﬁ—I—Bré—e-PFefm—S-%—whielﬁs—referred—te-as deﬁned in Rule 415 promulgated under the “baby-shetf>rutes
Securities Act of 1933, as amended . During the year ended December 31, 2023, 415, 271 shares were issued as part of the
ATM Agreement for cash proceeds of $ 1. 2 million , net of issuance costs. Effective September 6, 2024, the Company
terminated the ATM Agreement with Wainwright. On December 13, 2024, the Company entered into the Sales
Agreement with the Agents to sell the Shares having an aggregate sales price of up to $ 12 million, from time to time,
through an “ at the market offering ” program under which the Agents will act as sales agent. The sales, if any, of the
Shares made under the Sales Agreement will be made by any method permitted by law deemed to be an “ at the market
offering ” as defined in Rule 415 promulgated under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. Pursuant to the Sales
Agreement, the Company agreed to pay the Lead Agent a commission rate equal to 2. S % of the aggregate gross
proceeds from each sale of Shares and have agreed to provide the Agents with customary indemnification and
contribution rights. The Company agreed to reimburse the Agents for their reasonable and documented out- of- pocket
expenses (including but not limited to the reasonable and documented fees and expenses of their legal counsel) in an
amount not to exceed $ 75, 000, in connection with entering into the Sales Agreement and for the Agents’ reasonable and
documented out- of- pocket expenses related to quarterly maintenance of the Sales Agreement (including but not limited
to the reasonable and documented fees and expenses of its legal counsel) on a quarterly basis in an amount not to exceed
$ 5, 000. The Sales Agreement contains customary representations and warranties and conditions to the sale of the
Shares pursuant thereto. The Company is not obligated to sell any of the Shares under the Sales Agreement and may at
any time suspend solicitation and offers thereunder. The offering of Shares pursuant to the Sales Agreement will
terminate on the earlier of (1) the sale, pursuant to the Sales Agreement, of Shares having an aggregate offering price of
$ 12 million and (2) the termination of the Sales Agreement by either the Company or an Agent, as permitted therein.
Restricted Stock Units During the year ended December 31, 2023-2024 , there were exereises-settlements of restricted stock
units into 2, 062, 903 shares of Common Stock of the Company and 1, 396, 817 shares of Common Stock were withheld
for tax withholding purposes. During the year ended December 31, 2023, there were settlements of restricted stock units
into 303, 762 shares of eemmen-Common steel-Stock of the Company. Restrieted-StoelAs of December 31, 2024 and 2023
and2022- there was no restricted stock. Series A Preferred Stock As of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2622-, there are no
shares of Series A Preferred Stock outstanding. F- 36 NOTE 12: =STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIT) (Cont.) Common
Stock Warrants A summary of the status of the Company’ s outstanding stock warrants and changes during the year ended
December 31, 2623-2024 , is as follows: Number of Warrants Weighted Average Exercise Price Weighted Average Remaining
C ontrdutual Life (m yeals) ()utstandms_ as of Decembel 31, 20222825278 $-417 3 S54-1ssued 2,967, 51 2—FExereised{246;
6 6 3 2023 4,904,016 $ 11. 07 3. 65 Issued--- Exercised--- Expired
(423 177) 82. 43- Outstandlng as ofDecember 31, 2024 4,480, 839 $ 3. 96 2. 90 Warrants exercisable as of December 31
2623-2024 4, 964-480 , 6+6-839 $ H-073. 6596 2. 90 NOTE 13: —=STOCK BASED COMPENSATION Equity plans Under
the 2018 Equity Plan, the number of shares issuable under the Plan on the first day of each fiscal year increase by an amount
equal to the lower of (i) 100, 000 shares (after a later 10 for 1 stock split) or (ii) 5 % of the outstanding shares on the last day of
the immediately preceding fiscal year. As of December 31, 2623-2024 , there were no shares issuable under the 2018 Equity
Plan untiHt-antomatieallyreplenishes-endanunary1;2024-. At the Company’ s annual meeting on May 17, 2023, the
stockholders approved an amendment to the 2021 Equity Plan that, amongst other things, increased the number of #he-shares
available under the 2021 Equity Plan to 10, 000, 000 shares. In addition, the shares available under the 2021 Equity Plan
increased by 1, 000, 000 shares on January 1, 2024 to 11, 000, 000. As-Upon review of Beeember3+2623+-the number-of
previously granted shares reserved-underin previous years and the availability of shares, on April 9, 26212024 , the Board
of Directors approved the 2024 Omnibus Equity Plan was-(the “ 2024 Plan ) which will provide an initial 10, 000, 000
with-686;238-shares of Common Stock available for grant per the terms of the 2024 Plan and provides alignment with




long- term stockholder value creation . The 2024 Plan also provides for annual automatic increases in the number of
shares of Common Stock reserved for issuance under the Plan. The 2024 Plan was approved by the stockholders at the
Company’ s annual general meeting held on June 12, 2024. The 2024 Plan replaced and succeeded the Company’ s 2018
Equity Incentive Plan and 2021 Equity Incentive Plan. The 2024 Plan provides that awards issued under the 2024 Plan,
the 2018 Plan or the 2021 Plan that expire, lapse or are terminated, surrendered or canceled without having been fully
exercised or are forfeited in whole or in part, in any case in a manner that results in any share of Common Stock covered
by such award being reacquired by the Company or otherwise not being issued, such share of Common Stock shall again
be available for the grant of awards under the 2024 Plan. Further, shares of Common Stock delivered (either by actual
delivery or attestation) to the Company by a participant to (1) satisfy the applicable exercise or purchase price of an
award, and / or (2) satisfy any applicable tax withholding obligation, in each case, shall be added to the number of shares
of Common Stock available for the grant of awards under the 2024 Plan. As of December 31, 2024, the number of shares
allocated and available under the 2024 Plan were 9, 936, 785 shares and 63, 215 shares, respectively. F- 37 NOTE 13:
STOCK BASED COMPENSATION (Cont.) The Company recognized stock- based compensation expense during the year
ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2022-, as follows: December 31, 2024 2023 2822-Performance- based restricted stock
awards * $ 81,984 $ (423, 360) $-643;350-Service- based restricted stock awards 12, 655, 884 7, 522, 436 F80;797-Stock
issued to consultants 100, 000 307, 069 —Common steek-Stock warrant expense = 1, 835, 166 5668333-Option expense 1,
227,015 1, 593, 527 =Total stock- based compensation $ 14, 064, 883 $ 10, 834, 838 * $3;-042,480-The performance- based
restricted stock awards contain reversal of share- based payment expenses from 2021 onwards for forfeited awards due to staff
departures. F=37NOTFEA3—STOCKBASED-COMPENSAHONAConty-Performance- based awards Performance- based
awards generally vest over a three- year performance period upon the successful complenon of specified market and
performance conditions. The following table presents a summary of the Company’ s performance- based awardsrestricted stock
awards activity: Number of shares Weighted Average Remaining Contractual Life (in years) Outstanding as of December 31,
2022-2023 342-75 , 3+6-545 8. 33-58 Exercised - (406;-060)— Expired / forfeited (+66-3 , 765444 )- Outstanding as of
December 31, %92—3—2024 -7’5—72 545-8—101 7 5-8—56 Exe1c1mble as of Decembel 31, %92—3—2024 44-61 -32—7—4—617 6 48 F 66

service penod or as 0therw1se defined The following table presents a summary of the Comp"my s service- based dwards
activity: Number of shares Weighted Average Remaining Contractual Life (in years) Outstanding as of December 31, 2622-2023
-5 | 246842242 , 393 2. 28 Issued 6-12 , +43-480 , 346-531 - Exercised ( 2632 , 766-147, 649 )- E—xptfed—Ffeffeﬁed
Forfeited / cancelled (FH-1 . 439-396, 817 )- Outstanding as of December 31, 2623-2024 5-14 , 242-178 , 3932458 1 . 28-30
Exercisable as of December 3 1, 2623-2024 16, 804 0.63-01 As of December 31, 2623-2024 , there was approximately $ 2-17 .
#9-71 million of unrecognized compensation cost related to the service- based restricted stock awards, which is expected to be
recognized over a remaining weighted- average vesting period of approximately three menths-years . F—38-Stock options
awards Stock options awards vest upon the successful completion of specified market conditions. The following table presents a
summary of the Company’ s Stock options awards activity: Number of shares Weighted Average Exercise Price Weighted
Avemge Remaining Contractual L1fe (in years) Agglegdte Intrinsic Value Outstanding as of December 31, 2622-4+7-$35901-
6 d anding 2023 3,500,417 $ 1. 23 9. 7056 923, 000 Issued
1, 750, 000 0. 79-- Cancelled (1 750, 000) 0. 94-- Outstandlng as of December 31, 2024 3, 500, 417 $ 1. 07 9. 20 $-
EXCICIS'lble as of December 31, 2023-2024 417 $-- $- As of December 31, 2623-2024 , there was no appreximately-$1-84

mithenefunrecognized compensation cost related to the stock options awards . The ;whieh-is-expeeted-to-berecognized-overa

remaining-weighted- average vesting-pertod-grant date fair value of appreximately-etghtmenths-options issued in 2024 was $
1.16 . F- 39 NOTE 14: —RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS Mawson executive management and the board of Directors

are in the process of winding down services that are or were provided by previously related parties. During the year-years ended
December 31, 2024 and 2023, Mawson has ended the services described below, in relation to office costs, tax advisory services,
accounting labor services, executive employment, vehicle services and freight services, and has engaged non- related third

pames where requned dnd where poss1ble to prov1de those SQIVICGS 501ng forward. fPhe—lease—Wft-}rfespeet—te—t-he—pfepeﬁy—m—t-he

se-Lease as-atarge-stockholderof Vertuattd-. The lease was

for a term of five years, and Lund Squares LLC had two opt10ns to extend for five years each. Rent was subject to annual
increases equal to the amount of the Consumer Price Index for the Northeast Region, or 4 %, whichever is higher. The base
rental amount in the first year was $ 0. 24-2 million. Depending on power energization and usage, variable additional rent may
have been payable, with charges ranging from $ 500 to $ 10, 000 per month, depending on power energized and whether it is
available. The Company received a letter of termination from Vertua on February 2, 2024. During the years— year ended
December 31 —2023 and2022-Mawson AU—PL paid VeItud Ltd b 155, 230 aﬂd—$—l—7-9—8-96—fespeet-ﬂ+el-y—f0r office costs

Geﬁap&ﬂy—ts—alse—a—dﬁeeferef—Veﬁua—lﬁd—M&rmmg—hmﬂy members also own interests in VeItud Ltd Durmo the years— year
ended December 31 —2023 aﬁd%@%%—l\/lawson AU—PL pdld First Equ1ty Tax Pty Ltd b 56, 036 aﬂd—$—42—l-69—fespeet-ﬂ+el-y—f0r




Company;-has interests in and is also a partner of First Equity Tax Pty Ltd. During the years— year ended December 31 52023,
and-2022-Mawson AH-PL paid First Equny Advi 1%01y Pty Ltd ‘{> 79, 818 aﬂd—$%8—7é-8—respeet—1-vel-y—f01 dccountlng labor
services. Mr—James-Manning ya-fo e v e a-stgntfteant-stoekh h
interests in First Equity Advisory Pty Ltd Dunng he years— year ended Decelnbel 31, 2073 aﬂd—%@Q—Z—Mdv\ son AU—PL paid
Defender Investment Management Pty Ltd $ 362, 770 and-$376;-802;respeetively-in licu of paying Mr. Mannlng directly for
his employment. These payments were disclosed in the Executive Summary C onlpensanon table in the C ompany S %92—2—a-nd
2023 Proxy Statements— Statement . Mr—ames-Manning ;-a § v e :
of the-Company;and-is a director of Defender Investment Management Pty Ltd I\/ldnnlnU family membeu ha\ e equity interests
in and control Defender Investment Management Pty Ltd. During the years— year ended December 31, 2023, and-2622;-Mawson
AU—PL pdld Mannln;: Motmspom Ptv Ltd ‘{> 35, 495 aﬂd—$—8—1—698—respeet—1-vel-y—f01 vehicle services. James-Manning a-former
v g e ¥--has direct interests in and is a director of Manning
Motorspons Pty Ltd Durlno the ye&rs—~ year ended Deeember 31 2()2% and-2022-Mawson AHJ-PL paid International Cargo
Solutions, a division of Flynt JE€SPtrEtd-, § 1, 248, 747 and-$4-61F-452respeetivelyfor freight services. Manning Capital
Holdings Pty Ltd, a company associated with Me—Manning , may have had debt interests in Flynt ¥&SR#Etd-. Vertua Ltd
entered 1nto an agreement to acquire Internatlonal Cargo Solunons a divi mon of Flynt -}GS—P-t-y—I:td-ln October 7022 T—he

e-Pt-hts—ﬁ-l-rng—T he Company’ s Audn ( ommntee commenced an inv e%tlLdthIl in the third quarter 01‘ 2()2% into potenndl related
party transactions involving Mr—James-Manning, including but not limited to Mr—Manning’ s failure to appropriately disclose
certain transactions, late or incomplete disclosure of certain transactions, and a failure to confirm to the Company’ s satisfaction
that the disclosures made were complete. Following the investigation, the Audit Committee reported its initial findings to the
Board on February 15, 2024. Based on the information obtained to date and Mr—Manning’ s repeated refusal to either provide a
full and complete disclosure of his related party transactions (or confirm the accuracy of prior related party disclosures provided
to the Company) the Audit Committee determined that there is a prima facie basis to conclude that M¥—Manning did not fully
and properly disclose his related }’)dlty tIdnSdCthH% to the C ompany NOTE 15 -—SUBSEQUENT EVENTS Master Colocation
Agreements: On January 3 M- v v , effeetive
May22,2623-2025 , h&d—agreed—we entered 1nto a Master Colocatlon Agreement (the “ MCA ”) with Ma-wseﬁ—AU—t-hat—a
NASDAQ hsted pubhcly traded company he—The MCA begins would-be-isstedt—35-mithon RSUs-and-his-other RSY

h-in January 2025 and has an initial term of one year, which the
partles can extend upon mutual agreement. Under the terms of the MCA, we will provide approximately 20 MW of
colocation capacity at one of the Company’ s facilities CurrentReport-onForm8-—Kfited-May 25,2023 The MCA includes
provisions for digital colocation services. On March 21, 2025, we executed a Master Colocation Agreement (the “ MA ”)
with a NASDAQ- listed publicly traded company. The MA has an initial term of three years, which the parties can
extend upon mutual agreement Under the terms of the MA we will prov1de approx1mately 64 MW of colocatlon

ehs i tor d-a-fat digital colocatlon services. thlgatmn For updates subsequent to
eeﬁ-ﬁﬂﬁDecember 31, 2024 regardlng the Marshall Loan, W Capital Loan, Celsius Loan and Colocation Agreement, see
Note 10 — Commitments and Contingencies, Marshall Loan and W Capital Loan, and Celsius Loan and Colocation
Agreement. Nasdaq Notices MVLS Notice: On January 24, 2025, the Company received written notice (the “ MVLS
Notice ) from the Listing Qualifications Department (the “ Staff ) of The Nasdaq Stock Market LLC (“ Nasdaq )
notifying the Company that for the last 33 consecutive business days prior to the date of the MVLS Notice, the Company’
s satisfaetton-Market Value of Listed Securities (“ MVLS ”) was less t-hat—than the $ 35 d-tse}es*d-res—made—wefe-eemp}ete— 0
million minimum required for continued listing Q § ported-tts-titia
to-the-Beard-on Febraary+5-The Nasdaq Capital Market as requlred by Nasdaq Llstmg Rule 5550 (b) (2) (the « MVLS
Rule ”). In accordance with Nasdaq Listing Rule 5810 (c) (3) (C), the Staff has provided the Company with 180 calendar
days, or until July 23 %924—2025 to regaln comphance w1th the MVLS Rule Based—The MVLS Notlce has no 1mmed1ate




site—OmrMarehr4-, 2024-the-Option-Agreement-datedJune 29,2623 by-and between-the-Company-andRahul-Mewawalla-the
whiel-he-was-granted-these

C ompany ] Common Stock continues Ghief—E-xeettt-we—efﬁeer—aﬂd—Pfestdeﬁt—puﬁu&ﬁt—lo trade
e under the symbol “ MIGI. ” F- 41 NOTE 15: SUBSEQUENT

EVENTS (Cont ) If the Company regams comphance with the MVLS Rule during the 180- day compliance period ending
on July 23, 2025 (the “ MVLS Compliance Period ), the Staff will provnde written confirmation to the Company and
close the matter. To regain compliance with the MVLS Rule, the Company’ s 202+EeguityPlan-was-eaneeHed- M VLS must
meet or exceed $ 35 . 0 million for a minimum of ten consecutive business days during the MVLS Compliance Period
(unless the Staff exercises its discretion to extend such ten- business day period under Nasdaq Listing Rule 5810 (c) (3)
(H)). In the event the Company does not regain compliance with the MVLS Rule prior to the expiration of the MVLS
Compliance Period, it will receive written notification that its securities are subject to delisting. At that time, the
Company may appeal the delisting determination to a Nasdaq Hearings Panel. Bid Price Notice: On Mareh4-February 6

,20624-2025 , the Company received written notice grantedRestrieted-StoelUnits—( the “ RSU-Bid Price Notice ) uaderfrom

the Staff of Nasdaq notifying the Company that for the last 30 consecutive business days prior to the date of the Bid Price
Notice, the closing bid price of Company’ s 202+EquityIneentivePlanrCommon Stock was less than the $ 1. 00 per share
minimum bid price required for continued listing on The Nasdaq Capital Market, as required by Nasdaq Listing Rule
5550 (a) (2) (the “ Plan-Bid Price Rule ) ;representing-the-righttoreeetverat-setlement-. In accordance with Nasdaq
Listing Rule 5810 (c) (3 ) (A) , 505-the Staff has provided the Company with 180 calendar days , 383-Shares-or until
August S, 2025, to regain compliance with the Bid Price Rule . The RSU-Bid Price Notice has no immediate effect on the
listing of the Company ’ s securities eithervest-on Nasdaq Mareh-31-, and the Company’ s Common Stock continues to
trade under the symbol “ MIGI. ” If the Company regains compliance with the Bid Price Rule during the 180- day
compliance period ending on August S, 2624-2025 (the “ Bid Price Compliance Period ”) , May-36-the Staff will provide
written confirmation to the Company and close the matter. To regain compliance with the Bid Price Rule , 2624;-the bid
price for Company’ s Common Stock must meet or Mareh3+-exceed $ 1. 00 per share minimum of ten consecutive
business days during the Bid Price Compliance Period (unless the Staff exercises its discretion to extend such ten-
business day period under Nasdaq Listing Rule 5810 (c) (3) (H)). If the Company does not regain compliance by August
5., 2025, it may be eligible for an additional 180- day period to regain compliance. To qualify, the Company will be
required to meet the continued listing requirement for market value of publicly held shares and all other initial listing
standards for Nasdaq, except the Bid Price Rule. In addition, the Company would be required to provide written notice
of its intention to cure the minimum bid price deficiency during this second compliance period by effecting a reverse
stock split, if necessary. In the event the Company does not regain compliance with the Bid Price Rule prior to the
expiration of the Bid Price Compliance Period and is not granted an additional 180- day compliance period, it will
receive written notification that its securities are subject to delisting. At that time, the Company may appeal the delisting
determination to a Nasdaq Hearings Panel. The Company will continue to monitor its MVLS and the bid price and
consnder its avallable options to regain compliance with the MVLS Rule and the Bid Price Rule. However, the-there

can be no assurance that the Company will be able to regain compliance with the MVLS

Rule during the MVLS Compliance Period or the Bid Price Rule during the Bid Price Compliance Period, secure a
second 180- day period to regain compllance, if necessary, or othcm ise pfeﬁdtng—semeeﬁe-malntaln compllance with the

Schudulu All financial xmtununl sdudulus ha\ e b en omlmd since the 111[0111](111011 is Cnhu not dpphcablu or 1Lquncd oris
included in the financial statements or notes thereof. (3) Exhibits. Please see (b) below. (b) ExhibitsExhibit Number Description
3. 1 Certificate of Incorporation (Incorporated by reference to Company’ s Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the SEC on
April 5,2012) 3. 2 Certificate of Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation (Incorporated by reference to Company’ s Current
Report on Form 8- K filed with the SEC on July 18, 2013) 3. 3 Certificate of Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation dated
November 15, 2017 (Incorporated by reference to Company’ s Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the SEC on November
21, 2017) 3. 4 Certificate of Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation dated March 1, 2018 (Incorporated by reference to
Company’ s Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the SEC on March 5, 2018) 3. 5 Certificate of Amendment to Certificate of
Incorporation dated March 17, 2021 (Incorporated by reference to Company’ s Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the SEC
on March 23, 2021) 3. 6 Certificate of Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation dated June 9, 2021 (Incorporated by reference
to Company’ s Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the SEC on June 14, 2021) 3. 7 Certificate of Amendment to Certificate
of Incorporation dated August 11, 2021 (Incorporated by reference to Company’ s Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the
SEC on August 16, 2021) 3. 8 Certificate of Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation dated February 6, 2023 (Incorporated by
reference to Company’ s Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the SEC on February 9, 2023) 3. 9 Certificate of Registration
of'a Company of Cosmos Capital Limited ACN 636 458 912 (Incorporated by reference to the Company’ s Registration
Statement on Form S- 1 (File No. 333- 256947) filed with the SEC on June 9, 2021) 3. 10 Constitution of Cosmos Capital



Limited (Incorporated by reference to the Company’ s Registration Statement on Form S- 1 (File No. 333- 256947) filed with
the SEC on June 9, 2021) 3. 11 Bylaws (Incorporated by reference to Company’ s Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the
SEC on May 10, 2013) 4. 1 Specimen Common Stock Certificate (Incorporated by reference to Company’ s Registration
Statement on Form S- 1 filed with the SEC on February 6, 2018) 4. 2 #Description of Securities (Incorporated by reference to
the Company’ s Annual Report on Form 10- K filed with the SEC on March 23, 2023) 4. 3 Form of Series A Certificate of
Designation (Incorporated by reference to Company’ s Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the SEC on October 23, 2018) 4.
4 Form of Series B Certificate of Designation (Incorporated by reference to Company’ s Current Report on Form 8- K filed with
the SEC on January 15, 2020) 4. 5 Form of Series A and B Warrant (Incorporated by reference to Company’ s Current Report
on Form 8- K filed with the SEC on October 23, 2018) 4. 6 Form of Warrant Agency Agreement (Incorporated by reference to
Company’ s Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the SEC on January 5, 2021) 4. 7 Form of February 2021 Convertible Note
(Incorporated by reference to the Company’ s Registration Statement on Form S- 1 (File No. 333- 256947) filed with the SEC
on June 9, 2021) 4. 8§ Warrant issued to HC Wainwright (Incorporated by reference to the Company’ s Registration Statement on
Form S- 1 (File No. 333- 256947) filed with the SEC on June 9, 2021) 4. 9 Warrants issued to W Capital Advisors Pty Limited
(Incorporated by reference to the Company’ s Registration Statement on Form S- 1 (File No. 333- 256947) filed with the SEC
on June 9, 2021) 4. 10 Form of Indenture (Incorporated by reference to the Company’ s Registration Statement on Form S-3 /A
(File No. 333- 258299) filed with the SEC on August 5, 2021) 4. 11 Warrant Agreement Dated October 1, 2021, with
Computershare Inc., a Delaware corporation (“ Computershare ), and its wholly- owned subsidiary, Computershare Trust
Company, N. A. (Incorporated by reference to Company’ s Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the SEC on October 1,
2021) 4. 12 Form of Underwriter Compensation Warrant (Incorporated by reference to Company’ s Current Report on Form 8-
K filed with the SEC on October 1, 2021) 4. 13 Form of Warrant (Incorporated by reference to the Company’ s Registration
Statement on Form S- 3 (File No. 333- 260600) filed with the SEC on October 29, 2021) 4. 14 Warrant Agreement between
Mawson Infrastructure Group Inc and Celsius Mining LLC dated February 23, 2022 (Incorporated by reference to Company’ s
Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the SEC on March 1, 2022) 4. 15 Form of Indenture (Incorporated by reference to the
Company’ s Registration Statement on Form S- 3 (File No. 333- 264062) filed with the SEC on April 1, 2022) 4. 16 Form of
Secured Convertible Note (Incorporated by reference to the Company’ s Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the SEC on
July 14, 2022) 4. 17 Form of Warrant (Incorporated by reference to the Company’ s Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the
SEC on July 19, 2022) 4. 18 Form of Placement Agent Warrant (Incorporated by reference to the Company’ s Current Report on
Form 8- K filed with the SEC on July 19, 2022) 4. 19 Form of Common Warrant (Incorporated by reference to the Company’ s
Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the SEC on May 8, 2023) 4. 20 Form of Pre- Funded Warrant (Incorporated by
reference to the Company’ s Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the SEC on May &, 2023) 4. 21 Form of Placement Agent
Warrant (Incorporated by reference to the Company’ s Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the SEC on May 8§, 2023) 4. 22
Form of Warrant Amendment Agreement dated May 3, 2023 (Incorporated by reference to the Company’ s Current Report on
Form 8- K filed with the SEC on May 8, 2023) 10. 1 2018 Equity Incentive Plan (Incorporated by reference to Company’ s
Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the SEC on February 28, 2018) 10. 2 Amendment to 2018 Equity Incentive Plan
(Incorporated by reference to Company’ s Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the SEC on August 21, 2018) 10. 3 Form of
Stock Restriction Agreement (Incorporated by reference to Company’ s Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the SEC on
January 19, 2021) 10. 4 Mawson Infrastructure Group Inc. 2021 Equity Incentive Plan (Incorporated by reference to the
Company’ s Registration Statement on Form S- § filed with the SEC on August 17, 2021 10. 5 Lease Agreement Between
Mawson Infrastructure Group And Jewel Acquisition, LLC dated September 20, 2021 (Incorporated by reference to Company’ s
Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the SEC on September 21, 2021) 10. 6 At The Market Offering Agreement between
Mawson Infrastructure Group Inc. and H. C. Wainwright & Co., LLC dated May 27, 2022 (Incorporated by reference to
Company’ s Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the SEC on May 27, 2022) 10. 7 Securities Purchase Agreement, dated
July 17, 2022, by and between Mawson Infrastructure Group and the purchases identified on the signature pages thereto
(Incorporated by reference to the Company’ s Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the SEC on July 19, 2022) 10. 8 Purchase
and Sale Agreement, dated as of September 8, 2022, by and among CSRE Properties Sandersville, LLC, Luna Squares LLC,
Mawson Infrastructure Group, Inc. and CleanSpark, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to the Company’ s Current Report on Form
8- K filed with the SEC on September 9, 2022) 10. 9 First Amendment to Purchase and Sale Agreement by and among CSRE
Properties Sandersville, LLC, Luna Squares LLC, Mawson Infrastructure Group, Inc. and CleanSpark, Inc., dated October 8,
2022 (Incorporated by reference to the Company’ s Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the SEC on October 11, 2022) 10.
10 #-Director Appointment Letter between the Company and Rahul Mewawalla dated January 31, 2023 (Incorporated by
reference to the Company’ s Annual Report on Form 10- K filed with the SEC on April 1, 2024) 10. 11 #Form of
Securities Purchase Agreement (Incorporated by reference to the Company’ s Annual Report on Form 10- K filed with the
SEC on April 1, 2024) 10. 12 #Employment Agreement by and between Mawson Infrastructure Group Inc. and Rahul
Mewawalla, dated May 22, 2023 (Incorporated by reference to the Company’ s Annual Report on Form 10- K filed with
the SEC on April 1, 2024) 10. 13 #Letter Deed of Departure by and between Mawson Infrastructure Group Pty Ltd and James
Manning, dated May 22, 2023 (Incorporated by reference to the Company’ s Annual Report on Form 10- K filed with the
SEC on April 1, 2024) 10. 14 #Chief Financial Officer Offer Letter and Exhibit A (Incorporated by reference to the
Company’ s Annual Report on Form 10- K filed with the SEC on April 1,2024) 10. 15 #Addendum to Employment
Agreement by and between Mawson Infrastructure Group, Inc. and Rahul Mewawalla, dated July 19, 2023 (Incorporated by
reference to the Company’ s Annual Report on Form 10- K filed with the SEC on April 1, 2024) 10. 16 #Director
Appointment Letter between the Company and Ryan Costello dated September 25, 2023 (Incorporated by reference to the
Company’ s Annual Report on Form 10- K filed with the SEC on April 1,2024) 10. 17 1 #Service Framework Agreement
between Mawson Hosting LLC and CTG Colocation PA LLC, dated October 12, 2023 (Incorporated by reference to the



Company’ s Annual Report on Form 10- K filed with the SEC on April 1,2024) 10. 18 #Addendum to Employment
Agreement by and between Mawson Infrastructure Group, Inc. and Rahul Mewawalla, dated December 26, 2023 (Incorporated
by reference to the Company’ s Annual Report on Form 10- K filed with the SEC on April 1,2024) 10. 19 #Secured Loan
Facility agreement between Mig No. 1 Pty Ltd and Marshall Investment MIG Pty Ltd as a trustee for the Marshall Investments
MIG Trust, dated on December 9, 2021 (Incorporated by reference to the Company’ s Annual Report on Form 10- K filed
with the SEC on April 1, 2024) 10. 20 #Loan Deed between Mawson Infrastructure Group Ptd Ltd and W Capital Advisors
Pty Ltd as trustee for W Capital Advisors Fund ABN 89 229 295 (Incorporated by reference to the Company’ s Annual
Report on Form 10- K filed with the SEC on April 1,2024) 10. 21 #Variation Deed to Loan Deed between Mawson
Infrastructure Group Ptd Ltd and W Capital Advisors Pty Ltd as trustee for W Capital Advisors Fund ABN 89 229 295 16—+
Fetterfronr ENP-Auditand-AssuraneeInternational- Pty Lte-(Incorporated by reference to the Company’ s Annual Report on
Form 10- K filed with the SEC on April 1, 2024) 10. 22 Customer Service Addendum dated March 25, 2024, to the
Customer Service Framework Agreement with Consensus Technology Group LLC dated October 12, 2023
(Incorporated by reference to the Company’ s Quarterly Report on Form 10- Q filed with the SEC on May 15, 2024) 10.
23 Mawson Infrastructure Group Inc. 2024 Omnibus Equity Incentive Plan (Incorporated by reference to Annex B to
the Company’ s Definitive Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A, filed with the SEC on April 30, 2024) 10. 24 Offer Letter
with Kaliste Saloom (Incorporated by reference to the Company’ s Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the SEC on
November+4-July 3 , 2622-2024 ) 10. 25 1 Redacted Agreement between Mawson Hosting LL.C and BE Global
Development Limited (Incorporated by reference to the Company’ s Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the SEC on
August 12, 2024) 10. 26 + Redacted LOI between Mawson Hosting LLC and BE Global Development Limited
(Incorporated by reference to the Company’ s Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the SEC on August 12, 2024) 10.
27 Lease Amendment between Mawson Infrastructure Group and Jewel Acquisition, LLC dated September 9, 2024
(Incorporated by reference to the Company’ s Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the SEC on September 11, 2024)
10. 28 Marketing Service Agreement Letter by and between the Company and Outside the Box Capital, Inc., dated
September 11, 2024 (Incorporated by reference to the Company’ s Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the SEC on
September 11, 2024) 10. 29 Sales Agreement Letter dated December 13, 2024, by and among Mawson Infrastructure
Group Inc., Roth Capital Partners, LLC and A. G. P./ Alliance Global Partners (Incorporated by reference to the
Company’ s Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the SEC on December 13, 2024 ) 21. 1 # Subsidiaries of the Company
23.1# Con%ent of Independent Re(nstered Pubhc Accountlns_ an (Wolf & Company , P PEY23- C. 2#-Ceonsentof

8 G a vtd-) 24. 1 # Power of Attorney
(1ncluded on ugnature page) 31. 1 # Cernncatlon of Chlef Executive Ofncer pursuant to Sec. 302 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of
2002 31. 2 # Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Sec. 302 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002 32. 1 #
Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U. S. C. SECTION 1350 32. 2 # Certification of Chief Financial Officer
pursuant to 18 U. S. C. SECTION 1350 97. 1 #Clawback Policy (Incorporated by reference to the Company’ s Annual
Report on Form 10- K filed with the SEC on April 1,2024) 101 # The following materials from Mawson Infrastructure
Group Inc.” s Annual Report on Form 10- K for the year ended December 31, 2023-2024 are formatted in XBRL (eXtensible
Business Reporting Language): (i) the Balance Sheets, (ii) the Statements of Comprehensive Loss, (iii) Statement of Changes in
Shareholders’ Equity (Deficiency), (iv) the Statements of Cash Flow, and (iv) Notes to Financial Statements. 104 # Cover Page
Interactive Data File (formatted in Inline XBRL and contained in Exhibit 101) # Filed herewith 1 Exhibits and schedules to this
exhibit have been omitted pursuant to Item 601 (b) (2) of Regulation S- K. We will furnish the omitted exhibits and schedules to
the Securities and Exchange Commission upon request by the Securities and Exchange Commission. Management
compensatory plan. (c) Financial Statement Schedules. Please see Item 15 (a) (2) above. ITEM 16. FORM 10- K SUMMARY.
SIGNATURES Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15 (d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has
duly caused this Annual Report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized. Mawson Infrastructure
Group, Inc. Date: March 29-28 , 2024-2025 By: / s / Rahul Mewawalla Rahul Mewawalla Chief Executive Officer and-,
President , Director (Principal Executive Officer) Date: March 29-28 , 2624-2025 By: / s / William HarriserrRegan William
HarrisorrRegan Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer) POWERS OF ATTORNEY Each of the
undersigned officers and directors of Mawson Infrastructure Group Inc., a Delaware corporation, hereby constitutes and
appoints Rahul Mewawalla and William Harriser-Regan and each of them, severally, as his erherattorney- in- fact and agent,
with full power of substitution and re- substitution, in his erhername and on his erhkerbehalf, to sign in any and all capacities
this Annual Report and any and all amendments and exhibits to this Annual Report and any and all applications and other
documents relating thereto, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, with full power and authority to perform and do any
and all acts and things whatsoever which any such attorney or substitute may deem necessary or advisable to be performed or
done in connection with any or all of the above described matters, as fully as each of the undersigned could do if personally
present and acting, hereby ratifying and approving all acts of any such attorney or substitute. Pursuant to the requirements of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this Annual Report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant
and in the capacities and on the dates indicated. NAME TITLE DATE /s / Rahul Mewawalla Chief Executive Officer, President
and-, Director March 29-28 , 2624-2025 Rahul Mewawalla (Principal Executive Officer) /s / William HarriserrRegan Chief
Financial Officer March 29-28 , 2624-2025 William Harrisen-Regan (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer) /s /Ryan
Costello Director March 28, 2025 Ryan Costello / s / Greg Martin Director March 29-28 | 2624-2025 Greg Martin /s /
Michael Hughes Director March 29-28 , 2624-2025 Michael Hughes 1- 412 515- 0896http: / s-/ Ryan-Costelo-Direetor-Mareh
29;-fasb. org / us- gaap / 2024 # StraightLineDepreciationMethodMember http: / / fasb Ryan-Costeto-5+5-68961+4123-
$6-4-org / us- gaap / 2024 # StraightLineDepreciationMethodMember http: / / fasb . +61+56592413-org / us- gaap / 2024 #
DecliningBalanceDepreciationMethod20PercentMember http: / / fasb . $6-4-org / us- gaap /2024 #
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Mawson lnﬁa@tructure Group IncName of Subsidiary Jurl@dlctlon of lncorporatlon or Organliatlon Mawqon lnﬁa@tructure
Group Pty Ltd (deconsolidated on October 30, 2023) Australia Mawson AU Ltd Australia MIG No. 1 Pty Ltd Australia Mawson
Services Pty Ltd Australia Cosmos Trading Pty Ltd Australia Cosmos Manager LLC Delaware Cosmos Infrastructure LLC
Delaware Luna Squares Repairs LLC Delaware Luna Squares LLC Delaware Luna Squares Property LLC Delaware Mawson
Mining LLC Delaware Mawson Ohio LLC Delaware Mawson Midland LLC Delaware Mawson Bellefonte LLC Delaware
Mawson Hosting LLC Delaware MIG No 1 LLC DelawareExhibit 23. 1 CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED
PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM We consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration Statement Nos. 333- 260600 and
333- 264062 on Form S- 3 and Registration Statement No. 333- 258878 on Form S- 8 of our report dated March 29-28 , 2624
2025, relating to the consolidated financial statements of Mawson Infrastructure Group, Inc. and Subsidiaries appearing in this
Annual Report on Form 10- K of Mawson lnﬁa@tructure Group, Inc. and Subsidiaries for the year ended December 31, 2023

eeﬁﬁaa-ny—s-euﬁeﬁt—&udﬂefs—WOIf & Company, -PGP -Reg&fds—C Boston Massachusetts#s%nfheny—l%ese—&nfheny—l%ese
Direetor ENP-Andit-Assaranee-Exhibit 31. | CERTIFICATION I, Rahul Mewawalla, certify that: 1. I have reviewed this

Annual Report on Form 10- K of Mawson Infrastructure Group Inc. for the year ended December 31, 2023-2024 ; 2. Based on
my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to
the period covered by this report; 3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included
in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant
as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; 4. The registrant’ s other certifying officer and I are responsible for
establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a- 15 (e) and 15d- 15 (¢))
and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a- 15 (f) and 15d- 15 (f)) for the registrant and
have: (a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed
under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is
made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared; (b)
Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; (¢) Evaluated the
effectiveness of the registrant’ s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such
evaluation; and (d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’ s internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the registrant’ s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’ s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’ s internal control over financial reporting; and
and5 5- The registrant’ s other certifying officer (s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the registrant’ s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’ s Board of Directors (or
persons performing the equivalent functions): (a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation



of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’ s ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and (b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or
other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’ s internal control over financial reporting. Date: March 29-28 ,
%9%4—2025 / s / Rahul Mew aw 'l]]cl Rahul Mewawalla (hlef Executive Officer, President and Dlrectm (Prll]Clp'l] Exewtl\e

and 1 ha\ e dlsdosed bﬂsed on our most recent ev aluatlon of mtemal Control over fllmnudl reportllm, to the reustrant s auditors
and the audit commlttee of the reélstmnt s Board of Directors (01 pelsons perfonmn;: the equwalent fumtlons) Date: March
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Regan Hafﬂseﬂ—Wﬁ-haﬂa—Hafﬂseﬂ—lecmdl Fmdncml and Accountmo OﬂlCGl‘EXhlblt 32. 1 CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO

18 U. S. C. SECTION 4356-AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES- OXLEY ACT OF 2002 In
connection with the Annual Report of Mawson Infrastructure Group Inc. (the “ Company ) on Form 10- K for the year ended
December 31, 2823-2024 , as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the *“ Report ™), the
undersigned principal executive officer of the Company, hereby certifies pursuant to 18 U. S. C. Section 1350, as adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002 (“ SOX ”), that: (1) the Report fully complies with the requirements
of Section 13 (a) or 15 (d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “ Exchange Act ”); and (2) the information
contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.
This certification accompanies this Report pursuant to Section 906 of SOX and shall not, except to the extent set forth in the
Exchange Act, be deemed filed by the Company for purposes of Section 18 of the Exchange Act. Such certification will not be
deemed to be incorporated by reference into any filling under the Securities Act of 1993, as amended, or the Exchange Act,
except to the extent that the Company specifically incorporates it by reference. A signed original of this written statement
required by Rule 13a- 14 (b) or 15d- 14 (b) of the Exchange Act and Section 906 of SOX has been provided by the Company
and will be retained by the Company and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request. Date:
March 29-28 , 2624-2025 / s / Rahul Mewawalla Rahul Mewawalla ;-Chief Executive Officer, President and Director (Principal
Executive Officer) Exhibit 32. 2 In connection with the Annual Report of Mawson Infrastructure Group Inc. (the “ Company )
on Form 10- K for the year ended December 31, 2623-2024 , as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date
hereof (the *“ Report ™), the undersigned principal financial officer of the Company, hereby certifies pursuant to 18 U. S. C.
Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002 (“ SOX ”), that: Date: March 28, 2025 / s
/ William Regan William Regan Principal Financial and Accounting Officer v3. 25. 1Cover- USD ( $) $ in Millions 12
Months EndedDec. 31, 2024 Mar. 03, 2025 Jun. 28, 2024Document Information [ Line Items | Document Type 10- K
Document Annual Report true Document Transition Report false Document Financial Statement Error Correction [
Flag | false Entity Interactive Data Current Yes ICFR Auditor Attestation Flag false Amendment Flag false Document
Period End Date Dec. 31, 2024 Document Fiscal Year Focus Document Fiscal Period Focus FY Documents Incorporated
by Reference [ Text Block | Portions of the registrant’ s definitive proxy statement to be delivered to stockholders in
connection with its Annual Stockholders’ Meeting to be held in 2025 are incorporated by reference into Part I1I of this
Annual Report on Form 10- K. Only those portions of the definitive proxy statement that are specifically incorporated
by reference herein shall constitute a part of this Annual Report on Form 10- K. Such proxy statement will be filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission within 120 days of the registrant’ s fiscal year ended December 31, 2024. Entity
Information [ Line Items | Entity Registrant Name Mawson Infrastructure Group Inc. Entity Central Index Key Entity
File Number 001- 40849 Entity Tax Identification Number 88- 0445167 Entity Incorporation, State or Country Code DE
Current Fiscal Year End Date-- 12- 31 Entity Well- known Seasoned Issuer No Entity Voluntary Filers No Entity
Current Reporting Status Yes Entity Shell Company false Entity Filer Category Non- accelerated Filer Entity Small
Business true Entity Emerging Growth Company false Entity Public Float $ 23. SEntity Contact Personnel [ Line Items |



Entity Address, Address Line One 950 Railroad Avenue Entity Address, City or Town Midland Entity Address, State or
Province PA Entity Address, Postal Zip Code Entity Phone Fax Numbers [ Line Items ]| City Area Code | - 412 Local
Phone Number 515- 0896 Entity Listings [ Line Items | Title of 12 (b ) Security Common Stock, par value $ 0. 001 per
share Trading Symbol MIGI Security Exchange Name NASDAQ Entity Common Stock, Shares Outstanding 18, 792,
360 X- DefinitionBoolean flag that is true when XBRL content amends previously- filed or accepted submission.
ReferencesNo definition available. Details Name: dei_AmendmentFlag Namespace Prefix: dei_ Data Type: xbrli:
booleanltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: durationX- DefinitionArea code of city ReferencesNo definition
available. Details Name: dei_CityAreaCode Namespace Prefix: dei_ Data Type: xbrli: normalizedStringltemType
Balance Type: na Period Type: durationX- DefinitionEnd date of current fiscal year in the format-- MM- DD.
ReferencesNo definition available. Details Name: dei_CurrentFiscalYearEndDate Namespace Prefix: deiData Type:
xbrli: gMonthDayltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: durationX- DefinitionBoolean flag that is true only for a
form used as an annual Repert-report fillyeomplies-. ReferencesReference 1: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2003 / role /
presentationRef- Publisher SEC- Name Form 10- K- Number 249- Section 310Reference 2: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003
/ role / presentationRef- Publisher SEC- Name Form 20- F- Number 249- Section 220- Subsection fReference 3: http: / /
www. xbrl. org /2003 / role / presentationRef- Publisher SEC- Name Form 40- F- Number 249- Section 240- Subsection f
Details Name: dei_DocumentAnnualReport Namespace Prefix: dei Data Type: xbrli: booleanltemType Balance Type:
na Period Type: durationX- DefinitionIndicates whether any of the financial statement period in the filing include a
restatement due to error correction. ReferencesReference 1: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / presentationRef-
Publisher SEC- Name Regulation S- K- Number 229- Section 402- Subsection wReference 2: http: / / www. xbrl. org /
2003 / role / presentationRef- Publisher SEC- Name Form 10- K- Number 249- Section 310Reference 3: http: / / www.
xbrl. org /2003 / role / presentationRef- Publisher SEC- Name Form 20- F- Number 249- Section 220- Subsection
fReference 4: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / presentationRef- Publisher SEC- Name Form 40- F- Number 249-
Section 240- Subsection f Details Name: dei_DocumentFinStmtErrorCorrectionFlag Namespace Prefix: deiData Type:
xbrli: booleanItemType Balance Type: na Period Type: durationX- DefinitionFiscal period values are FY, Q1, Q2, and
Q3. 1st, 2nd and 3rd quarter 10- Q or 10- QT statements have value Q1, Q2, and Q3 respectively, 10- K, 10- KT or
the-other requirements-fiscal year statements having FY. ReferencesNo definition available. Details Name:
dei_DocumentFiscalPeriodFocus Namespace Prefix: dei Data Type: dei: fiscalPeriodItemType Balance Type: na Period
Type: durationX- DefinitionThis is focus fiscal year of the document report in YYYY format. For a 2006 annual report,
which may also provide financial information from prior periods, fiscal 2006 should be given as the fiscal year focus.
Example: 2006. ReferencesNo definition available. Details Name: dei_DocumentFiscalYearFocus Namespace Prefix: dei_
Data Type: xbrli: gYearltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: durationX- DefinitionLine items represent financial
concepts included in a table. These concepts are used to disclose reportable information associated with domain
members defined in one or many axes to the table. ReferencesNo definition available. Details Name:
dei_DocumentInformationLineltems Namespace Prefix: dei_ Data Type: xbrli: stringltemType Balance Type: na Period
Type: durationX- DefinitionFor the EDGAR submission types of Form 8- K: the date of the report, the date of the
earliest event reported; for the EDGAR submission types of Form N- 1A: the filing date; for all other submission types:
the end of the reporting or transition period. The format of the date is YYYY- MM- DD. ReferencesNo definition
available. Details Name: dei_DocumentPeriodEndDate Namespace Prefix: dei_ Data Type: xbrli: dateItemType Balance
Type: na Period Type: durationX- DefinitionBoolean flag that is true only for a form used as a transition report.
ReferencesReference 1: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / presentationRef- Publisher SEC- Name Forms 10- K, 10- Q,
20- F- Number 240- - Subsection a - 1 Details Name: dei_DocumentTransitionReport Namespace Prefix: dei_
Data Type: xbrli: booleanItemType Balance Type: na Period Type: durationX- DefinitionThe type of document being
provided (such as 10- K, 10- Q, 485BPOS, etc ) . The document type is limited to the same value as the supporting SEC
submission type, or the word' Other'. ReferencesNo definition available. Details Name: dei_DocumentType Namespace
Prefix: dei_ Data Type: dei: submissionTypeltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: durationX- DefinitionDocuments
incorporated by reference. ReferencesReference 1: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / presentationRef- Publisher
SEC- Name Exchange Act- Number 240- Section 12- Subsection b- 23 Details Name:
dei_DocumentsIncorporatedByReferenceTextBlock Namespace Prefix: dei_ Data Type: dtr- types: textBlockItemType
Balance Type: na Period Type: durationX- DefinitionAddress Line 1 such as Attn, Building Name, Street Name
ReferencesNo definition available. Details Name: dei_EntityAddressAddressLinel Namespace Prefix: dei_ Data Type:
xbrli: normalizedStringltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: durationX- DefinitionName of the City or Town
ReferencesNo definition available. Details Name: dei_EntityAddressCityOrTown Namespace Prefix: dei_ Data Type:
xbrli: normalizedStringltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: durationX- DefinitionCode for the postal or zip code
ReferencesNo definition available. Details Name: dei_EntityAddressPostalZipCode Namespace Prefix: deiData Type:
xbrli: normalizedStringltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: durationX- DefinitionName of the state or province.
ReferencesNo definition available. Details Name: dei_EntityAddressStateOrProvince Namespace Prefix: dei_ Data Type:
dei: stateOrProvinceltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: durationX- DefinitionA unique 10- digit SEC- issued
value to identify entities that have filed disclosures with the SEC. It is commonly abbreviated as CIK.
ReferencesReference 1: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / presentationRef- Publisher SEC- Name Exchange Act-
Number 240- Section 12- Subsection b- 2 Details Name: dei_EntityCentrallndexKey Namespace Prefix: dei_ Data Type:
dei: centrallndexKeyltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: durationX- DefinitionIndicate number of shares or other
units outstanding of each of registrant' s classes of capital or common stock or other ownership interests, if and as stated
on cover of related periodic report. Where multiple classes or units exist define each class / interest by adding class of



stock items such as Common Class A [ Member ], Common Class B [ Member | or Partnership Interest [ Member | onto
the Instrument [ Domain | of the Entity Listings, Instrument. ReferencesNo definition available. Details Name:
dei_EntityCommonStockSharesOutstanding Namespace Prefix: dei Data Type: xbrli: sharesItemType Balance Type:
na Period Type: instantX- DefinitionLine items represent financial concepts included in a table. These concepts are used
to disclose reportable information associated with domain members defined in one or many axes to the table.
ReferencesNo definition available. Details Name: dei_EntityContactPersonnelLineltems Namespace Prefix: dei Data
Type: xbrli: stringltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: durationX- DefinitionIndicate' Yes' or' No' whether
registrants (1) have filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13

during ;as-amended<(the “-preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that registrants were required to file such
reports), and (2) have been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. This information should be based on
the registrant' s current or most recent filing containing the related disclosure. ReferencesNo definition available. Details
Name: dei_EntityCurrentReportingStatus Namespace Prefix: dei_ Data Type: dei: yesNoltemType Balance Type: na
Period Type: durationX- DefinitionIndicate if registrant meets the emerging growth company criteria.
ReferencesReference 1: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / presentationRef- Publisher SEC- Name

Number 240- Section 12- Subsection b- 2 Details Name: dei_EntityEmergingGrowthCompany Namespace Prefix: del
Data Type: xbrli: booleanItemType Balance Type: na Period Type: durationX- DefinitionCommission file number. The
field allows up to 17 characters. The prefix may contain 1- 3 digits, the sequence number may contain 1- 8 digits, the
optional suffix may contain 1- 4 characters, and the fields are separated with a hyphen. ReferencesNo definition
available. Details Name: dei_EntityFileNumber Namespace Prefix: dei_ Data Type: dei: fileNumberItemType Balance
Type: na Period Type: durationX- DefinitionIndicate whether the registrant is one of the following: Large Accelerated
Filer, Accelerated Filer, Non- accelerated Filer. Definitions of these categories are stated in Rule 12b- 2 of the Exchange
Act. This information should be based on the registrant' s current or most recent filing containing the related disclosure.
ReferencesReference 1: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / presentationRef- Publisher SEC- Name Exchange Act-
Number 240- Section 12- Subsection b- 2 Details Name: dei_EntityFilerCategory Namespace Prefix: dei_ Data Type: dei:
filerCategoryltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: durationX- DefinitionTwo- character EDGAR code representing
the state or country of incorporation. ReferencesNo definition available. Details Name:
dei_EntityIncorporationStateCountryCode Namespace Prefix: dei Data Type: dei: edgarStateCountryltemType
Balance Type: na Period Type: durationX- DefinitionLine items represent financial concepts included in a table. These
concepts are used to disclose reportable information associated with domain members defined in one or many axes to the
table. ReferencesNo definition available. Details Name: dei_EntityInformationLineltems Namespace Prefix: dei_ Data
Type: xbrli: stringltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: durationX- DefinitionBoolean flag that is true when the
registrant has submitted electronically every Interactive Data File required to be submitted pursuant to Rule 405 of
Regulation S- T during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit
such files). ReferencesReference 1: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / presentationRef- Publisher SEC- Name
Regulation S- T- Number 232- Section 405 Details Name: dei_EntityInteractiveDataCurrent Namespace Prefix: dei
Data Type: dei: yesNoltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: durationX- DefinitionLine items represent financial
concepts included in a table. These concepts are used to disclose reportable information associated with domain
members defined in one or many axes to the table. ReferencesNo definition available. Details Name:
dei_EntityListingsLineltems Namespace Prefix: dei_ Data Type: xbrli: stringltemType Balance Type: na Period Type:
durationX- DefinitionLine items represent financial concepts included in a table. These concepts are used to disclose
reportable information associated with domain members defined in one or many axes to the table. ReferencesNo
definition available. Details Name: dei_EntityPhoneFaxNumbersLineltems Namespace Prefix: dei_ Data Type: xbrli:
stringltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: durationX- DefinitionThe aggregate market value of the voting and non-
voting common equity held by non- affiliates computed by reference to the price at which the common equity was last
sold, or the average bid and asked price of such common equity, as of the last business day of the registrant' s most
recently completed second fiscal quarter. ReferencesNo definition available. Details Name: dei_EntityPublicFloat
Namespace Prefix: dei_ Data Type: xbrli: monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: instantX-
DefinitionThe exact name of the entity filing the report as specified in its charter, which is required by forms filed with
the SEC. ReferencesReference 1: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2003 / role / presentationRef- Publisher SEC- Name Exchange
Act- Number 240- Section 12- Subsection b- 2 Details Name: dei_EntityRegistrantName Namespace Prefix: dei_ Data
Type: xbrli: normalizedStringltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: durationX- DefinitionBoolean flag that is true
when the registrant is a shell company as defined in Rule 12b- 2 of the Exchange Act. ReferencesReference 1: http: / /
www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / presentationRef- Publisher SEC- Name Exchange Act- Number 240- Section 12- Subsection
b- 2 Details Name: dei_EntityShellCompany Namespace Prefix: dei_ Data Type: xbrli: booleanltemType Balance Type:
na Period Type: durationX- DefinitionIndicates that the company is a Smaller Reporting Company (SRC).
ReferencesReference 1: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / presentationRef- Publisher SEC- Name Exchange Act-
Number 240- Section 12- Subsection b- 2 Details Name: dei_EntitySmallBusiness Namespace Prefix: dei_Data Type:
xbrli: booleanltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: durationX- DefinitionThe Tax Identification Number (TIN), also
known as an Employer Identification Number (EIN), is a unique 9- digit value assigned by the IRS. ReferencesReference
1: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / presentationRef- Publisher SEC- Name Exchange Act- Number 240- Section 12-
Subsection b- 2 Details Name: dei_EntityTaxIdentificationNumber Namespace Prefix: dei_ Data Type: dei:
employerldItemType Balance Type: na Period Type: durationX- DefinitionIndicate' Yes' or' No' if the registrant is not
required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15 (d) of the Act. ReferencesNo definition available. Details



Name: dei_EntityVoluntaryFilers Namespace Prefix: dei_ Data Type: dei: yesNoltemType Balance Type: na Period
Type: durationX- DefinitionIndicate' Yes' or' No' if the registrant is a well- known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule
405 of the Securities Act. Is used on Form Type: 10- K, 10- Q, 8- K, 20- F, 6- K, 10- K/ A, 10- Q/ A, 20-F / A, 6- K/ A, N-
CSR, N- Q, N- 1A. ReferencesReference 1: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / presentationRef- Publisher SEC- Name
Securities Act- Number 230- Section 405 Details Name: dei_EntityWellKnownSeasonedIssuer Namespace Prefix: dei_
Data Type: dei: yesNoltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: durationX- ReferencesReference 1: http: / / www. xbrl.
org /2003 / role / presentationRef- Publisher SEC- Name Form 10- K- Number 249- Section 310Reference 2: http: / /
www. xbrl. org /2003 / role / presentationRef- Publisher SEC- Name Form 20- F- Number 249- Section 220- Subsection
fReference 3: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / presentationRef- Publisher SEC- Name Form 40- F- Number 249-
Section 240- Subsection f Details Name: dei_IcfrAuditorAttestationFlag Namespace Prefix: dei_ Data Type: xbrli:
booleanltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: durationX- DefinitionLocal phone number for entity. ReferencesNo
definition available. Details Name: dei_LocalPhoneNumber Namespace Prefix: dei_ Data Type: xbrli:
normalizedStringltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: durationX- DefinitionTitle of a 12 (b) registered security.
ReferencesReference 1: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / presentationRef- Publisher SEC- Name Exchange Act-
Number 240- Section 12- Subsection b Details Name: dei_Securityl2bTitle Namespace Prefix: dei_Data Type: dei:
securityTitleItemType Balance Type: na Period Type: durationX- DefinitionName of the Exchange on which a security
is registered. ReferencesReference 1: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2003 / role / presentationRef- Publisher SEC- Name
Exchange Act- Number 240- Section 12- Subsection d1- 1 Details Name: dei_SecurityExchangeName Namespace Prefix:
dei_ Data Type: dei: edgarExchangeCodeltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: durationX- DefinitionTrading
symbol of an instrument as listed on an exchange. ReferencesNo definition available. Details Name: dei_TradingSymbol
Namespace Prefix: dei_ Data Type: dei: tradingSymbolltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: durationAudit
Information 12 Months Ended Dec. 31, 2024 Auditor [ Table | Auditor Name Wolf & Company, P. C. Auditor Firm
IDAuditor Location Boston, MassachusettsAuditor Opinion [ Text Block | Opinion on the Financial StatementsWe have
audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Mawson Infrastructure Group, Inc. (the ¢“ Company ") :-as of
December 31, 2024 and (2)-2023, the related consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss, stockholders’
equity and cash flows for the years the-then information-eentained+rended, and the Repert-related notes to the
consolidated financial statements (collectively, the “ financial statements ). In our opinion, the financial statements
present fairly presents-, in all material respects, the financial eenditien-position of the Company as of December 31, 2024 and
2023, and the results of its operations ef-and its cash flows for the year the-then Cempany-ended, in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America . X- DefinitionPCAOB issued Audit Firm
Identifier ReferencesReference 1: http: // www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / presentationRef- Publisher SEC- Name Form 10-
K- Number 249- Section 310Reference 2: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / presentationRef- Publisher SEC- Name
Form 20- F- Number 249- Section 220- Subsection fReference 3: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / presentationRef-
Publisher SEC- Name Form 40- F- Number 249- Section 240- Subsection f Details Name: dei_AuditorFirmId Namespace
Prefix: dei_ Data Type: dei: nonemptySequenceNumberIltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: durationX-
ReferencesReference 1: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / presentationRef- Publisher SEC- Name Form 10- K-
Number 249- Section 310Reference 2: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2003 / role / presentationRef- Publisher SEC- Name Form
20- F- Number 249- Section 220- Subsection fReference 3: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2003 / role / presentationRef-
Publisher SEC- Name Form 40- F- Number 249- Section 240- Subsection f Details Name: dei_AuditorLocation
Namespace Prefix: dei_ Data Type: dei: internationalNameltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: durationX-
ReferencesReference 1: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / presentationRef- Publisher SEC- Name Form 10- K-
Number 249- Section 310Reference 2: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2003 / role / presentationRef- Publisher SEC- Name Form
20- F- Number 249- Section 220- Subsection fReference 3: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2003 / role / presentationRef-
Publisher SEC- Name Form 40- F- Number 249- Section 240- Subsection f Details Name: dei_AuditorName Namespace
Prefix: dei_ Data Type: dei: internationalNameltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: durationX-
ReferencesReference 1: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2003 / role / presentationRef- Publisher SEC- Name Regulation S- X-
Number 210- Section 2- Subsection 2 Details Name: dei_AuditorOpinionTextBlock Namespace Prefix: dei_ Data Type:
dtr- types: textBlockItemType Balance Type: na Period Type: durationX- ReferencesNo definition available. Details
Name: dei_AuditorTable Namespace Prefix: dei_ Data Type: xbrli: stringltemType Balance Type: na Period Type:
durationConsolidated Balance Sheets- USD ($) Dec. 31, 2024 Dec. 31, 2023Current assets: Cash and cash equivalents $ 6,
089, 837 $ 4, 476, 339Prepaid expenses 4, 748, 749 3, 556, 933Trade and other receivables, net 15, 167, 729 12, 105,
387Total current assets 26, 006, 315 20, 138, 659Property, plant and equipment, net 28, 071, 415 57, 740, 291Derivative
asset 2, 884, 984 4, 058, 088Investments, equity method 106, 807Security deposits 494, 403 415, 0000perating lease right-
of- use asset 3, 983, 378 2, 307, 399Total assets 61, 440, 495 84, 766, 244Current liabilities: Trade and other payables 39,
398, 160 32, 513, 113Current portion of operating lease liability 1, 270, 989 1, 416, 310Current portion of finance lease
liability 358, 515 33, 059Current portion of long- term loans 20, 919, 754 19, 352, 752Total current liabilities 61, 947, 418
53, 315, 2340perating lease liability, net of current portion 2, 523, 957 1, 016, 216Finance lease liability, net of current
portion 207, 957 50, 164Total liabilities 64, 679, 332 54, 381, 614Commitments and Contingencies Stockholders’ equity
(deficit): Common stock, $ 0. 001 par value per share; 90, 000, 000 shares authorized, 18, 792, 360 and 16, 644, 711
shares issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively 18, 792 16, 645Additional paid- in capital
225, 341, 912 211, 279, 176 Accumulated other comprehensive income 198, 625 608, 688Accumulated deficit (228, 798,
166) (182, 666, 465) Total Mawson Infrastructure Group, Inc. (“ Mawson ) stockholders’ equity (deficit) (3, 238, 837) 29,
238, 044Non- controlling interest 1, 146, 586Total stockholders’ equity (deficit) (3, 238, 837) 30, 384, 630Total liabilities



and stockholders’ equity (deficit) 61, 440, 495 84, 766, 244Series A Preferred Stock Stockholders’ equity (deficit): Series
A preferred stock; 1, 000, 000 shares authorized, no shares issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 X-
DefinitionAmount, after allowance, receivable from customers, clients, or other third- parties, and receivables classified
as other due within one year or the normal operating cycle, if longer. ReferencesNo definition available. Details Name:
us- gaap_AccountsAndOtherReceivablesNetCurrent Namespace Prefix: us- gaap_ Data Type: xbrli: monetaryltemType
Balance Type: debit Period Type: instantX- DefinitionCarrying value as of the balance sheet date of obligations incurred
(and for which invoices have typically been received) and payable to vendors for goods and services received that are
used in an entity' s business. Used to reflect the current portion of the hablhtles (due w1th1n one year or w1thm the
normal operating cycle if longer). ReferencesReference 1: http: / W : W et

/ fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref / legacyRef- Topic 210- SubTopic 10- Name efﬁeeﬁE-)dﬁbﬁ—Q-’l—Standards
Codification- Section S99- Paragraph | Peliey-Appreved-- Subparagraph (SX 210. 5- 02 (19) (a))- Publisher FASB- URI
https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480566 / 210- 10- S99- 1Reference 2: http: / / fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref /
legacyRef- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Topic 210- SubTopic 10- Section 45- Paragraph 8- Publisher
FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147483467 / 210- 10- 45- 8 Details Name: us-
gaap_AccountsPayableTradeCurrent Namespace Prefix: us- gaap_Data Type: xbrli: monetaryltemType Balance Type:
credit Period Type: instantX- DefinitionAmount, after tax, of accumulated increase (decrease) in equity from transaction
and other event and circumstance from nonowner source. ReferencesReference 1: http: / / fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref /
legacyRef- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Topic 220- SubTopic 10- Section 45- Paragraph 14A- Publisher
FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147482790 / 220- 10- 45- 14AReference 2: http: / / fasb. org / us- gaap / role
/ ref / legacyRef- Topic 220- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 45- Paragraph 11-
Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147482790 / 220- 10- 45- 11Reference 3: http: / / www. xbrl. org
/2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 944- SubTopic 40- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 65- Paragraph
2- Subparagraph (g) (2) (ii)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480016 / 944- 40- 65-
2Reference 4: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 944- SubTopic 40- Name Accounting Standards
Codification- Section 65- Paragraph 2- Subparagraph (h) (2)- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 /
2147480016 / 944- 40- 65- 2Reference S: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 210- SubTopic 10-
Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (SX 210. 5- 02 (30) (a) (4))-
Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480566 / 210- 10- S99- 1Reference 6: http: / / www. xbrl. org
/2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 944- SubTopic 210- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99-
Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (SX 210. 7- 03 (a) (23) (a) (3))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 /
2147478777 / 944- 210- S99- 1Reference 7: http: / / fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref / legacyRef- Name Accounting
Standards Codification- Topic 220- SubTopic 10- Section 45- Paragraph 14- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org
/1943274 / 2147482790 / 220- 10- 45- 14 Details Name: us- gaap_AccumulatedOtherComprehensivelncomeLossNetOfTax
Namespace Prefix: us- gaap_ Data Type: xbrli: monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: instantX-
DefinitionAmount of excess of issue price over par or stated value of stock and from other transaction involving stock or
stockholder. Includes, but is not limited to, additional paid- in capital (APIC) for common and preferred stock.
ReferencesReference 1: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / exampleRef- Topic 852- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting
Standards Codification- Section 55- Paragraph 10- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147481372 /
852- 10- 55- 10Reference 2: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2009 / role / commonPracticeRef- Topic 946- SubTopic 210- Name
Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (SX 210. 6- 04 (18))- Publisher FASB-
URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147479170 / 946- 210- S99- 1Reference 3: http: / / fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref /
legacyRef- Topic 210- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph
(SX 210. 5- 02 (30) (a) (1))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480566 / 210- 10- S99- 1 Details
Name: us- gaap_AdditionalPaidInCapital Namespace Prefix: us- gaap_ Data Type: xbrli: monetaryltemType Balance
Type: credit Period Type: instantX- DefinitionAmount of asset recognized for present right to economic benefit.
ReferencesReference 1: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / exampleRef- Topic 280- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting
Standards Codification- Section 55- Paragraph 48- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 /2147482785 /
280- 10- 55- 48Reference 2: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / exampleRef- Topic 280- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting
Standards Codification- Section 55- Paragraph 49- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 /2147482785 /
280- 10- 55- 49Reference 3: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 270- SubTopic 10- Name
Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (i)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc.
fasb. org /1943274 / 2147482964 / 270- 10- 50- 1Reference 4: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic
280- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S0- Paragraph 32- Subparagraph (ee)- Publisher
FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147482810 / 280- 10- 50- 32Reference 5: http: / / fasb. org / us- gaap / role /
ref / otherTransitionRef- Topic 280- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 32-
Subparagraph (d)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147482810 / 280- 10- 50- 32Reference 6:
http: // www. xbrl. org /2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 280- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification-
Section S0- Paragraph 22- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147482810 / 280- 10- S0- 22Reference
7: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 810- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards
Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 3- Subparagraph (bb)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 /
2147481203 / 810- 10- 50- 3Reference 8: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 810- SubTopic 10-
Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 45- Paragraph 25- Subparagraph (a)- Publisher FASB- URI https: //
asc. fash. org / 1943274 / 2147481231 / 810- 10- 45- 25Reference 9: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2003 / role / disclosureRef-




Topic 235- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (SX 210.
4- 08 (g) (1) (ii))- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480678 / 235- 10- S99- 1Reference 10: http:
[/ www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 323- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification-
Section S0- Paragraph 3- Subparagraph (c)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147481687 / 323-
10- 50- 3Reference 11: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 825- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting
Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 28- Subparagraph (f)- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org /
1943274 /2147482907 / 825- 10- 50- 28Reference 12: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2003 / role / exampleRef- Topic 852-
SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 55- Paragraph 10- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc.
fasb. org /1943274 / 2147481372 / 852- 10- 55- 10Reference 13: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / exampleRef- Topic
946- SubTopic 830- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 55- Paragraph 12- Publisher FASB- URI https: //
asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147479168 / 946- 830- 55- 12Reference 14: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef-
Topic 944- SubTopic 210- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (SX 210.
7- 03 (a) (12))- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147478777 / 944- 210- S99- 1Reference 15: http: /
/ www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 946- SubTopic 210- Name Accounting Standards Codification-
Section S99- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (SX 210. 6- 04 (8))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 /
2147479170 / 946- 210- S99- 1Reference 16: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 210- SubTopic 10-
Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (SX 210. 5- 02 (18))- Publisher
FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480566 / 210- 10- S99- 1Reference 17: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 /
role / disclosureRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1A-
Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 01 (a) (4) (i))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480097 / 470- 10-
S99- 1AReference 18: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2009 / role / commonPracticeRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10- Name
Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1A- Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 01 (a) (4) (ii))- Publisher
FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480097 / 470- 10- S99- 1AReference 19: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2009 /
role / commonPracticeRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph
1A- Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 01 (a) (4) (iii))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480097 /
470- 10- S99- 1AReference 20: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10- Name
Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1A- Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 01 (a) (4) (iii) (A))-
Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480097 / 470- 10- S99- 1AReference 21: http: / / www. xbrl.
org /2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99-
Paragraph 1A- Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 01 (a) (4) (iv))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 /
2147480097 / 470- 10- S99- 1AReference 22: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10-
Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1A- Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 01 (a) (5))- Publisher
FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480097 / 470- 10- S99- 1AReference 23: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 /
role / disclosureRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1B-
Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 02 (a) (4) (i))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480097 / 470- 10-
S99- 1BReference 24: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting
Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1B- Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 02 (a) (4) (iii) (A))- Publisher FASB-
URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480097 / 470- 10- S99- 1BReference 25: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role /
disclosureRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1B-
Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 02 (a) (4) (iii) (B))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480097 / 470-
10- S99- 1BReference 26: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting
Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1B- Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 02 (a) (4) (iv))- Publisher FASB- URI
https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480097 / 470- 10- S99- 1BReference 27: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role /
disclosureRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1B-
Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 02 (a) (5))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480097 / 470- 10-
S99- 1BReference 28: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2009 / role / commonPracticeRef- Topic 852- SubTopic 10- Name
Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 7- Subparagraph (a)- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc.
fasb. org /1943274 / 2147481404 / 852- 10- 50- 7Reference 29: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic
280- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 30- Subparagraph (c)- Publisher
FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147482810 / 280- 10- 50- 30Reference 30: http: / / fasb. org / us- gaap / role
/ ref / legacyRef- Topic 942- SubTopic 210- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1-
Subparagraph (SX 210. 9- 03 (11))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147478546 / 942- 210- S99-
1 Details Name: us- gaap_Assets Namespace Prefix: us- gaap_ Data Type: xbrli: monetaryltemType Balance Type: debit
Period Type: instantX- DefinitionAmount of asset recognized for present right to economic benefit, classified as current.
ReferencesReference 1: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 810- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting
Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 3- Subparagraph (bb)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org /
1943274 /2147481203 / 810- 10- 50- 3Reference 2: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 810-
SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 45- Paragraph 25- Subparagraph (a)- Publisher FASB-
URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147481231 / 810- 10- 45- 25Reference 3: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2003 / role /
disclosureRef- Topic 235- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1-
Subparagraph (SX 210. 4- 08 (g) (1) (ii))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480678 / 235- 10-
S99- 1Reference 4: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 323- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting
Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 3- Subparagraph (c)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org /



1943274 / 2147481687 / 323- 10- 50- 3Reference S: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 825-
SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 28- Subparagraph (f)- Publisher FASB-
URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147482907 / 825- 10- 50- 28Reference 6: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role /
exampleRef- Topic 852- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 55- Paragraph 10- Publisher
FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147481372 / 852- 10- 55- 10Reference 7: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2003 /
role / disclosureRef- Topic 210- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 45- Paragraph 1-
Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147483467 / 210- 10- 45- 1Reference 8: http: / / www. xbrl. org /
2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 210- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph
1- Subparagraph (SX 210. 5- 02 (9))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480566 / 210- 10- S99-
1Reference 9: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards
Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1A- Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 01 (a) (4) (i))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc.
fasb. org /1943274 / 2147480097 / 470- 10- S99- 1AReference 10: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2009 / role /
commonPracticeRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1A-
Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 01 (a) (4) (ii))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480097 / 470- 10-
S99- 1AReference 11: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2009 / role / commonPracticeRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10- Name
Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1A- Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 01 (a) (4) (iii))- Publisher
FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480097 / 470- 10- S99- 1AReference 12: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 /
role / disclosureRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1A-
Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 01 (a) (4) (iii) (A))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480097 / 470-
10- S99- 1AReference 13: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting
Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1A- Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 01 (a) (4) (iv))- Publisher FASB- URI
https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480097 / 470- 10- S99- 1AReference 14: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2003 / role /
disclosureRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1A-
Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 01 (a) (5))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480097 / 470- 10-
S99- 1AReference 15: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting
Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1B- Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 02 (a) (4) (i))- Publisher FASB- URI
https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480097 / 470- 10- S99- 1BReference 16: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2003 / role /
disclosureRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1B-
Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 02 (a) (4) (iii) (A))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480097 / 470-
10- S99- 1BReference 17: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting
Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1B- Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 02 (a) (4) (iii) (B))- Publisher FASB-
URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480097 / 470- 10- S99- 1BReference 18: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role /
disclosureRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1B-
Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 02 (a) (4) (iv))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480097 / 470- 10-
S99- 1BReference 19: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting
Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1B- Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 02 (a) (5))- Publisher FASB- URI https:
// asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480097 / 470- 10- S99- 1BReference 20: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2009 / role /
commonPracticeRef- Topic 852- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 7-
Subparagraph (a)- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147481404 / 852- 10- S0- 7 Details Name: us-
gaap_AssetsCurrent Namespace Prefix: us- gaap_ Data Type: xbrli: monetaryltemType Balance Type: debit Period
Type: instantX- ReferencesNo definition available. Details Name: us- gaap_AssetsCurrentAbstract Namespace Prefix:
us- gaap_ Data Type: xbrli: stringltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: durationX- DefinitionAmount of currency
on hand as well as demand deposits with banks or financial institutions. Includes other kinds of accounts that have the
general characteristics of demand deposits. Also includes short- term, highly liquid investments that are both readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and so near their maturity that they present insignificant risk of changes in value
because of changes in interest rates. Excludes cash and cash equivalents within disposal group and discontinued
operation. ReferencesReference 1: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 210- SubTopic 10- Name
Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (SX 210. 5- 02 (1))- Publisher FASB- URI
https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480566 / 210- 10- S99- 1Reference 2: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2003 / role /
exampleRef- Topic 210- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 45- Paragraph 1-
Subparagraph (a)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147483467 / 210- 10- 45- 1Reference 3: http:
/ / fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref / legacyRef- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Topic 230- SubTopic 10- Section
45- Paragraph 4- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147482740 / 230- 10- 45- 4 Details Name: us-
gaap_CashAndCashEquivalentsAtCarryingValue Namespace Prefix: us- gaap_ Data Type: xbrli: monetaryltemType
Balance Type: debit Period Type: instantX- DefinitionRepresents the caption on the face of the balance sheet to indicate
that the entity has entered into (1) purchase or supply arrangements that will require expending a portion of its
resources to meet the terms thereof, and (2) is exposed to potential losses or, less frequently, gains, arising from (a)
possible claims against a company' s resources due to future performance under contract terms, and (b) possible losses
or likely gains from uncertainties that will ultimately be resolved when one or more future events that are deemed likely
to occur do occur or fail to occur. ReferencesReference 1: http: / / fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref / legacyRef- Topic 942-
SubTopic 210- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (SX 210. 9- 03 (17))-
Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147478546 / 942- 210- S99- 1Reference 2: http: / / fasb. org / us-
gaap / role / ref / legacyRef- Topic 210- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph



1- Subparagraph (SX 210. 5- 02 (25))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480566 / 210- 10- S99-
1Reference 3: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 944- SubTopic 210- Name Accounting
Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (SX 210. 7- 03 (a) (19))- Publisher FASB- URI https: /
/ asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147478777 / 944- 210- S99- 1Reference 4: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef-
Topic 946- SubTopic 210- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (SX 210.
6- 04 (15))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147479170 / 946- 210- S99- 1 Details Name: us-
gaap_CommitmentsAndContingencies Namespace Prefix: us- gaap_ Data Type: xbrli: monetaryltemType Balance
Type: credit Period Type: instantX- DefinitionAggregate par or stated value of issued nonredeemable common stock (or
common stock redeemable solely at the option of the issuer). This item includes treasury stock repurchased
Compensation-Committtee-the entity. Note: elements for number of nonredeemable common shares, par value and other
disclosure concepts are in another section within stockholders' equity. ReferencesReference 1: http: / / fasb. org / us-
gaap / role / ref / legacyRef- Topic 210- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph
1- Subparagraph (SX 210. 5- 02 (29))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480566 / 210- 10- S99-
1Reference 2: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2003 / role / exampleRef- Topic 852- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards
Codification- Section 55- Paragraph 10- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147481372 / 852- 10-
55- 10Reference 3: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 944- SubTopic 210- Name Accounting
Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (SX 210. 7- 03 (a) (22))- Publisher FASB- URI https: /
/ asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147478777 / 944- 210- S99- 1 Details Name: us- gaap_CommonStockValue Namespace Prefix:
us- gaap_ Data Type: xbrli: monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: instantX- DefinitionFair value, after
the effects of master netting arrangements, of a financial asset or other contract with one or more underlyings, notional
amount or payment provision or both, and the contract can be net settled by means outside the contract or delivery of
and-- an Beard-of Direetors-asset, expected to be settled after one year or the normal operating cycle, if longer. Includes
assets not subject to a master netting arrangement and not elected to be offset. ReferencesReference 1 : H#iGThttp: //
www. xbrl. org /2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 210- SubTopic 20- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section
50- Paragraph 3- Subparagraph (c)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147483466 / 210- 20- 50- 3
Details Name: us- gaap_DerivativeAssetsNoncurrent Namespace Prefix: us- gaap_ Data Type: xbrli: monetaryltemType
Balance Type: debit Period Type: instantX- DefinitionThis item represents the carrying amount on the entity' s balance
sheet of its investment in common stock of an equity method investee. This is not required-to-prepare-an indicator of the
fair value of the investment, rather it is the initial cost adjusted for the entity' s share of earnings and losses of the
investee, adjusted for any distributions (dividends) and other than temporary impairment (OTTI) losses recognized.
ReferencesReference 1: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 270- SubTopic 10- Name aceotnting
Accounting restatement-Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (i)- Publisher FASB- URI https:
[/ asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147482964 / 270- 10- S0- 1Reference 2: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef-
Topic 280- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 32- Subparagraph (ee)-
Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147482810 / 280- 10- 50- 32Reference 3: http: / / www. xbrl. org
/2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 323- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 45- Paragraph
1- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147481664 / 323- 10- 45- 1Reference 4: http: / / www. xbrl.
org /2009 / role / commonPracticeRef- Topic 323- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50-
Paragraph 3- Subparagraph (a) (3)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147481687 / 323- 10- 50-
3Reference S: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2009 / role / commonPracticeRef- Topic 210- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting
Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (SX 210. 5- 02 (10))- Publisher FASB- URI https: //
asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480566 / 210- 10- S99- 1Reference 6: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef-
Topic 280- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 25- Subparagraph (a)-
Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147482810 / 280- 10- 50- 25 Details Name: us-
gaap_EquityMethodInvestments Namespace Prefix: us- gaap_ Data Type: xbrli: monetaryltemType Balance Type: debit
Period Type: instantX- DefinitionPresent value of lessee' s discounted obligation for lease payments from finance lease,
classified as defined-current. ReferencesReference 1: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 842-
SubTopic 20- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 45- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (b)- Publisher FASB-
URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147479041 / 842- 20- 45- 1 Details Name: us- gaap_FinanceLeaseLiabilityCurrent
Namespace Prefix: us- gaap_ Data Type: xbrli: monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: instantX-
DefinitionPresent value of lessee' s discounted obligation for lease payments from finance lease, classified as noncurrent.
ReferencesReference 1: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 842- SubTopic 20- Name Accounting
Standards Codification- Section 45- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (b)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org /
1943274 /2147479041 / 842- 20- 45- 1 Details Name: us- gaap_FinanceLeaseLiabilityNoncurrent Namespace Prefix: us-
gaap_ Data Type: xbrli: monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: instantX- DefinitionAmount of liability
recognized for present obligation requiring transfer or otherwise providing economic benefit to others.
ReferencesReference 1: http: / / fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref / legacyRef- Name Accounting Standards Codification-
Section S99- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (SX 210. 5- 02 (22))- SubTopic 10- Topic 210- Publisher FASB- URI https: //
asc. fasb. org /1943274 / 2147480566 / 210- 10- S99- 1Reference 2: http: / / fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref / legacyRef-
Topic 210- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (SX 210.
5- 02 (20))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480566 / 210- 10- S99- 1Reference 3: http: / /
fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref / legacyRef- Topic 210- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section
S99- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (SX 210. 5- 02 (24))- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 /



2147480566 / 210- 10- S99- 1Reference 4: http: / / fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref / legacyRef- Topic 210- SubTopic 10-
Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (SX 210. S- 02 (19))- Publisher
FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480566 / 210- 10- S99- 1Reference 5: http: / / fasb. org / us- gaap / role /
ref / legacyRef- Topic 210- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1-
Subparagraph (SX 210. 5- 02 (25))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480566 / 210- 10- S99-
1Reference 6: http: / / fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref / legacyRef- Topic 210- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards
Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (SX 210. 5- 02 (26))- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org
/1943274 /2147480566 / 210- 10- S99- 1Reference 7: http: / / fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref / legacyRef- Topic 210-
SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (SX 210. 5- 02 (23))-
Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480566 / 210- 10- S99- 1Reference 8: http: / / fasb. org / us-
gaap / role / ref / legacyRef- Topic 210- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph
1- Subparagraph (SX 210. 5- 02 (21))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480566 / 210- 10- S99-
1Reference 9: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 810- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards
Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 3- Subparagraph (c)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 /
2147481203 / 810- 10- 50- 3Reference 10: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 810- SubTopic 10-
Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 45- Paragraph 25- Subparagraph (b)- Publisher FASB- URI https: //
asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147481231 / 810- 10- 45- 25Reference 11: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef-
Topic 810- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 3- Subparagraph (bb)-
Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147481203 / 810- 10- S0- 3Reference 12: http: / / www. xbrl. org
/2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 235- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph
1- Subparagraph (SX 210. 4- 08 (g) (1) (ii))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480678 / 235-
10- S99- 1Reference 13: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 323- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting
Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 3- Subparagraph (c)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org /
1943274 / 2147481687 / 323- 10- 50- 3Reference 14: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 825-
SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 28- Subparagraph (f)- Publisher FASB-
URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147482907 / 825- 10- S0- 28Reference 15: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role /
exampleRef- Topic 946- SubTopic 830- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 55- Paragraph 12- Publisher
FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147479168 / 946- 830- 55- 12Reference 16: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2003 /
role / disclosureRef- Topic 946- SubTopic 210- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1-
Subparagraph (SX 210. 6- 04 (14))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147479170 / 946- 210- S99-
1Reference 17: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting
Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1A- Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 01 (a) (4) (i))- Publisher FASB- URI
https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480097 / 470- 10- S99- 1AReference 18: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2009 / role /
commonPracticeRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1A-
Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 01 (a) (4) (ii))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480097 / 470- 10-
S99- 1AReference 19: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting
Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1A- Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 01 (a) (4) (iii) (A))- Publisher FASB-
URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480097 / 470- 10- S99- 1AReference 20: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2003 / role /
disclosureRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1A-
Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 01 (a) (4) (iv))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480097 / 470- 10-
S99- 1AReference 21: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting
Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1A- Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 01 (a) (5))- Publisher FASB- URI https:
/] asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480097 / 470- 10- S99- 1AReference 22: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role /
disclosureRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1B-
Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 02 (a) (4) (i))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480097 / 470- 10-
S99- 1BReference 23: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting
Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1B- Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 02 (a) (4) (iii) (A))- Publisher FASB-
URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480097 / 470- 10- S99- 1BReference 24: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role /
disclosureRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1B-
Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 02 (a) (4) (iii) (B))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480097 / 470-
10- S99- 1BReference 25: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting
Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1B- Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 02 (a) (4) (iv))- Publisher FASB- URI
https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480097 / 470- 10- S99- 1BReference 26: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role /
disclosureRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1B-
Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 02 (a) (5))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480097 / 470- 10-
S99- 1BReference 27: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2009 / role / commonPracticeRef- Topic 852- SubTopic 10- Name
Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 7- Subparagraph (a)- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc.
fasb. org /1943274 / 2147481404 / 852- 10- 50- 7Reference 28: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2009 / role / commonPracticeRef-
Topic 852- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 7- Subparagraph (b)-
Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147481404 / 852- 10- 50- 7Reference 29: http: / / www. xbrl. org
/2003 / role / exampleRef- Topic 280- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 30-
Subparagraph (d)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147482810 / 280- 10- 50- 30 Details Name:
us- gaap_Liabilities Namespace Prefix: us- gaap_ Data Type: xbrli: monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period



Type: instantX- DefinitionAmount of liabilities and equity items, including the portion of equity attributable to
noncontrolling interests, if any. ReferencesReference 1: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / exampleRef- Topic 852-
SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 55- Paragraph 10- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc.
fasb. org /1943274 / 2147481372 / 852- 10- 55- 10Reference 2: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic
944- SubTopic 210- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (SX 210. 7- 03
(a) (25))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147478777 / 944- 210- S99- 1Reference 3: http: / /
www. xbrl. org /2009 / role / commonPracticeRef- Topic 235- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification-
Section S99- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (SX 210. 4- 08 (g) (1) (ii))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org /
1943274 /2147480678 / 235- 10- S99- 1Reference 4: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2009 / role / commonPracticeRef- Topic 323-
SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 3- Subparagraph (c)- Publisher FASB-
URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147481687 / 323- 10- S0- 3Reference S: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2009 / role /
commonPracticeRef- Topic 825- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 28-
Subparagraph (f)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147482907 / 825- 10- S0- 28Reference 6: http:
/ / fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref / legacyRef- Topic 942- SubTopic 210- Name Accounting Standards Codification-
Section S99- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (SX 210. 9- 03 (23))- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 /
2147478546 / 942- 210- S99- 1Reference 7: http: / / fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref / legacyRef- Topic 210- SubTopic 10-
Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (SX 210. S- 02 (32))- Publisher
FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480566 / 210- 10- S99- 1 Details Name: us-
gaap_LiabilitiesAndStockholdersEquity Namespace Prefix: us- gaap_ Data Type: xbrli: monetaryltemType Balance
Type: credit Period Type: instantX- DefinitionTotal obligations incurred as part of normal operations that are expected
to be paid during the following twelve months or within one business cycle, if longer. ReferencesReference 1: http: //
fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref / legacyRef- Topic 210- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section
S99- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (SX 210. 5- 02 (21))- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 /
2147480566 / 210- 10- S99- 1Reference 2: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 810- SubTopic 10-
Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 3- Subparagraph (c)- Publisher FASB- URI https: //
asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147481203 / 810- 10- 50- 3Reference 3: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef-
Topic 810- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 45- Paragraph 25- Subparagraph (b)-
Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147481231 / 810- 10- 45- 25Reference 4: http: / / www. xbrl. org
/2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 810- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph
3- Subparagraph (bb)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147481203 / 810- 10- 50- 3Reference S:
http: // www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 235- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification-
Section S99- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (SX 210. 4- 08 (g) (1) (ii))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org /
1943274 /2147480678 / 235- 10- S99- 1Reference 6: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 323-
SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 3- Subparagraph (c)- Publisher FASB-
URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147481687 / 323- 10- 50- 3Reference 7: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role /
disclosureRef- Topic 825- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 28-
Subparagraph (f)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147482907 / 825- 10- S0- 28Reference 8: http:
// www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / exampleRef- Topic 852- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section
55- Paragraph 10- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147481372 / 852- 10- 55- 10Reference 9: http:
[/ www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 210- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification-
Section 45- Paragraph 5- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147483467 / 210- 10- 45- SReference
10: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards
Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1A- Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 01 (a) (4) (i))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc.
fasb. org /1943274 / 2147480097 / 470- 10- S99- 1AReference 11: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2009 / role /
commonPracticeRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1A-
Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 01 (a) (4) (ii))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480097 / 470- 10-
S99- 1AReference 12: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting
Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1A- Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 01 (a) (4) (iii) (A))- Publisher FASB-
URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480097 / 470- 10- S99- 1AReference 13: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role /
disclosureRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1A-
Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 01 (a) (4) (iv))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480097 / 470- 10-
S99- 1AReference 14: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting
Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1A- Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 01 (a) (5))- Publisher FASB- URI https:
[/ asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480097 / 470- 10- S99- 1AReference 15: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2003 / role /
disclosureRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1B-
Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 02 (a) (4) (i))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480097 / 470- 10-
S99- 1BReference 16: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting
Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1B- Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 02 (a) (4) (iii) (A))- Publisher FASB-
URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480097 / 470- 10- S99- 1BReference 17: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role /
disclosureRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1B-
Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 02 (a) (4) (iii) (B))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480097 / 470-
10- S99- 1BReference 18: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting
Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1B- Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 02 (a) (4) (iv))- Publisher FASB- URI



https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480097 / 470- 10- S99- 1BReference 19: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2003 / role /
disclosureRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1B-
Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 02 (a) (5))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480097 / 470- 10-
S99- 1BReference 20: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2009 / role / commonPracticeRef- Topic 852- SubTopic 10- Name
Accounting Standards Codification- Section S0- Paragraph 7- Subparagraph (a)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc.
fasb. org /1943274 / 2147481404 / 852- 10- 50- 7Reference 21: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2009 / role / commonPracticeRef-
Topic 852- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 7- Subparagraph (b)-
Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147481404 / 852- 10- 50- 7 Details Name: us-
gaap_LiabilitiesCurrent Namespace Prefix: us- gaap_ Data Type: xbrli: monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period
Type: instantX- ReferencesNo definition available. Details Name: us- gaap_LiabilitiesCurrentAbstract Namespace
Prefix: us- gaap_ Data Type: xbrli: stringltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: durationX- DefinitionAmount, after
deduction of unamortized premium (discount) and debt issuance cost, of long- term debt classified as current. Excludes
lease obligation. ReferencesReference 1: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 210- SubTopic 10-
Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (SX 210. 5- 02 (20))- Publisher
FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480566 / 210- 10- S99- 1 Details Name: us-
gaap_LongTermDebtCurrent Namespace Prefix: us- gaap_ Data Type: xbrli: monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit
Period Type: instantX- DefinitionAmount of equity (deficit) attributable to noncontrolling interest. Excludes temporary
equity. ReferencesReference 1: http: / / fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref / legacyRef- Topic 210- SubTopic 10- Name
Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (SX 210. S- 02 (31))- Publisher FASB-
URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480566 / 210- 10- S99- 1Reference 2: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2003 / role /
disclosureRef- Topic 235- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1-
Subparagraph (SX 210. 4- 08 (g) (1) (ii))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480678 / 235- 10-
S99- 1Reference 3: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 323- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting
Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 3- Subparagraph (c)- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org /
1943274 /2147481687 / 323- 10- 50- 3Reference 4: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 825-
SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 28- Subparagraph (f)- Publisher FASB-
URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147482907 / 825- 10- S0- 28Reference 5: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2003 / role /
disclosureRef- Topic 944- SubTopic 210- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1-
Subparagraph (SX 210. 7- 03 (a) (24))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147478777 / 944- 210-
S99- 1Reference 6: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 946- SubTopic 210- Name Accounting
Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (SX 210. 6- 04 (19))- Publisher FASB- URI https: //
asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147479170 / 946- 210- S99- 1Reference 7: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef-
Topic 470- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1A- Subparagraph (SX 210.
13- 01 (a) (4) (i))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480097 / 470- 10- S99- 1AReference 8:
http: // www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification-
Section S99- Paragraph 1A- Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 01 (a) (4) (iv))- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org /
1943274 /2147480097 / 470- 10- S99- 1AReference 9: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 470-
SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1A- Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 01 (a)
(5))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480097 / 470- 10- S99- 1AReference 10: http: / / www.
xbrl. org /2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99-
Paragraph 1B- Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 02 (a) (4) (i))- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 /
2147480097 / 470- 10- S99- 1BReference 11: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10-
Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1B- Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 02 (a) (4) (iv))-
Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480097 / 470- 10- S99- 1BReference 12: http: / / www. xbrl.
org /2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99-
Paragraph 1B- Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 02 (a) (5))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 /
2147480097 / 470- 10- S99- 1BReference 13: http: / / fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref / legacyRef- Topic 942- SubTopic 210-
Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (SX 210. 9- 03 (22))- Publisher
FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147478546 / 942- 210- S99- 1 Details Name: us- gaap_MinorityInterest
Namespace Prefix: us- gaap_ Data Type: xbrli: monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: instantX-
DefinitionPresent value of lessee' s discounted obligation for lease payments from operating lease, classified as current.
ReferencesReference 1: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 842- SubTopic 20- Name Accounting
Standards Codification- Section 45- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (b)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org /
1943274 /2147479041 / 842- 20- 45- 1 Details Name: us- gaap_OperatingLeaseLiabilityCurrent Namespace Prefix: us-
gaap_ Data Type: xbrli: monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: instantX- DefinitionPresent value of
lessee' s discounted obligation for lease payments from operating lease, classified as noncurrent. ReferencesReference 1:
http: // www. xbrl. org /2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 842- SubTopic 20- Name Accounting Standards Codification-
Section 45- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (b)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147479041 / 842-
20- 45- 1 Details Name: us- gaap_OperatingL.easeLiabilityNoncurrent Namespace Prefix: us- gaap_ Data Type: xbrli:
monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: instantX- DefinitionAmount of lessee' s right to use underlying
asset under operating lease. ReferencesReference 1: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 842-
SubTopic 20- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 45- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (a)- Publisher FASB-
URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147479041 / 842- 20- 45- 1 Details Name: us-



gaap_OperatinglLeaseRightOfUseAsset Namespace Prefix: us- gaap_ Data Type: xbrli: monetaryltemType Balance
Type: debit Period Type: instantX- DefinitionAggregate par or stated value of issued nonredeemable preferred stock (or
preferred stock redeemable solely at the option of the issuer). This item includes treasury stock repurchased by Rute
10Db-the entity. Note: elements for number of nonredeemable preferred shares, par value and other disclosure concepts
are in another section within stockholders' equity. ReferencesReference 1 : http: / / fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref /
legacyRef- Topic 210- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph
(SX 210. 5- 02 (28))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480566 / 210- 10- S99- 1Reference 2:
http: // www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / exampleRef- Topic 852- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification-
Section 55- Paragraph 10- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147481372 / 852- 10- 55- 10Reference
3: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 944- SubTopic 210- Name Accounting Standards
Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (SX 210. 7- 03 (a) (21))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb.
org /1943274 /2147478777 / 944- 210- S99- 1 Details Name: us- gaap_PreferredStockValue Namespace Prefix: us- gaap_
Data Type: xbrli: monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: instantX- DefinitionAmount of asset related to
consideration paid in advance for costs that provide economic benefits within a future period of one year or the normal
operating cycle . if longer. ReferencesReference 1: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2003 / role / exampleRef- Topic 210-
SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 45- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (g)- Publisher FASB-
URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147483467 / 210- 10- 45- 1Reference 2: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2003 / role /
disclosureRef- Topic 210- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1-
Subparagraph (SX 210. 5- 02 (7))- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 /2147480566 / 210- 10- S99-
1Reference 3: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 340- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards
Codification- Section 05- Paragraph 5- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147482955 / 340- 10- 05-
SReference 4: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 340- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards
Codification- Section 45- Paragraph 1- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147483032 / 340- 10- 45-
1 Details Name: us- gaap_PrepaidExpenseCurrent Namespace Prefix: us- gaap_ Data Type: xbrli: monetaryltemType
Balance Type: debit Period Type: instantX- DefinitionAmount after accumulated depreciation, depletion and
amortization of physical assets used in the normal conduct of business to produce goods and services and not intended
for resale. Examples ineluding-include , but are not limited to eerreet, land, buildings, machinery and equipment, office
equipment, and furniture and fixtures. ReferencesReference 1: http: / / fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref / legacyRef- Name
Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 1- SubTopic 10- Topic 360- Publisher FASB- URI https: //
asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147482099 / 360- 10- 50- 1Reference 2: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2003 / role / disclosureRef-
Topic 842- SubTopic 20- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 7A- Subparagraph (a)-
Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147478964 / 842- 20- S0- 7AReference 3: http: / / www. xbrl. org
/2003 / role / exampleRef- Topic 852- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S5- Paragraph 10-
Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147481372 / 852- 10- 55- 10Reference 4: http: / / www. xbrl. org
/2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 944- SubTopic 210- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99-
Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (SX 210. 7- 03 (a) (8))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147478777 /
944- 210- S99- 1Reference 5: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 942- SubTopic 360- Name
Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 1- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 /
2147478451 / 942- 360- 50- 1 Details Name: us- gaap_PropertyPlantAndEquipmentNet Namespace Prefix: us- gaap_
Data Type: xbrli: monetaryltemType Balance Type: debit Period Type: instantX- DefinitionAmount of accumulated
undistributed earnings (deficit). ReferencesReference 1: http: / / fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref / legacyRef- Topic 210-
SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (SX 210. 5- 02 (30)
(a) (3))- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480566 / 210- 10- S99- 1Reference 2: http: / / www.
xbrl. org /2003 / role / exampleRef- Topic 852- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 55-
Paragraph 10- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147481372 / 852- 10- 55- 10Reference 3: http: / /
www. xbrl. org /2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 944- SubTopic 40- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section
65- Paragraph 2- Subparagraph (g) (2) (i)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480016 / 944- 40-
65- 2Reference 4: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 944- SubTopic 40- Name Accounting
Standards Codification- Section 65- Paragraph 2- Subparagraph (h) (2)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org /
1943274 /2147480016 / 944- 40- 65- 2Reference S: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 946-
SubTopic 20- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 11- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc.
fasb. org /1943274 / 2147480990 / 946- 20- 50- 11Reference 6: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic
944- SubTopic 210- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (SX 210. 7- 03
(a) (23) (a) (4))- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147478777 / 944- 210- S99- 1Reference 7: http: /
/ www. xbrl. org /2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 946- SubTopic 210- Name Accounting Standards Codification-
Section S99- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (SX 210. 6- 04 (17))- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 /
2147479170 / 946- 210- S99- 1Reference 8: http: / / fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref / legacyRef- Topic 505- SubTopic 10-
Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (SX 210. 3- 04)- Publisher FASB-
URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480008 / 505- 10- S99- 1 Details Name: us-
gaap_RetainedEarningsAccumulatedDeficit Namespace Prefix: us- gaap_ Data Type: xbrli: monetaryltemType Balance
Type: credit Period Type: instantX- DefinitionThe amount of an etrror-asset, typically cash, provided to a counterparty to
provide certain assurance of performance by the entity pursuant to the terms of a written or oral agreement, such as a
lease. ReferencesReference 1: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2009 / role / commonPracticeRef- Topic 210- SubTopic 10- Name



Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (SX 210. 5- 02 (17))- Publisher FASB-
URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480566 / 210- 10- S99- 1 Details Name: us- gaap_SecurityDeposit Namespace
Prefix: us- gaap_Data Type: xbrli: monetaryltemType Balance Type: debit Period Type: instantX- DefinitionAmount of
equity (deficit) attributable to parent. Excludes temporary equity and equity attributable to noncontrolling interest.
ReferencesReference 1: http: / / fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref / legacyRef- Topic 210- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting
Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (SX 210. 5- 02 (29))- Publisher FASB- URI https: //
asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480566 / 210- 10- S99- 1Reference 2: http: / / fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref / legacyRef-
Topic 210- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (SX 210.
5- 02 (30))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480566 / 210- 10- S99- 1Reference 3: http: / /
fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref / legacyRef- Topic 210- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section
S99- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (SX 210. 5- 02 (31))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 /
2147480566 / 210- 10- S99- 1Reference 4: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / exampleRef- Topic 852- SubTopic 10-
Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 55- Paragraph 10- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org /
1943274 / 2147481372 / 852- 10- 55- 10Reference 5: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / exampleRef- Topic 946-
SubTopic 830- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 55- Paragraph 12- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc.
fasb. org /1943274 / 2147479168 / 946- 830- 55- 12Reference 6: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic
946- SubTopic 210- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (SX 210. 6- 04
(19))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147479170 / 946- 210- S99- 1Reference 7: http: / / www.
xbrl. org /2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 946- SubTopic 210- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99-
Paragraph 2- Subparagraph (SX 210. 6- 05 (4))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147479170 /
946- 210- S99- 2Reference 8: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2009 / role / commonPracticeRef- Topic 946- SubTopic 220- Name
Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 3- Subparagraph (SX 210. 6- 09 (4) (b))- Publisher FASB-
URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147479134 / 946- 220- S99- 3Reference 9: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role /
disclosureRef- Topic 946- SubTopic 220- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 3-
Subparagraph (SX 210. 6- 09 (6))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147479134 / 946- 220- S99-
3Reference 10: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 946- SubTopic 220- Name Accounting
Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 3- Subparagraph (SX 210. 6- 09 (7))- Publisher FASB- URI https: //
asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147479134 / 946- 220- S99- 3Reference 11: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2009 / role /
commonPracticeRef- Topic 235- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1-
Subparagraph (SX 210. 4- 08 (g) (1) (ii))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480678 / 235- 10-
S99- 1Reference 12: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2009 / role / commonPracticeRef- Topic 323- SubTopic 10- Name
Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 3- Subparagraph (c)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc.
fasb. org /1943274 / 2147481687 / 323- 10- 50- 3Reference 13: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2009 / role / commonPracticeRef-
Topic 825- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 28- Subparagraph (f)-
Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147482907 / 825- 10- 50- 28Reference 14: http: / / fasb. org / us-
gaap / role / ref / legacyRef- Topic 310- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph
2- Subparagraph (SAB Topic 4. E)- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480418 / 310- 10- S99- 2
Details Name: us- gaap_StockholdersEquity Namespace Prefix: us- gaap_Data Type: xbrli: monetaryltemType Balance
Type: credit Period Type: instantX- ReferencesNo definition available. Details Name: us-
gaap_StockholdersEquityAbstract Namespace Prefix: us- gaap_ Data Type: xbrli: stringltemType Balance Type: na
Period Type: durationX- DefinitionAmount of equity (deficit) attributable to parent and noncontrolling interest.
Excludes temporary equity. ReferencesReference 1: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 250-
SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 6- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc.
fasb. org /1943274 / 2147483443 / 250- 10- 50- 6Reference 2: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic
805- SubTopic 60- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 65- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (g)- Publisher
FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147476176 / 805- 60- 65- 1Reference 3: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role
/ disclosureRef- Topic 805- SubTopic 60- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 65- Paragraph 1-
Subparagraph (d) (1)- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147476176 / 805- 60- 65- 1Reference 4:
http: // www. xbrl. org /2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 740- SubTopic 323- Name Accounting Standards Codification-
Section 65- Paragraph 2- Subparagraph (e)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147478666 / 740-
323- 65- 2Reference 5: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 740- SubTopic 323- Name Accounting
Standards Codification- Section 65- Paragraph 2- Subparagraph (g) (4)- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org /
1943274 / 2147478666 / 740- 323- 65- 2Reference 6: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 740-
SubTopic 323- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 65- Paragraph 2- Subparagraph (d) (2)- Publisher
FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147478666 / 740- 323- 65- 2Reference 7: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2003 /
role / disclosureRef- Topic 740- SubTopic 323- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 65- Paragraph 2-
Subparagraph (d) (1)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147478666 / 740- 323- 65- 2Reference 8:
http: // www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 848- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification-
Section 65- Paragraph 2- Subparagraph (a) (3) (iii) (03)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 /
2147483550 / 848- 10- 65- 2Reference 9: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 842- SubTopic 10-
Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 65- Paragraph 8- Subparagraph (c) (3)- Publisher FASB- URI https: /
/ asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147479832 / 842- 10- 65- 8Reference 10: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef-
Topic 250- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 45- Paragraph 24- Publisher FASB- URI



https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147483421 / 250- 10- 45- 24Reference 11: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2003 / role /
disclosureRef- Topic 250- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 45- Paragraph 23-
Subparagraph (b)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147483421 / 250- 10- 45- 23Reference 12:
http: // www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 250- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification-
Section 45- Paragraph 5- Subparagraph (b)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147483421 / 250-
10- 45- SReference 13: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 326- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting
Standards Codification- Section 65- Paragraph 5- Subparagraph (c) (2)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org /
1943274 / 2147479654 / 326- 10- 65- SReference 14: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 815-
SubTopic 20- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 65- Paragraph 6- Subparagraph (e)- Publisher FASB-
URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480528 / 815- 20- 65- 6Reference 15: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role /
disclosureRef- Topic 815- SubTopic 20- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 65- Paragraph 6-
Subparagraph (h) (1)- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480528 / 815- 20- 65- 6Reference 16:
http: // www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 815- SubTopic 20- Name Accounting Standards Codification-
Section 65- Paragraph 6- Subparagraph (h) (1) (i)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480528 /
815- 20- 65- 6Reference 17: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 815- SubTopic 20- Name
Accounting Standards Codification- Section 65- Paragraph 6- Subparagraph (h) (1) (iii)- Publisher FASB- URI https: //
asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480528 / 815- 20- 65- 6Reference 18: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef-
Topic 815- SubTopic 20- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 65- Paragraph 6- Subparagraph (h) (1) (iv)-
Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480528 / 815- 20- 65- 6Reference 19: http: / / www. xbrl. org
/2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 815- SubTopic 20- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 65- Paragraph
6- Subparagraph (i) (3)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480528 / 815- 20- 65- 6Reference
20: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 105- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards
Codification- Section 65- Paragraph 6- Subparagraph (c)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 /
2147479343 / 105- 10- 65- 6Reference 21: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 105- SubTopic 10-
Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 65- Paragraph 6- Subparagraph (d)- Publisher FASB- URI https: //
asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147479343 / 105- 10- 65- 6Reference 22: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef-
Topic 944- SubTopic 40- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 65- Paragraph 2- Subparagraph (f) (1)-
Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480016 / 944- 40- 65- 2Reference 23: http: / / www. xbrl. org
/2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 944- SubTopic 40- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 65- Paragraph
2- Subparagraph (f) (2)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480016 / 944- 40- 65- 2Reference
24: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 740- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards
Codification- Section 65- Paragraph 8- Subparagraph (d) (2)- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 /
2147482615 / 740- 10- 65- 8Reference 25: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 740- SubTopic 10-
Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 65- Paragraph 8- Subparagraph (d) (3)- Publisher FASB- URI https:
// asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147482615 / 740- 10- 65- 8Reference 26: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2003 / role / disclosureRef-
Topic 326- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 65- Paragraph 4- Subparagraph (d)-
Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147479654 / 326- 10- 65- 4Reference 27: http: / / www. xbrl. org
/2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 250- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph
1- Subparagraph (b) (3)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147483443 / 250- 10- 50- 1Reference
28: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 815- SubTopic 40- Name Accounting Standards
Codification- Section 65- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (e) (3)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 /
2147480175 / 815- 40- 65- 1Reference 29: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 250- SubTopic 10-
Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 7- Subparagraph (b)- Publisher FASB- URI https: //
asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147483443 / 250- 10- 50- 7Reference 30: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef-
Topic 220- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 5- Publisher FASB- URI
https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147482765 / 220- 10- 50- SReference 31: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role /
disclosureRef- Topic 830- SubTopic 30- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 1- Publisher
FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147481674 / 830- 30- 50- 1Reference 32: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 /
role / disclosureRef- Topic 830- SubTopic 30- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 45- Paragraph 17-
Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147481694 / 830- 30- 45- 17Reference 33: http: / / www. xbrl.
org /2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 830- SubTopic 30- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 45-
Paragraph 20- Subparagraph (a)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147481694 / 830- 30- 45-
20Reference 34: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / exampleRef- Topic 946- SubTopic 830- Name Accounting
Standards Codification- Section 55- Paragraph 11- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 /2147479168 /
946- 830- 55- 11Reference 35: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 946- SubTopic 205- Name
Accounting Standards Codification- Section 45- Paragraph 3- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 /
2147478009 / 946- 205- 45- 3Reference 36: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 946- SubTopic 505-
Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 3- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org /
1943274 / 2147478448 / 946- 505- S0- 3Reference 37: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 946-
SubTopic 210- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (SX 210. 6- 04 (19))-
Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147479170 / 946- 210- S99- 1Reference 38: http: / / www. xbrl.
org /2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 946- SubTopic 210- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99-
Paragraph 2- Subparagraph (SX 210. 6- 05 (4))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147479170 /



946- 210- S99- 2Reference 39: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2009 / role / commonPracticeRef- Topic 946- SubTopic 220- Name
Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 3- Subparagraph (SX 210. 6- 09 (4) (b))- Publisher FASB-
URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147479134 / 946- 220- S99- 3Reference 40: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2003 / role /
disclosureRef- Topic 946- SubTopic 220- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 3-
Subparagraph (SX 210. 6- 09 (6))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147479134 / 946- 220- S99-
3Reference 41: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 946- SubTopic 220- Name Accounting
Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 3- Subparagraph (SX 210. 6- 09 (7))- Publisher FASB- URI https: //
asc. fash. org / 1943274 / 2147479134 / 946- 220- S99- 3Reference 42: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef-
Topic 505- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (SX 210.
3- 04)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480008 / 505- 10- S99- 1Reference 43: http: / / www.
xbrl. org /2009 / role / commonPracticeRef- Topic 235- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section
S99- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (SX 210. 4- 08 (g) (1) (ii))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 /
2147480678 / 235- 10- S99- 1Reference 44: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2009 / role / commonPracticeRef- Topic 323-
SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 3- Subparagraph (c)- Publisher FASB-
URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147481687 / 323- 10- 50- 3Reference 45: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2009 / role /
commonPracticeRef- Topic 825- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 28-
Subparagraph (f)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147482907 / 825- 10- 50- 28Reference 46:
http: / / fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref / legacyRef- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Topic 810- SubTopic 10-
Section 45- Paragraph 15- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147481231 / 810- 10- 45- 15Reference
47: http: / / fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref / legacyRef- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Topic 810- SubTopic
10- Section 45- Paragraph 16- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147481231 / 810- 10- 45-
16Reference 48: http: / / fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref / legacyRef- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Topic 810-
SubTopic 10- Section 55- Paragraph 41- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147481175 / 810- 10-
55- 41Reference 49: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 350- SubTopic 60- Name Accounting
Standards Codification- Section 65- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (b)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org /
1943274 /2147476166 / 350- 60- 65- 1 Details Name: us-
gaap_StockholdersEquityIncludingPortionAttributableToNoncontrollingInterest Namespace Prefix: us- gaap_ Data
Type: xbrli: monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: instantX- Details Name: us-
gaap_StatementClassOfStockAxis = us- gaap_SeriesAPreferredStockMember Namespace Prefix: Data Type: na Balance
Type: Period Type: Consolidated Balance Sheets (Parentheticals)- $ / shares Dec. 31, 2024 Dec. 31, 2023Common stock,
par value (in Dollars per share) $ 0. 001 $ 0. 001Common stock, shares authorized 90, 000, 000 90, 000, 000Common
stock, shares issued 18, 792, 360 16, 644, 711Common stock, shares outstanding 18, 792, 360 16, 644, 711Series A
Preferred Stock Preferred stock, shares authorized 1, 000, 000 1, 000, 000Preferred stock, shares issued Preferred stock,
shares outstanding X- DefinitionFace amount or stated value per share of common stock. ReferencesReference 1: http: / /
fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref / legacyRef- Topic 210- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section
S99- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (SX 210. 5- 02 (29))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 /
2147480566 / 210- 10- S99- 1 Details Name: us- gaap_CommonStockParOrStatedValuePerShare Namespace Prefix: us-
gaap_ Data Type: dtr- types: perShareltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: instantX- DefinitionThe maximum
number of common shares permitted to be issued by an entity' s charter and bylaws. ReferencesReference 1: http: / /
fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref / legacyRef- Topic 210- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section
S99- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (SX 210. 5- 02 (29))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 /
2147480566 / 210- 10- S99- 1Reference 2: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 946- SubTopic 210-
Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (SX 210. 6- 04 (16) (a))- Publisher
FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147479170 / 946- 210- S99- 1 Details Name: us-
gaap_CommonStockSharesAuthorized Namespace Prefix: us- gaap_Data Type: xbrli: sharesItemType Balance Type:
na Period Type: instantX- DefinitionTotal number of common shares of an entity wotldresuit-have been sold or
granted to shareholders (includes common shares that were issued, repurchased and remain in the treasury). These
shares represent capital invested by the firm' s shareholders and owners, and may be all or only a portion of the number
of shares authorized. Shares issued include shares outstanding and shares held in the treasury. ReferencesReference 1:
http: / / fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref / legacyRef- Topic 210- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification-
Section S99- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (SX 210. 5- 02 (29))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 /
2147480566 / 210- 10- S99- 1 Details Name: us- gaap_CommonStockSharesIssued Namespace Prefix: us- gaap_Data
Type: xbrli: sharesItemType Balance Type: na Period Type: instantX- DefinitionNumber of shares of common stock
outstanding. Common stock represent the ownership interest matertabmisstatementif-corporation.
ReferencesReference 1: http: / / fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref / legacyRef- Name Accounting Standards Codification-
Section S0- Paragraph 2- SubTopic 10- Topic S05- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147481112 /
505- 10- 50- 2Reference 2: http: / / fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref / legacyRef- Topic 210- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting
Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (SX 210. 5- 02 (29))- Publisher FASB- URI https: //
asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480566 / 210- 10- S99- 1Reference 3: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef-
Topic 946- SubTopic 210- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 2- Subparagraph (SX 210.
6- 05 (4))- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147479170 / 946- 210- S99- 2Reference 4: http: / /
www. xbrl. org /2009 / role / commonPracticeRef- Topic 946- SubTopic 220- Name Accounting Standards Codification-
Section S99- Paragraph 3- Subparagraph (SX 210. 6- 09 (4) (b))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 /



2147479134 / 946- 220- S99- 3Reference S: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 946- SubTopic 210-
Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (SX 210. 6- 04 (16) (a))- Publisher
FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147479170 / 946- 210- S99- 1Reference 6: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2009 /
role / commonPracticeRef- Topic 946- SubTopic 220- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph
3- Subparagraph (SX 210. 6- 09 (7))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147479134 / 946- 220- S99-
3 Details Name: us- gaap_CommonStockSharesOutstanding Namespace Prefix: us- gaap_Data Type: xbrli:
sharesItemType Balance Type: na Period Type: instantX- DefinitionThe maximum number of nonredeemable preferred
shares (or preferred stock redeemable solely at the error-were-eorreeted-option of the issuer) permitted to be issued by an
entity' s charter and bylaws. ReferencesReference 1: http: / / fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref / legacyRef- Topic 210-
SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (SX 210. 5- 02 (28))-
Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480566 / 210- 10- S99- 1Reference 2: http: / / www. xbrl. org
/2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 946- SubTopic 210- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99-
Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (SX 210. 6- 04 (16) (a))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147479170
/946- 210- S99- 1 Details Name: us- gaap_PreferredStockSharesAuthorized Namespace Prefix: us- gaap_Data Type:
xbrli: sharesItemType Balance Type: na Period Type: instantX- DefinitionNumber of shares issued for nonredeemable
preferred shares and preferred shares redeemable solely at option of issuer. Includes, but is not limited to, preferred
shares issued, repurchased, and held as treasury shares. Excludes preferred shares classified as debt.
ReferencesReference 1: http: / / fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref / legacyRef- Topic 210- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting
Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (SX 210. 5- 02 (28))- Publisher FASB- URI https: //
asc. fash. org / 1943274 / 2147480566 / 210- 10- S99- 1Reference 2: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef-
Topic 505- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 13- Subparagraph (a)-
Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147481112 / 505- 10- 50- 13 Details Name: us-
gaap_PreferredStockSharesIssued Namespace Prefix: us- gaap_ Data Type: xbrli: sharesItemType Balance Type: na
Period Type: instantX- DefinitionAggregate share number for all nonredeemable preferred stock (or preferred stock
redeemable solely at the option of the issuer) held by stockholders. Does not include preferred shares that have been
repurchased. ReferencesReference 1: http: / / fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref / legacyRef- Topic 210- SubTopic 10- Name
Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (SX 210. S- 02 (28))- Publisher FASB-
URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480566 / 210- 10- S99- 1Reference 2: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2003 / role /
disclosureRef- Topic 946- SubTopic 210- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 2-
Subparagraph (SX 210. 6- 05 (4))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147479170 / 946- 210- S99-
2Reference 3: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2009 / role / commonPracticeRef- Topic 946- SubTopic 220- Name Accounting
Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 3- Subparagraph (SX 210. 6- 09 (4) (b))- Publisher FASB- URI https: //
asc. fash. org / 1943274 / 2147479134 / 946- 220- S99- 3Reference 4: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2003 / role / disclosureRef-
Topic 946- SubTopic 210- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (SX 210.
6- 04 (16) (a))- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147479170 / 946- 210- S99- 1Reference S: http: / /
www. xbrl. org /2009 / role / commonPracticeRef- Topic 946- SubTopic 220- Name Accounting Standards Codification-
Section S99- Paragraph 3- Subparagraph (SX 210. 6- 09 (7))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 /
2147479134 / 946- 220- S99- 3 Details Name: us- gaap_PreferredStockSharesOutstanding Namespace Prefix: us- gaap_
Data Type: xbrli: sharesIitemType Balance Type: na Period Type: instantX- Details Name: us-
gaap_StatementClassOfStockAxis = us- gaap_SeriesAPreferredStockMember Namespace Prefix: Data Type: na Balance
Type: Period Type: Consolidated Statements of Operations- USD ($) 12 Months EndedDec. 31, 2024 Dec. 31,
2023Revenues: Total revenues $ 59, 265, 125 $ 43, 571, 720Less: Cost of revenues (excluding depreciation) 38, 987, 911
28, 557, 004Gross profit 20, 277, 214 15, 014, 7160perating expenses: Selling, general and administrative 18, 313, 904 19,
177, 492Stock based compensation 14, 064, 883 10, 834, 838Depreciation and amortization 17, 877, 770 38, 080,
506Change in fair value of derivative asset 1, 173, 104 7, 241, 883Total operating expenses 51, 429, 661 75, 334, 719Loss
from operations (31, 152, 447) (60, 320, 003) Non- operating income (expense): Gain (loss) on foreign currency
transactions 1, 009, 223 (1, 738, 845) Interest expense (3, 097, 640) (3, 048, 770) Impairment of financial assets (1, 837,
063) Profit on sale of site 3, 353, 130Gain (loss) on deconsolidation (12, 444, 097) 9, 472, 976Gain on sale of marketable
securities 1, 437, 2300ther expenses (39, 638) (396, 691) the-Other income 364, 382 517, 918Loss from equity method
investments (36, 356) Total non- operating income (expense), net (14, 207, 770) 7, 723, 529Loss before income taxes (45,
360, 217) (52, 596, 474) Income tax expenses (976, 570) (5, 948, 619) Net Loss (46, 336, 787) (58, 545, 093) Less: Net (loss)
gain attributable to non- controlling interests (205, 086) 1, 876, 729Net Loss attributed to Mawson common shareholders
stockholders $ (46, 131, 701) $ (60, 421, 822) Net Loss per share, basic & diluted (in Dollars per share) $ (2. 59) $ (3. 86)
Net Loss per share, diluted (in Dollars per share) $ (2. 59) $ (3. 86) Weighted average number of shares outstanding (in
Shares) 17, 828, 761 15, 659, 241Digital colocation revenue Revenues: Total revenues $ 38, 546, 912 $ 16, 364, 767Energy
management revenue Revenues: Total revenues 7, 576, 553 5, 354, 272Digital assets mining revenue Revenues: Total
revenues 12, 591, 660 21, 590, S23Equipment sales Revenues: Total revenues $ 550, 000 $ 262, 158X- DefinitionProfit on
sale of site. ReferencesNo definition available. Details Name: migi ProfitOnSaleOfSite Namespace Prefix: migi Data
Type: xbrli: monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: durationX- DefinitionThe aggregate cost of goods
produced and sold and services rendered during the reporting period. ReferencesReference 1: http: / / www. xbrl. org /
2003 / role / exampleRef- Topic 280- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 55- Paragraph 48-
Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147482785 / 280- 10- 55- 48Reference 2: http: / / fasb. org / us-
gaap / role / ref / legacyRef- Topic 220- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph



2- Subparagraph (SX 210. 5- 03 (2))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147483621 / 220- 10- S99-
2Reference 3: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 235- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards
Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (SX 210. 4- 08 (g) (1) (ii))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc.
fasb. org /1943274 / 2147480678 / 235- 10- S99- 1Reference 4: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic
323- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 3- Subparagraph (c)- Publisher
FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147481687 / 323- 10- 50- 3Reference 5: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role
/ disclosureRef- Topic 825- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S0- Paragraph 28-
Subparagraph (f)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147482907 / 825- 10- S0- 28Reference 6: http:
// www. xbrl. org /2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification-
Section S99- Paragraph 1A- Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 01 (a) (4) (i))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org /
1943274 /2147480097 / 470- 10- S99- 1AReference 7: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2009 / role / commonPracticeRef- Topic
470- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1A- Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 01
(a) (4) (ii))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480097 / 470- 10- S99- 1AReference 8: http: / /
www. xbrl. org /2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section
S99- Paragraph 1A- Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 01 (a) (4) (iii) (A))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org /
1943274 /2147480097 / 470- 10- S99- 1AReference 9: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 470-
SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1A- Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 01 (a)
(4) (iv))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480097 / 470- 10- S99- 1AReference 10: http: / /
www. xbrl. org /2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section
S99- Paragraph 1A- Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 01 (a) (5))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 /
2147480097 / 470- 10- S99- 1AReference 11: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10-
Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1B- Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 02 (a) (4) (i))-
Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480097 / 470- 10- S99- 1BReference 12: http: / / www. xbrl.
org /2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99-
Paragraph 1B- Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 02 (a) (4) (iii) (A))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 /
2147480097 / 470- 10- S99- 1BReference 13: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10-
Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1B- Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 02 (a) (4) (iii) (B))-
Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480097 / 470- 10- S99- 1BReference 14: http: / / www. xbrl.
org /2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99-
Paragraph 1B- Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 02 (a) (4) (iv))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 /
2147480097 / 470- 10- S99- 1BReference 15: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10-
Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1B- Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 02 (a) (5))- Publisher
FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480097 / 470- 10- S99- 1B Details Name: us- gaap_CostOfRevenue
Namespace Prefix: us- gaap_ Data Type: xbrli: monetaryltemType Balance Type: debit Period Type: durationX-
DefinitionAmount of gain (loss) from deconsolidation of subsidiary and derecognition of group of assets constituting
transfer of business or nonprofit activity, excluding conveyance of oil and gas mineral rights and transfer of good or
service in contract with customer. ReferencesReference 1: http: / / fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref / legacyRef- Name
Accounting Standards Codification- Topic 810- SubTopic 10- Section 50- Paragraph 1B- Subparagraph (a)- Publisher
FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147481203 / 810- 10- 50- 1B Details Name: us-
gaap_DeconsolidationGainOrLossAmount Namespace Prefix: us- gaap_ Data Type: xbrli: monetaryltemType Balance
Type: credit Period Type: durationX- DefinitionThe current period expense charged against earnings on long- lived,
physical assets not used in production, and which are not intended for resale, to allocate or leftuneorreeted-recognize the
cost of such assets over their useful lives; or to record the reduction in book value of an mtanglble asset over the eurrent
benefit period of such asset; ;MIGIshallreeeverfromanyenrrentor i

to reflect consumption during the period of an asset that was-errenreousty-awarded-is not used in production.
ReferencesReference 1: http: / / fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref / legacyRef- Name Accounting Standards Codification-
Section 45- Paragraph 28- Subparagraph (b)- SubTopic 10- Topic 230- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org /
1943274 /2147482740 / 230- 10- 45- 28Reference 2: http: / / fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref / legacyRef- Name Accounting
Standards Codification- Topic 360- SubTopic 10- Section 50- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (a)- Publisher FASB- URI
https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147482099 / 360- 10- 50- 1 Details Name: us- gaap_DepreciationAndAmortization
Namespace Prefix: us- gaap_ Data Type: xbrli: monetaryltemType Balance Type: debit Period Type: durationX-
DefinitionThe amount of net income (loss) for the period per each share of common stock or unit outstanding during the
three-years-preeeding-the-date-suehreporting period. ReferencesReference 1: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role /
disclosureRef- Topic 250- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 6- Publisher
FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147483443 / 250- 10- 50- 6Reference 2: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role
/ exampleRef- Topic 260- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S5- Paragraph 52- Publisher
FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147482635 / 260- 10- 55- S2Reference 3: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2003 /
role / disclosureRef- Topic 805- SubTopic 60- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 65- Paragraph 1-
Subparagraph (g)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147476176 / 805- 60- 65- 1Reference 4: http:
[/ www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 740- SubTopic 323- Name Accounting Standards Codification-
Section 65- Paragraph 2- Subparagraph (g) (3)- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147478666 /
740- 323- 65- 2Reference 5: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 250- SubTopic 10- Name
Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 3- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 /



2147483443 / 250- 10- 50- 3Reference 6: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 260- SubTopic 10-
Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 55- Paragraph 15- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org /
1943274 / 2147482635 / 260- 10- 55- 15Reference 7: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 815-
SubTopic 40- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 65- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (e) (4)- Publisher
FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480175 / 815- 40- 65- 1Reference 8: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2003 / role
/ disclosureRef- Topic 815- SubTopic 40- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 65- Paragraph 1-
Subparagraph (f)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480175 / 815- 40- 65- 1Reference 9: http: /
/ www. xbrl. org /2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 250- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section
50- Paragraph 11- Subparagraph ( a restatement-wastequired-)- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / as-asc defined-byRule-.
fasb. org /1943274 / 2147483443 / 250- +t6B- 10 - 50- 11Reference 10: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef-
Topic 250- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 11- Subparagraph (b)-
Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147483443 / 250- 10- 50- 11Reference 11: http: / / www. xbrl.
org /2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 250- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50-
Paragraph 7- Subparagraph (a)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147483443 / 250- 10- 50-
TReference 12: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 260- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting
Standards Codification- Section 45- Paragraph 2- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147482689 /
260- 10- 45- 2Reference 13: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 260- SubTopic 10- Name
Accounting Standards Codification- Section 45- Paragraph 60B- Subparagraph (d)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc.
fasb. org /1943274 / 2147482689 / 260- 10- 45- 60BReference 14: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef-
Topic 250- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 4- Publisher FASB- URI
https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147483443 / 250- 10- 50- 4Reference 15: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role /
disclosureRef- Topic 260- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph | -
Subparagraph (a)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc . Thereeoverable-fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147482662 / 260- 10- 50-
1Reference 16: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 260- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting
Standards Codification- Section 45- Paragraph 10- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 /2147482689 /
260- 10- 45- 10Reference 17: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 220- SubTopic 10- Name
Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 2- Subparagraph (SX 210. S- 03 (25))- Publisher FASB-
URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147483621 / 220- 10- S99- 2Reference 18: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role /
disclosureRef- Topic 942- SubTopic 220- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1-
Subparagraph (SX 210. 9- 04 (27))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147478524 / 942- 220- S99-
1Reference 19: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 944- SubTopic 220- Name Accounting
Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (SX 210. 7- 04 (23))- Publisher FASB- URI https: //
asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147477250 / 944- 220- S99- 1Reference 20: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef-
Topic 260- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 45- Paragraph 7- Publisher FASB- URI
https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147482689 / 260- 10- 45- 7 Details Name: us- gaap_EarningsPerShareBasic Namespace
Prefix: us- gaap_ Data Type: dtr- types: perShareltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: durationX- DefinitionThe

amount as-defined-by Rule+0D-—tis-the-ameount-of ineentive—based-compensation-assoetated-withrnet income (loss) for the

period available to each share aceounting-statement-and-reeetved-inexeess-of common stock or common unit outstanding
during the ametntreporting period and to each share or unit that etherwise-would have been reeetved-had-it-been

determined-based-outstanding assuming the issuance of common shares or units for all dilutive potential common shares
or units outstanding during the reporting period. ReferencesReference 1: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role /
disclosureRef- Topic 250- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 6- Publisher
FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147483443 / 250- 10- 50- 6Reference 2: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role
/ exampleRef- Topic 260- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S5- Paragraph 52- Publisher
FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147482635 / 260- 10- 55- S2Reference 3: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2003 /
role / disclosureRef- Topic 805- SubTopic 60- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 65- Paragraph 1-
Subparagraph (g)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147476176 / 805- 60- 65- 1Reference 4: http:
[/ www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 740- SubTopic 323- Name Accounting Standards Codification-
Section 65- Paragraph 2- Subparagraph (g) (3)- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147478666 /
740- 323- 65- 2Reference 5: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 250- SubTopic 10- Name
Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 3- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 /
2147483443 / 250- 10- 50- 3Reference 6: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 260- SubTopic 10-
Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 55- Paragraph 15- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org /
1943274 / 2147482635 / 260- 10- 55- 15Reference 7: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 815-
SubTopic 40- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 65- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (e) (4)- Publisher
FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480175 / 815- 40- 65- 1Reference 8: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2003 / role
/ disclosureRef- Topic 815- SubTopic 40- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 65- Paragraph 1-
Subparagraph (f)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480175 / 815- 40- 65- 1Reference 9: http: /
/ www. xbrl. org /2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 250- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section
50- Paragraph 11- Subparagraph (a)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147483443 / 250- 10- 50-
11Reference 10: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 250- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting
Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 11- Subparagraph (b)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org /
1943274 /2147483443 / 250- 10- 50- 11Reference 11: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 250-



SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 7- Subparagraph (a)- Publisher FASB-
URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147483443 / 250- 10- S0- 7Reference 12: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2003 / role /
disclosureRef- Topic 260- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 45- Paragraph 2- Publisher
FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147482689 / 260- 10- 45- 2Reference 13: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 /
role / disclosureRef- Topic 260- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 45- Paragraph 60B-
Subparagraph (d)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147482689 / 260- 10- 45- 60BReference 14:
http: // www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 250- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification-
Section S0- Paragraph 4- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147483443 / 250- 10- 50- 4Reference
15: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 260- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards
Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (a)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 /
2147482662 / 260- 10- 50- 1Reference 16: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 220- SubTopic 10-
Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 2- Subparagraph (SX 210. S- 03 (25))- Publisher
FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147483621 / 220- 10- S99- 2Reference 17: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 /
role / disclosureRef- Topic 942- SubTopic 220- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1-
Subparagraph (SX 210. 9- 04 (27))- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147478524 / 942- 220- S99-
1Reference 18: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 944- SubTopic 220- Name Accounting
Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (SX 210. 7- 04 (23))- Publisher FASB- URI https: //
asc. fash. org /1943274 / 2147477250 / 944- 220- S99- 1Reference 19: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef-
Topic 260- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 45- Paragraph 7- Publisher FASB- URI
https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147482689 / 260- 10- 45- 7 Details Name: us- gaap_EarningsPerShareDiluted
Namespace Prefix: us- gaap_ Data Type: dtr- types: perShareltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: durationX-
DefinitionAmount of expense (income) related to adjustment to fair value of warrant liability. ReferencesReference 1:
http: / / fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref / legacyRef- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 45- Paragraph 28-
Subparagraph (b)- SubTopic 10- Topic 230- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147482740 / 230-
10- 45- 28Reference 2: http: / / fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref / legacyRef- Name Accounting Standards Codification-
Section 25- Paragraph 13- SubTopic 10- Topic 480- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147481766 /
480- 10- 25- 13 Details Name: us- gaap_FairValueAdjustmentOfWarrants Namespace Prefix: us- gaap_ Data Type:
xbrli: monetaryltemType Balance Type: debit Period Type: durationX- DefinitionAmount, before tax, of realized and
unrealized gain (loss) from foreign currency transaction. ReferencesReference 1: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role /
disclosureRef- Topic 946- SubTopic 220- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1-
Subparagraph (SX 210. 6- 07 (7))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147479134 / 946- 220- S99-
1Reference 2: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 830- SubTopic 20- Name Accounting Standards
Codification- Section 35- Paragraph 1- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147482014 / 830- 20- 35-
1Reference 3: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 830- SubTopic 20- Name Accounting Standards
Codification- Section 45- Paragraph 1- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147481956 / 830- 20- 45-
1Reference 4: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 830- SubTopic 20- Name Accounting Standards
Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 1- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147481926 / 830- 20- 50-
1Reference 5: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 830- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards
Codification- Section 45- Paragraph 17- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147481839 / 830- 10-
45- 17 Details Name: us- gaap_ForeignCurrencyTransactionGainLossBeforeTax Namespace Prefix: us- gaap_Data
Type: xbrli: monetaryltemType Balance Type credlt Perlod Type duratlonX DefinltlonThe net reallzed gam (loss)
investments sold during the period resta N S f ott-, subjeet
to-limitedimpraetieability-exeeptionsnot mcludmg gams (losses) on securltles separately or 0therw1se categorlzed as
trading, onty—- for- sale, or held- to- maturity, which, for cash flow reporting, is a component of proceeds from
investing activities. ReferencesReference 1: http: / / fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref / legacyRef- Name Accounting
Standards Codification- Section 45- Paragraph 28- Subparagraph (b)- SubTopic 10- Topic 230- Publisher FASB- URI
https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147482740 / 230- 10- 45- 28 Details Name: us- gaap_GainLossOnSaleOfInvestments
Namespace Prefix: us- gaap_ Data Type: xbrli: monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: durationX-
DefinitionAggregate revenue less cost of goods and services sold or operating expenses directly attributable to the
revenue generation activity. ReferencesReference 1: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2009 / role / commonPracticeRef- Topic
280- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 22- Publisher FASB- URI https: //
asc. fasb. org /1943274 / 2147482810 / 280- 10- 50- 22Reference 2: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / exampleRef-
Topic 280- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 55- Paragraph 48- Publisher FASB- URI
https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147482785 / 280- 10- 55- 48Reference 3: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2009 / role /
commonPracticeRef- Topic 280- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 32-
Subparagraph (f)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147482810 / 280- 10- S0- 32Reference 4: http:
// www. xbrl. org /2009 / role / commonPracticeRef- Topic 280- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification-
Section S0- Paragraph 30- Subparagraph (b)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147482810 / 280-
10- 50- 30Reference S: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2009 / role / commonPracticeRef- Topic 270- SubTopic 10- Name
Accounting Standards Codification- Section S0- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (i)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc.
fasb. org /1943274 / 2147482964 / 270- 10- 50- 1Reference 6: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2009 / role / commonPracticeRef-
Topic 280- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 32- Subparagraph (ee)-
Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147482810 / 280- 10- 50- 32Reference 7: http: / / fasb. org / us-




gaap / role / ref / otherTransitionRef- Topic 280- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50-
Paragraph 32- Subparagraph (c)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147482810 / 280- 10- 50-
32Reference 8: http: / / fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref / legacyRef- Topic 220- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards
Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 2- Subparagraph (SX 210. 5- 03 (2))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org /
1943274 /2147483621 / 220- 10- S99- 2Reference 9: http: / / fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref / legacyRef- Topic 220-
SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 2- Subparagraph (SX 210. 5- 03 (1))-
Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147483621 / 220- 10- S99- 2Reference 10: http: / / www. xbrl.
org /2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 235- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99-
Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (SX 210. 4- 08 (g) (1) (ii))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 /
2147480678 / 235- 10- S99- 1Reference 11: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 323- SubTopic 10-
Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 3- Subparagraph (c)- Publisher FASB- URI https: //
asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147481687 / 323- 10- 50- 3Reference 12: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef-
Topic 825- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 28- Subparagraph (f)-
Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147482907 / 825- 10- 50- 28Reference 13: http: / / www. xbrl.
org /2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99-
Paragraph 1A- Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 01 (a) (4) (i))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 /
2147480097 / 470- 10- S99- 1AReference 14: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2009 / role / commonPracticeRef- Topic 470-
SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1A- Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 01 (a)
(4) (ii))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480097 / 470- 10- S99- 1AReference 15: http: / /
www. xbrl. org /2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section
S99- Paragraph 1A- Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 01 (a) (4) (iii) (A))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org /
1943274 /2147480097 / 470- 10- S99- 1AReference 16: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 470-
SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1A- Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 01 (a)
(4) (iv))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480097 / 470- 10- S99- 1AReference 17: http: / /
www. xbrl. org /2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section
S99- Paragraph 1A- Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 01 (a) (5))- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 /
2147480097 / 470- 10- S99- 1AReference 18: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10-
Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1B- Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 02 (a) (4) (i))-
Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480097 / 470- 10- S99- 1BReference 19: http: / / www. xbrl.
org /2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99-
Paragraph 1B- Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 02 (a) (4) (iii) (A))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 /
2147480097 / 470- 10- S99- 1BReference 20: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10-
Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1B- Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 02 (a) (4) (iii) (B))-
Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480097 / 470- 10- S99- 1BReference 21: http: / / www. xbrl.
org /2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99-
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2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 250- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 9-
Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147483443 / 250- 10- 50- 9Reference 3: http: / / www. xbrl. org /
2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 250- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 8-
Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147483443 / 250- 10- 50- 8Reference 4: http: / / www. xbrl. org /
2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 944- SubTopic 220- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph
1- Subparagraph (SX 210. 7- 04 (17 ) the-)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147477250 / 944-
220- S99- 1Reference S: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2009 / role / commonPracticeRef- Topic 220- SubTopic 10- Name
Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 6- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 /
2147482765 / 220- 10- 50- 6Reference 6: http: / / fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref / legacyRef- Topic 810- SubTopic 10- Name
Accounting Standards Codification- Section S0- Paragraph 1A- Subparagraph (a) (2)- Publisher FASB- URI https: //
asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147481203 / 810- 10- 50- 1AReference 7: http: / / fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref / legacyRef-
Name Accounting Standards Codification- Topic 810- SubTopic 10- Section 55- Paragraph 4J- Publisher FASB- URI
https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147481175 / 810- 10- 55- 4JReference 8: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2003 / role /
disclosureRef- Topic 220- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 45- Paragraph 1A-
Subparagraph (a)- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147482790 / 220- 10- 45- 1AReference 9:



http: // www. xbrl. org /2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 220- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification-
Section 45- Paragraph 1B- Subparagraph (a)- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147482790 / 220-
10- 45- 1B Details Name: us- gaap_NetIncomeLossAttributableToNoncontrollingInterest Namespace Prefix: us- gaap
Data Type: xbrli: monetaryltemType Balance Type: debit Period Type: durationX- DefinitionThe of
income or expense from ancillary business- related activities ( rematns-is to say, excluding major activities considered
part of the normal operations of the business). ReferencesReference 1: http: / / fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref / legacyRef-
Topic 220- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 2- Subparagraph (SX 210.
5- 03 (7))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147483621 / 220- 10- S99- 2 Details Name: us-
gaap_NonoperatingIncomeExpense Namespace Prefix: us- gaap_ Data Type: xbrli: monetaryltemType Balance Type:
credit Period Type: durationX- ReferencesNo definition available. Details Name: us-
gaap_NonoperatingIncomeExpenseAbstract Namespace Prefix: us- gaap_ Data Type: xbrli: stringltemType Balance
Type: na Period Type: durationX- DefinitionGenerally recurring costs associated with normal operations except for the
portion of these expenses which can be clearly related to production and included in cost of sales or services. Includes
selling, general and administrative expense. ReferencesNo definition available. Details Name: us-
gaap_OperatingExpenses Namespace Prefix: us- gaap_ Data Type: xbrli: monetaryltemType Balance Type: debit Period
Type: durationX- ReferencesNo definition available. Details Name: us- gaap_OperatingExpensesAbstract Namespace
Prefix: us- gaap_ Data Type: xbrli: stringltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: durationX- DefinitionThe net result
for the period of deducting operating expenses from operating revenues. ReferencesReference 1: http: / / www. xbrl. org /
2009 / role / commonPracticeRef- Topic 280- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50-
Paragraph 22- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147482810 / 280- 10- 50- 22Reference 2: http: / /
www. xbrl. org /2009 / role / commonPracticeRef- Topic 280- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification-
Section 50- Paragraph 32- Subparagraph (f)- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 /2147482810 / 280-
10- 50- 32Reference 3: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2009 / role / commonPracticeRef- Topic 280- SubTopic 10- Name
Accounting Standards Codification- Section S0- Paragraph 30- Subparagraph (b)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc.
fasb. org /1943274 / 2147482810 / 280- 10- 50- 30Reference 4: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2009 / role / commonPracticeRef-
Topic 270- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (i)-
Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147482964 / 270- 10- 50- 1Reference S: http: / / www. xbrl. org /
2009 / role / commonPracticeRef- Topic 280- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50-
Paragraph 32- Subparagraph (ee)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147482810 / 280- 10- 50-
32Reference 6: http: / / fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref / otherTransitionRef- Topic 280- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting
Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 32- Subparagraph (c)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org /
1943274 /2147482810 / 280- 10- 50- 32Reference 7: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / exampleRef- Topic 280-
SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 31- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc.
fasb. org /1943274 / 2147482810 / 280- 10- 50- 31 Details Name: us- gaap_OperatinglncomeLoss Namespace Prefix: us-
gaap_ Data Type: xbrli: monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: durationX- DefinitionAmount of expense
related to nonoperating activities, classified as other. ReferencesReference 1: http: / / fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref /
legacyRef- Topic 220- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 2- Subparagraph
(SX 210. 5- 03 (9))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147483621 / 220- 10- S99- 2 Details Name:
us- gaap_OtherNonoperatingExpense Namespace Prefix: us- gaap_ Data Type: xbrli: monetaryltemType Balance Type:
debit Period Type: durationX- DefinitionAmount of income related to nonoperating activities, classified as other.
ReferencesReference 1: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 220- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting
Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 2- Subparagraph (SX 210. 5- 03 (7) (d))- Publisher FASB- URI https: //
asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147483621 / 220- 10- S99- 2 Details Name: us- gaap_OtherNonoperatingIncome Namespace
Prefix: us- gaap_ Data Type: xbrli: monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: durationX- DefinitionThe
consolidated profit or loss for the period, net of income taxes, including the portion attributable to the noncontrolling
interest. ReferencesReference 1: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 250- SubTopic 10- Name
Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 6- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 /
2147483443 / 250- 10- 50- 6Reference 2: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 250- SubTopic 10-
Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 9- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org /
1943274 /2147483443 / 250- 10- 50- 9Reference 3: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 805-
SubTopic 60- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 65- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (g)- Publisher FASB-
URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147476176 / 805- 60- 65- 1Reference 4: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2003 / role /
disclosureRef- Topic 740- SubTopic 323- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 65- Paragraph 2-
Subparagraph (g) (3)- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147478666 / 740- 323- 65- 2Reference 5:
http: // www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 235- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification-
Section S99- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (SX 210. 4- 08 (g) (1) (ii))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org /
1943274 /2147480678 / 235- 10- S99- 1Reference 6: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 323-
SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 3- Subparagraph (c)- Publisher FASB-
URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147481687 / 323- 10- S0- 3Reference 7: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2003 / role /
disclosureRef- Topic 825- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S0- Paragraph 28-
Subparagraph (f)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147482907 / 825- 10- 50- 28Reference 8: http:
// www. xbrl. org /2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 250- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification-
Section S50- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (b) (2)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147483443 /



250- 10- S50- 1Reference 9: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 815- SubTopic 40- Name
Accounting Standards Codification- Section 65- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (f)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc.
fasb. org /1943274 / 2147480175 / 815- 40- 65- 1Reference 10: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic
250- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 8- Publisher FASB- URI https: //
asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147483443 / 250- 10- 50- 8Reference 11: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / exampleRef-
Topic 946- SubTopic 830- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 55- Paragraph 11- Publisher FASB- URI
https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147479168 / 946- 830- 55- 11Reference 12: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2003 / role /
disclosureRef- Topic 946- SubTopic 205- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 45- Paragraph 3-
Subparagraph (a)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147478009 / 946- 205- 45- 3Reference 13:
http: // www. xbrl. org /2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 946- SubTopic 220- Name Accounting Standards Codification-
Section 45- Paragraph 7- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147479105 / 946- 220- 45- 7TReference
14: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 944- SubTopic 220- Name Accounting Standards
Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (SX 210. 7- 04 (16))- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org
11943274 / 2147477250 / 944- 220- S99- 1Reference 15: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 946-
SubTopic 220- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (SX 210. 6- 07 (9))-
Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147479134 / 946- 220- S99- 1Reference 16: http: / / www. xbrl.
org /2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 946- SubTopic 220- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99-
Paragraph 3- Subparagraph (SX 210. 6- 09 (1) (d))- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147479134 /
946- 220- S99- 3Reference 17: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 810- SubTopic 10- Name
Accounting Standards Codification- Section 45- Paragraph 19- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 /
2147481231 / 810- 10- 45- 19Reference 18: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2009 / role / commonPracticeRef- Topic 220-
SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 6- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc.
fasb. org /1943274 / 2147482765 / 220- 10- 50- 6Reference 19: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic
470- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1A- Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 01
(a) (4) (i))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480097 / 470- 10- S99- 1AReference 20: http: / /
www. xbrl. org /2009 / role / commonPracticeRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification-
Section S99- Paragraph 1A- Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 01 (a) (4) (ii))- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org /
1943274 /2147480097 / 470- 10- S99- 1AReference 21: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 470-
SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1A- Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 01 (a)
(4) (iii) (A))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480097 / 470- 10- S99- 1AReference 22: http: / /
www. xbrl. org /2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section
S99- Paragraph 1A- Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 01 (a) (4) (iv))- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 /
2147480097 / 470- 10- S99- 1AReference 23: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10-
Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1A- Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 01 (a) (5))- Publisher
FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480097 / 470- 10- S99- 1AReference 24: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2003 /
role / disclosureRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1B-
Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 02 (a) (4) (i))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480097 / 470- 10-
S99- 1BReference 25: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting
Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1B- Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 02 (a) (4) (iii) (A))- Publisher FASB-
URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480097 / 470- 10- S99- 1BReference 26: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role /
disclosureRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1B-
Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 02 (a) (4) (iii) (B))- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480097 / 470-
10- S99- 1BReference 27: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting
Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1B- Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 02 (a) (4) (iv))- Publisher FASB- URI
https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480097 / 470- 10- S99- 1BReference 28: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role /
disclosureRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1B-
Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 02 (a) (5))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480097 / 470- 10-
S99- 1BReference 29: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 942- SubTopic 235- Name Accounting
Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (SX 210. 9- 05 (b) (2))- Publisher FASB- URI https: //
asc. fash. org / 1943274 / 2147477314 / 942- 235- S99- 1Reference 30: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef-
Topic 205- SubTopic 20- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 7- Publisher FASB- URI
https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147483499 / 205- 20- 50- 7Reference 31: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role /
exampleRef- Topic 810- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 55- Paragraph 4J- Publisher
FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147481175 / 810- 10- 55- 4JReference 32: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 /
role / exampleRef- Topic 810- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 55- Paragraph 4K-
Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147481175 / 810- 10- 55- 4KReference 33: http: / / www. xbrl.
org /2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 220- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 45-
Paragraph 1A- Subparagraph (a)- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147482790 / 220- 10- 45-
1AReference 34: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 220- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting
Standards Codification- Section 45- Paragraph 1B- Subparagraph (a)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org /
1943274 /2147482790 / 220- 10- 45- 1BReference 35: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 230-
SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 45- Paragraph 2- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc.
fasb. org /1943274 / 2147482740 / 230- 10- 45- 2Reference 36: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic



810- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S0- Paragraph 1A- Subparagraph (a) (1)-
Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147481203 / 810- 10- 50- 1AReference 37: http: / / www. xbrl.
org /2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 810- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50-
Paragraph 1A- Subparagraph (c) (1)- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147481203 / 810- 10- 50-
1A Details Name: us- gaap_ProfitLoss Namespace Prefix: us- gaap_ Data Type: xbrli: monetaryltemType Balance Type:
credit Period Type: durationX- DefinitionAmount, including tax collected from customer, of revenue from satisfaction of
performance obligation by transferring promised good or service to customer. Tax collected from customer is tax
assessed by governmental authority that is both imposed on and concurrent with specific revenue- producing
transaction, including, but not limited to, sales, use, value- added and excise. ReferencesReference 1: http: / / www. xbrl.
org /2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 280- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50-
Paragraph 41- Subparagraph (a)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147482810 / 280- 10- 50-
41Reference 2: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 270- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting
Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (i)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org /
1943274 /2147482964 / 270- 10- 50- 1Reference 3: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 280-
SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 32- Subparagraph (ee)- Publisher
FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147482810 / 280- 10- 50- 32Reference 4: http: / / fasb. org / us- gaap / role /
ref / otherTransitionRef- Topic 280- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S0- Paragraph 32-
Subparagraph (b)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147482810 / 280- 10- 50- 32Reference 5:
http: / / fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref / otherTransitionRef- Topic 280- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards
Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 32- Subparagraph (a)- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 /
2147482810 / 280- 10- 50- 32Reference 6: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 924- SubTopic 10-
Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (SAB Topic 11. L)- Publisher
FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147479941 / 924- 10- S99- 1Reference 7: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2003 /
role / disclosureRef- Topic 606- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 5-
Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147479806 / 606- 10- 50- SReference 8: http: / / www. xbrl. org /
2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 280- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph
30- Subparagraph (a)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147482810 / 280- 10- 50- 30Reference 9:
http: // www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 280- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification-
Section 50- Paragraph 42- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147482810 / 280- 10- S0- 42Reference
10: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 280- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards
Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 22- Subparagraph (b)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 /
2147482810 / 280- 10- 50- 22Reference 11: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 280- SubTopic 10-
Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 40- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org /
1943274 /2147482810 / 280- 10- 50- 40Reference 12: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 280-
SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 22- Subparagraph (a)- Publisher FASB-
URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147482810 / 280- 10- S0- 22Reference 13: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role /
disclosureRef- Topic 606- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 4-
Subparagraph (a)- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147479806 / 606- 10- S0- 4 Details Name: us-
gaap_RevenueFromContractWithCustomerIncludingAssessedTax Namespace Prefix: us- gaap_ Data Type: xbrli:
monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: durationX- ReferencesNo definition available. Details Name: us-
gaap_RevenuesAbstract Namespace Prefix: us- gaap_Data Type: xbrli: stringltemType Balance Type: na Period Type:
durationX- DefinitionThe aggregate total costs related to selling a firm' s product and services, as well as all other
general and administrative expenses. Direct selling expenses (for example, credit, warranty, and advertising) are
expenses that can be directly linked to the sale of specific products. Indirect selling expenses are expenses that cannot be
directly linked to the sale of specific products, for example telephone expenses, Internet, and postal charges. General and
administrative expenses include salaries of non- sales personnel, rent, utilities, communication, etc. ReferencesReference
1: http: / / fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref / legacyRef- Topic 220- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification-
Section S99- Paragraph 2- Subparagraph (SX 210. 5- 03 (4))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 /
2147483621 / 220- 10- S99- 2 Details Name: us- gaap_SellingGeneralAndAdministrativeExpense Namespace Prefix: us-
gaap_ Data Type: xbrli: monetaryltemType Balance Type: debit Period Type: durationX- DefinitionAmount of noncash
expense for share- based payment arrangement. ReferencesReference 1: http: / / fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref /
legacyRef- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 45- Paragraph 28- Subparagraph (a)- SubTopic 10- Topic
230- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147482740 / 230- 10- 45- 28 Details Name: us-
gaap_ShareBasedCompensation Namespace Prefix: us- gaap_ Data Type: xbrli: monetaryltemType Balance Type: debit
Period Type: durationX- DefinitionNumber of [ basic | shares or units, after adjustment for contingently issuable shares
or units and other shares or units not deemed and-any-, determined by relating the portion of time within a
reporting period that common shares or units have been amounts-due-to the total time in that period.
ReferencesReference 1: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 260- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting
Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (a)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org /
1943274 /2147482662 / 260- 10- 50- 1Reference 2: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 260-
SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 45- Paragraph 10- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc.
fasb. org /1943274 / 2147482689 / 260- 10- 45- 10 Details Name: us-
gaap_WeightedAverageNumberOfSharesOutstandingBasic Namespace Prefix: us- gaap_ Data Type: xbrli:



sharesItemType Balance Type: na Period Type: durationX- Details Name: srt_ProductOrServiceAxis =
migi_DigitalColocationRevenuesMember Namespace Prefix: Data Type: na Balance Type: Period Type: X- Details
Name: srt_ProductOrServiceAxis = migi EnergyManagementRevenueMember Namespace Prefix: Data Type: na
Balance Type: Period Type: X- Details Name: srt_ProductOrServiceAxis = migi DigitalAssetsMiningRevenueMember
Namespace Prefix: Data Type: na Balance Type: Period Type: X- Details Name: srt ProductOrServiceAxis =

migi EquipmentSalesMember Namespace Prefix: Data Type: na Balance Type: Period Type: Consolidated Statements
of Comprehensive Loss- USD ($) 12 Months EndedDec. 31, 2024 Dec. 31, 2023Statement of Comprehensive Income |
Abstract | Net Loss $ (46, 336, 787) $ (58, 545, 093) Other comprehensive income (loss) Foreign currency translation
adjustment (461, 904) (4, 224, 033) Comprehensive loss (46, 798, 691) (62, 769, 126) Less: Comprehensive loss (gain)
attributable to non- controlling interests (205, 086) 1, 876, 729Comprehensive loss attributable to common stockholders
$ (46, 593, 605) $ (64, 645, 855) X- DefinitionAmount after tax of increase (decrease) in equity any-transactions and
other events and circumstances from net income and other comprehensive income, attributable to parent entity.
Excludes changes in equity resulting from investments by owners and distributions to owners. ReferencesReference 1:
http: // www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 220- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification-
Section S99- Paragraph 2- Subparagraph (SX 210. 5- 03 (24))- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 /
2147483621 / 220- 10- S99- 2Reference 2: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 942- SubTopic 220-
Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (SX 210. 9- 04 (26))- Publisher
FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147478524 / 942- 220- S99- 1Reference 3: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 /
role / disclosureRef- Topic 944- SubTopic 220- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1-
Subparagraph (SX 210. 7- 04 (22))- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147477250 / 944- 220- S99-
1Reference 4: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 220- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards
Codification- Section 45- Paragraph 1A- Subparagraph (c)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 /
2147482790 / 220- 10- 45- 1AReference 5: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 220- SubTopic 10-
Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 45- Paragraph 1B- Subparagraph (b)- Publisher FASB- URI https: //
asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147482790 / 220- 10- 45- 1BReference 6: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2003 / role / disclosureRef-
Topic 944- SubTopic 220- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (SX 210.
7- 04 (20))- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147477250 / 944- 220- S99- 1Reference 7: http: / /
fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref / legacyRef- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Topic 220- SubTopic 10- Section
45- Paragraph S- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147482790 / 220- 10- 45- 5 Details Name: us-
gaap_ComprehensivelncomeNetOfTax Namespace Prefix: us- gaap_Data Type: xbrli: monetaryltemType Balance
Type: credit Period Type: durationX- DefinitionAmount after tax of increase (decrease) in equity from transactions and
other events and circumstances from net income (loss) and other comprehensive income (loss), attributable to
noncontrolling interests. Excludes changes in equity resulting from investments by owners and distributions to owners.
ReferencesReference 1: http: / / fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref / legacyRef- Name Accounting Standards Codification-
Section 45- Paragraph 20- SubTopic 10- Topic 810- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147481231 /
810- 10- 45- 20Reference 2: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 220- SubTopic 10- Name
Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 2- Subparagraph (SX 210. S- 03 (23))- Publisher FASB-
URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147483621 / 220- 10- S99- 2Reference 3: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2003 / role /
disclosureRef- Topic 942- SubTopic 220- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1-
Subparagraph (SX 210. 9- 04 (25))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147478524 / 942- 220- S99-
1Reference 4: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 944- SubTopic 220- Name Accounting
Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (SX 210. 7- 04 (21))- Publisher FASB- URI https: //
asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147477250 / 944- 220- S99- 1Reference S: http: / / fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref / legacyRef-
Name Accounting Standards Codification- Topic 810- SubTopic 10- Section 45- Paragraph 21- Publisher FASB- URI
https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147481231 / 810- 10- 45- 21Reference 6: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role /
disclosureRef- Topic 220- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 45- Paragraph 1A-
Subparagraph (c)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147482790 / 220- 10- 45- 1AReference 7:
http: // www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 220- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification-
Section 45- Paragraph 1B- Subparagraph (b)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147482790 / 220-
10- 45- 1BReference 8: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 944- SubTopic 220- Name Accounting
Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (SX 210. 7- 04 (20))- Publisher FASB- URI https: //
asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147477250 / 944- 220- S99- 1Reference 9: http: / / fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref / legacyRef-
Name Accounting Standards Codification- Topic 810- SubTopic 10- Section 55- Paragraph 4K- Publisher FASB- URI
https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147481175 / 810- 10- 55- 4K Details Name: us-
gaap_ComprehensivelncomeNetOfTaxAttributableToNoncontrollingInterest Namespace Prefix: us- gaap_Data Type:
xbrli: monetaryltemType Balance Type: debit Period Type: durationX- DefinitionAmount after tax of increase
(decrease) in equity from transactions and other events and circumstances from net income and other comprehensive
income. Excludes changes in equity resulting from investments by owners and distributions to owners.
ReferencesReference 1: http: / / fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref / legacyRef- Topic 810- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting
Standards Codification- Section 45- Paragraph 19- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147481231 /
810- 10- 45- 19Reference 2: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 220- SubTopic 10- Name
Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 2- Subparagraph (SX 210. S- 03 (22))- Publisher FASB-
URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147483621 / 220- 10- S99- 2Reference 3: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2003 / role /



disclosureRef- Topic 942- SubTopic 220- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1-
Subparagraph (SX 210. 9- 04 (24))- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147478524 / 942- 220- S99-
1Reference 4: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 220- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards
Codification- Section 45- Paragraph 1A- Subparagraph (c)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 /
2147482790 / 220- 10- 45- 1AReference 5: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 220- SubTopic 10-
Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 45- Paragraph 1B- Subparagraph (b)- Publisher FASB- URI https: //
asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147482790 / 220- 10- 45- 1BReference 6: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef-
Topic 944- SubTopic 220- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (SX 210.
7- 04 (20))- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147477250 / 944- 220- S99- 1Reference 7: http: / /
fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref / legacyRef- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Topic 810- SubTopic 10- Section
55- Paragraph 4K- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147481175 / 810- 10- 55- 4K Details Name:
us- gaap_ComprehensiveIncomeNetOfTaxIncludingPortionAttributableToNoncontrollingInterest Namespace Prefix: us-
gaap_ Data Type: xbrli: monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: durationX- ReferencesNo definition
available. Details Name: us- gaap_OciNetOfTaxAbstract Namespace Prefix: us- gaap_ Data Type: xbrli: stringltemType
Balance Type: na Period Type: durationX- DefinitionAmount after tax and reclassification adjustments of gain (loss) on
foreign eurrent-currency translation adjustments, foreign currency transactions designated and effective as economic
hedges of a net investment in a foreign entity and intra- entity foreign currency transactions that are of a long- term-
investment nature. ReferencesReference 1: http: / / fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref / legacyRef- Name Accounting
Standards Codification- Section 45- Paragraph 10A- Subparagraph (a)- SubTopic 10- Topic 220- Publisher FASB- URI
https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147482790 / 220- 10- 45- 10AReference 2: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2003 / role /
disclosureRef- Topic 944- SubTopic 220- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1-
Subparagraph (SX 210. 7- 04 (19))- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147477250 / 944- 220- S99-
1 Details Name: us-
gaap_OtherComprehensiveIncomeLossForeignCurrencyTransactionAndTranslationAdjustmentNetOfTax Namespace
Prefix: us- gaap_Data Type: xbrli: monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: durationX- DefinitionThe
consolidated profit or loss formernamed-exeeutive-offteer-for the period, net of income taxes, including the portion
attributable to the noncontrolling interest. ReferencesReference 1: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef-
Topic 250- SubTopic +86-- 10 days—- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 6- Publisher
FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147483443 / 250- 10- 50- 6Reference 2: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role
/ disclosureRef- Topic 250- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 9- Publisher
FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147483443 / 250- 10- 50- 9Reference 3: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role
/ disclosureRef- Topic 805- SubTopic 60- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 65- Paragraph 1-
Subparagraph (g)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147476176 / 805- 60- 65- 1Reference 4: http:
[/ www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 740- SubTopic 323- Name Accounting Standards Codification-
Section 65- Paragraph 2- Subparagraph (g) (3)- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147478666 /
740- 323- 65- 2Reference S: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 235- SubTopic 10- Name
Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (SX 210. 4- 08 (g) (1) (ii))- Publisher
FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480678 / 235- 10- S99- 1Reference 6: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2003 /
role / disclosureRef- Topic 323- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 3-
Subparagraph (c)- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147481687 / 323- 10- 50- 3Reference 7: http:
// www. xbrl. org /2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 825- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification-
Section S0- Paragraph 28- Subparagraph (f)- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147482907 / 825-
10- 50- 28Reference 8: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 250- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting
Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (b) (2)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org /
1943274 / 2147483443 / 250- 10- 50- 1Reference 9: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 815-
SubTopic 40- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 65- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (f)- Publisher FASB-
URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480175 / 815- 40- 65- 1Reference 10: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2003 / role /
disclosureRef- Topic 250- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 8- Publisher
FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147483443 / 250- 10- 50- 8Reference 11: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 /
role / exampleRef- Topic 946- SubTopic 830- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 55- Paragraph 11-
Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147479168 / 946- 830- 55- 11Reference 12: http: / / www. xbrl.
org /2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 946- SubTopic 205- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 45-
Paragraph 3- Subparagraph (a)- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147478009 / 946- 205- 45-
3Reference 13: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 946- SubTopic 220- Name Accounting
Standards Codification- Section 45- Paragraph 7- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147479105 /
946- 220- 45- 7Reference 14: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 944- SubTopic 220- Name
Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (SX 210. 7- 04 (16))- Publisher FASB-
URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147477250 / 944- 220- S99- 1Reference 15: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2003 / role /
disclosureRef- Topic 946- SubTopic 220- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1-
Subparagraph (SX 210. 6- 07 (9))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147479134 / 946- 220- S99-
1Reference 16: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 946- SubTopic 220- Name Accounting
Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 3- Subparagraph (SX 210. 6- 09 (1) (d))- Publisher FASB- URI https: //
asc. fash. org / 1943274 / 2147479134 / 946- 220- S99- 3Reference 17: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef-



Topic 810- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 45- Paragraph 19- Publisher FASB- URI
https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147481231 / 810- 10- 45- 19Reference 18: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2009 / role /
commonPracticeRef- Topic 220- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 6-
Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147482765 / 220- 10- 50- 6Reference 19: http: / / www. xbrl. org
/2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph
1A- Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 01 (a) (4) (i))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480097 / 470-
10- S99- 1AReference 20: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2009 / role / commonPracticeRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10- Name
Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1A- Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 01 (a) (4) (ii))- Publisher
FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480097 / 470- 10- S99- 1AReference 21: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 /
role / disclosureRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1A-
Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 01 (a) (4) (iii) (A))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 /2147480097 / 470-
10- S99- 1AReference 22: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting
Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1A- Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 01 (a) (4) (iv))- Publisher FASB- URI
https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480097 / 470- 10- S99- 1AReference 23: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2003 / role /
disclosureRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1A-
Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 01 (a) (5))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480097 / 470- 10-
S99- 1AReference 24: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting
Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1B- Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 02 (a) (4) (i))- Publisher FASB- URI
https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 /2147480097 / 470- 10- S99- 1BReference 25: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2003 / role /
disclosureRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1B-
Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 02 (a) (4) (iii) (A))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 /2147480097 / 470-
10- S99- 1BReference 26: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting
Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1B- Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 02 (a) (4) (iii) (B))- Publisher FASB-
URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480097 / 470- 10- S99- 1BReference 27: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role /
disclosureRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1B-
Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 02 (a) (4) (iv))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480097 / 470- 10-
S99- 1BReference 28: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting
Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1B- Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 02 (a) (5))- Publisher FASB- URI https:
// asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480097 / 470- 10- S99- 1BReference 29: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role /
disclosureRef- Topic 942- SubTopic 235- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1-
Subparagraph (SX 210. 9- 05 (b) (2))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147477314 / 942- 235-
S99- 1Reference 30: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 205- SubTopic 20- Name Accounting
Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 7- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147483499 /
205- 20- 50- 7Reference 31: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / exampleRef- Topic 810- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting
Standards Codification- Section 55- Paragraph 4J- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147481175 /
810- 10- 55- 4JReference 32: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / exampleRef- Topic 810- SubTopic 10- Name
Accounting Standards Codification- Section 55- Paragraph 4K- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 /
2147481175 / 810- 10- 55- 4KReference 33: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 220- SubTopic 10-
Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 45- Paragraph 1A- Subparagraph (a)- Publisher FASB- URI https: //
asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147482790 / 220- 10- 45- 1AReference 34: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2003 / role / disclosureRef-
Topic 220- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 45- Paragraph 1B- Subparagraph (a)-
Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147482790 / 220- 10- 45- 1BReference 35: http: / / www. xbrl.
org /2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 230- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 45-
Paragraph 2- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147482740 / 230- 10- 45- 2Reference 36: http: / /
www. xbrl. org /2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 810- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section
50- Paragraph 1A- Subparagraph (a) (1)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147481203 / 810- 10-
50- 1AReference 37: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 810- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting
Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 1A- Subparagraph (c) (1)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org /
1943274 /2147481203 / 810- 10- 50- 1A Details Name: us- gaap_ProfitLoss Namespace Prefix: us- gaap_Data Type:
xbrli: monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: durationX- ReferencesNo definition available. Details
Name: us- gaap_StatementOfIncomeAndComprehensiveIncomeAbstract Namespace Prefix: us- gaap_Data Type: xbrli:
stringltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: durationConsolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity (Deficit)- USD
($) Common Stock Additional Paid- in- Capital Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income / (Loss) Accumulated
Deficit Total Mawson Stockholders’ Equity Non- controlling interest TotalBalance at Dec. 31, 2022 § 13, 626 $ 194, 294,
559 $ 5, 021, 467 $ (122, 257, 628) $ 77, 072, 024 $ (905, 904) $ 76, 166, 120Balance (in Shares) at Dec. 31, 2022 13, 625,
882 Conversion of notes payable into common stock $ 104 276, 855 276, 959 276, 959Conversion of notes payable into
common stock (in Shares) 104, 319 Issuance of common stock in lieu of interest on loans $ 19 63, 926 63, 945 63,
94S5Issuance of common stock in lieu of interest on loans (in Shares) 18, 807 Issuance of common stock for services $ 93
306, 976 307, 069 307, 069Issuance of common stock for services (in Shares) 93, 334 Issuance of warrants 1, 835, 166 1,
835, 166 1, 835, 166Exercising of RSU’ s and stock options $ 304 490, 015 490, 319 490, 319Exercising of RSU’ s and
stock options (in Shares) 303, 762 Stock based compensation expense for RSU’ s and stock options 8, 202, 283 8, 202, 283
8, 202, 283Issuance of common stock, net of issuance costs $ 2, 499 5, 809, 396 5, 811, 895 5, 811, 895Issuance of common
stock, net of issuance costs (in Shares) 2, 498, 607 Net loss (60, 421, 822) (60, 421, 822) 1, 876, 729 (58, 545, 093) Other



comprehensive income (loss) (4, 412, 779) 12, 985 (4, 399, 794) 175, 761 (4, 224, 033) Balance at Dec. 31, 2023 § 16, 645
211, 279, 176 608, 688 (182, 666, 465) 29, 238, 044 1, 146, 586 30, 384, 630Balance (in Shares) at Dec. 31, 2023 16, 644, 711
Exercising of RSU’ s and stock options $ 2, 147 (2, 147) Exercising of RSU’ s and stock options (in Shares) 2, 147, 649
Stock based compensation expense for RSU’ s and stock options 14, 064, 883 14, 064, 883 14, 064, 883Deconsolidation of
MIG No. 1 Pty Ltd (889, 659) (889, 659) Net loss (46, 131, 701) (46, 131, 701) (205, 086) (46, 336, 787) Other
comprehensive income (loss) (410, 063) (410, 063) (51, 841) (461, 904) Balance at Dec. 31, 2024 §$ 18, 792 § 225, 341,912 §
198, 625 $ (228, 798, 166) $ (3, 238, 837) $ (3, 238, 837) Balance (in Shares) at Dec. 31, 2024 18, 792, 360 X-
DefinitionIssuance of common stock in lieu of interest on borrowings amount. ReferencesNo definition available. Details
Name: migi_IssuanceOfCommonStockInLieuOfInterestOnBorrowings Namespace Prefix: migi_ Data Type: xbrli:
monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: durationX- DefinitionIssuance of common stock in lieu of interest
on borrowings shares. ReferencesNo definition available. Details Name:
migi_IssuanceOfCommonStockInLieuOfInterestOnBorrowingsShares Namespace Prefix: migi_ Data Type: xbrli:
sharesItemType Balance Type: na Period Type: durationX- DefinitionAmount of increase to additional paid- in capital
(APIC) for recognition of cost for award under share- based payment arrangement. ReferencesReference 1: http: / /
www. xbrl. org /2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 718- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section
35- Paragraph 2- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480483 / 718- 10- 35- 2Reference 2: http: / /
fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref / legacyRef- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Topic 718- SubTopic 20- Section
55- Paragraph 13- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147481089 / 718- 20- 55- 13Reference 3: http:
/ / fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref / legacyRef- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Topic 718- SubTopic 20- Section
55- Paragraph 12- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147481089 / 718- 20- 55- 12 Details Name: us-
gaap_AdjustmentsToAdditionalPaidInCapitalSharebasedCompensationRequisiteServicePeriodRecognitionValue
Namespace Prefix: us- gaap_ Data Type: xbrli: monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: durationX-
DefinitionAmount of increase in additional paid in capital (APIC) resulting from the issuance of warrants. Includes
allocation of proceeds of debt securities issued with detachable stock purchase warrants. ReferencesReference 1: http: / /
fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref / legacyRef- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S0- Paragraph 2- SubTopic
10- Topic 505- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147481112 / 505- 10- 50- 2Reference 2: http: / /
fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref / legacyRef- Topic 505- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section
S99- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (SX 210. 3- 04)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480008 /
505- 10- S99- 1Reference 3: http: / / fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref / legacyRef- Name Accounting Standards Codification-
Topic 470- SubTopic 20- Section 25- Paragraph 2- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147481284 /
470- 20- 25- 2 Details Name: us- gaap_AdjustmentsToAdditionalPaidInCapitalWarrantIssued Namespace Prefix: us-
gaap_ Data Type: xbrli: monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: durationX- DefinitionThe amount of the
reduction or elimination during the period of a noncontrolling interest resulting from the parent' s loss of control and
deconsolidation of the entity in which one +and-outside parties had a noncontrolling interest.
ReferencesReference 1: http: / / fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref / legacyRef- Name Accounting Standards Codification-
Topic S05- SubTopic 10- Section S99- Paragraph 1- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480008 /
505- 10- S99- 1Reference 2: http: / / fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref / legacyRef- Name Accounting Standards Codification-
Section S0- Paragraph 1A- Subparagraph ( ¢) (2)- SubTopic 10- Topic 810- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org /
1943274 /2147481203 / 810- 10- 50- 1A Details Name: us- gaap_NoncontrollingInterestDecreaseFromDeconsolidation
Namespace Prefix: us- gaap_ Data Type: xbrli: monetaryltemType Balance Type: debit Period Type: durationX-
DefinitionAmount after tax of other comprehensive income (loss) attributable to parent entity. ReferencesReference 1:
http: / / fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref / legacyRef- Topic 810- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification-
Section 45- Paragraph 19- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147481231 / 810- 10- 45- 19Reference
2: http: / / fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref / legacyRef- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 45- Paragraph
20- SubTopic 10- Topic 810- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147481231 / 810- 10- 45-
20Reference 3 : http: / / fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref / legacyRef- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50-
Paragraph 1A- Subparagraph (c ) (3)- SubTopic 10- Topic 810- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 /
2147481203 / 810- 10- 50- 1AReference 4: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 250- SubTopic 10-
Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 6- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org /
1943274 / 2147483443 / 250- 10- 50- 6Reference S: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 220-
SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 45- Paragraph 1B- Subparagraph (b)- Publisher FASB-
URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147482790 / 220- 10- 45- 1BReference 6: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role /
disclosureRef- Topic 220- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 45- Paragraph 1A-
Subparagraph (b)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147482790 / 220- 10- 45- 1A detats-Details
regarding-Name: us- gaap_OtherComprehensiveIncomeLossNetOfTaxPortionAttributableToParent Namespace Prefix:
us- gaap_ Data Type: xbrli: monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: durationX- DefinitionThe
consolidated profit or loss for the period, net of income taxes, including the portion attributable to the noncontrolling
interest. ReferencesReference 1: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 250- SubTopic 10- Name
Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 6- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 /
2147483443 / 250- 10- 50- 6Reference 2: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 250- SubTopic 10-
Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 9- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org /
1943274 / 2147483443 / 250- 10- 50- 9Reference 3: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 805-
SubTopic 60- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 65- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (g)- Publisher FASB-



URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147476176 / 805- 60- 65- 1Reference 4: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role /
disclosureRef- Topic 740- SubTopic 323- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 65- Paragraph 2-
Subparagraph (g) (3)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147478666 / 740- 323- 65- 2Reference 5:
http: // www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 235- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification-
Section S99- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (SX 210. 4- 08 (g) (1) (ii))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org /
1943274 / 2147480678 / 235- 10- S99- 1Reference 6: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 323-
SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 3- Subparagraph (c)- Publisher FASB-
URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147481687 / 323- 10- 50- 3Reference 7: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role /
disclosureRef- Topic 825- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 28-
Subparagraph (f)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147482907 / 825- 10- S0- 28Reference 8: http:
// www. xbrl. org /2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 250- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification-
Section S50- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (b) (2)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147483443 /
250- 10- S50- 1Reference 9: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 815- SubTopic 40- Name
Accounting Standards Codification- Section 65- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (f)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc.
fasb. org /1943274 / 2147480175 / 815- 40- 65- 1Reference 10: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic
250- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 8- Publisher FASB- URI https: //
asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147483443 / 250- 10- 50- 8Reference 11: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2003 / role / exampleRef-
Topic 946- SubTopic 830- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 55- Paragraph 11- Publisher FASB- URI
https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147479168 / 946- 830- 55- 11Reference 12: http: / / www. xbrl. org /2003 / role /
disclosureRef- Topic 946- SubTopic 205- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 45- Paragraph 3-
Subparagraph (a)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147478009 / 946- 205- 45- 3Reference 13:
http: // www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 946- SubTopic 220- Name Accounting Standards Codification-
Section 45- Paragraph 7- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147479105 / 946- 220- 45- 7Reference
14: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 944- SubTopic 220- Name Accounting Standards
Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (SX 210. 7- 04 (16))- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org
/1943274 / 2147477250 / 944- 220- S99- 1Reference 15: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 946-
SubTopic 220- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (SX 210. 6- 07 (9))-
Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147479134 / 946- 220- S99- 1Reference 16: http: / / www. xbrl.
org /2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 946- SubTopic 220- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99-
Paragraph 3- Subparagraph (SX 210. 6- 09 (1) (d))- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147479134 /
946- 220- S99- 3Reference 17: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 810- SubTopic 10- Name
Accounting Standards Codification- Section 45- Paragraph 19- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 /
2147481231 / 810- 10- 45- 19Reference 18: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2009 / role / commonPracticeRef- Topic 220-
SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 6- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc.
fasb. org /1943274 / 2147482765 / 220- 10- 50- 6Reference 19: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic
470- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1A- Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 01
(a) (4) (i))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480097 / 470- 10- S99- 1AReference 20: http: / /
www. xbrl. org /2009 / role / commonPracticeRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification-
Section S99- Paragraph 1A- Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 01 (a) (4) (ii))- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org /
1943274 /2147480097 / 470- 10- S99- 1AReference 21: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 470-
SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1A- Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 01 (a)
(4) (iii) (A))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480097 / 470- 10- S99- 1AReference 22: http: / /
www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section
S99- Paragraph 1A- Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 01 (a) (4) (iv))- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 /
2147480097 / 470- 10- S99- 1AReference 23: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10-
Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1A- Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 01 (a) (5))- Publisher
FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480097 / 470- 10- S99- 1AReference 24: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 /
role / disclosureRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1B-
Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 02 (a) (4) (i))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480097 / 470- 10-
S99- 1BReference 25: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting
Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1B- Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 02 (a) (4) (iii) (A))- Publisher FASB-
URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480097 / 470- 10- S99- 1BReference 26: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role /
disclosureRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1B-
Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 02 (a) (4) (iii) (B))- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480097 / 470-
10- S99- 1BReference 27: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting
Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1B- Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 02 (a) (4) (iv))- Publisher FASB- URI
https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480097 / 470- 10- S99- 1BReference 28: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role /
disclosureRef- Topic 470- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1B-
Subparagraph (SX 210. 13- 02 (a) (5))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480097 / 470- 10-
S99- 1BReference 29: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 942- SubTopic 235- Name Accounting
Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (SX 210. 9- 05 (b) (2))- Publisher FASB- URI https: //
asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147477314 / 942- 235- S99- 1Reference 30: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef-
Topic 205- SubTopic 20- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 7- Publisher FASB- URI



https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147483499 / 205- 20- 50- 7Reference 31: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role /
exampleRef- Topic 810- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 55- Paragraph 4J- Publisher
FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147481175 / 810- 10- 55- 4JReference 32: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 /
role / exampleRef- Topic 810- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 55- Paragraph 4K-
Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147481175 / 810- 10- 55- 4KReference 33: http: / / www. xbrl.
org /2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 220- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 45-
Paragraph 1A- Subparagraph (a)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147482790 / 220- 10- 45-
1AReference 34: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 220- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting
Standards Codification- Section 45- Paragraph 1B- Subparagraph (a)- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org /
1943274 /2147482790 / 220- 10- 45- 1BReference 35: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 230-
SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 45- Paragraph 2- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc.
fasb. org /1943274 / 2147482740 / 230- 10- 45- 2Reference 36: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic
810- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S0- Paragraph 1A- Subparagraph (a) (1)-
Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147481203 / 810- 10- 50- 1AReference 37: http: / / www. xbrl
org /2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 810- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50-
Paragraph 1A- Subparagraph (c) (1)- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147481203 / 810- 10- 50-
1A Details Name: us- gaap_ProfitLoss Namespace Prefix: us- gaap_ Data Type: xbrli: monetaryltemType Balance Type:
credit Period Type: durationX- DefinitionNumber of shares issued which are neither cancelled nor held in the treasury.
ReferencesNo definition available. Details Name: us- gaap_SharesOutstanding Namespace Prefix: us- gaap_Data Type:
xbrli: sharesItemType Balance Type: na Period Type: instantX- DefinitionNumber of shares issued during the period as
a result of the conversion of convertible securities. ReferencesReference 1: http: / / fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref /
legacyRef- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 2- SubTopic 10- Topic 505- Publisher
FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147481112 / 505- 10- 50- 2Reference 2: http: / / fasb. org / us- gaap / role /
ref / legacyRef- Topic 210- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1-
Subparagraph (SX 210. 5- 02 (29))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480566 / 210- 10- S99-
1Reference 3: http: / / fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref / legacyRef- Topic 210- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards
Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (SX 210. 5- 02 (30))- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org
/1943274 / 2147480566 / 210- 10- S99- 1Reference 4: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 470-
SubTopic 20- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 1E- Subparagraph (c)- Publisher FASB-
URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147481139 / 470- 20- 50- 1EReference 5: http: / / fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref /
legacyRef- Topic 505- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph
(SX 210. 3- 04)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480008 / 505- 10- S99- 1Reference 6: http: / /
fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref / legacyRef- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Topic 505- SubTopic 10- Section
50- Paragraph 3- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147481112 / 505- 10- 50- 3 Details Name: us-
gaap_StockIssuedDuringPeriodSharesConversionOfConvertibleSecurities Namespace Prefix: us- gaap_Data Type:
xbrli: sharesItemType Balance Type: na Period Type: durationX- DefinitionNumber of shares issued in lieu of cash for
services contributed to the entity. Number of shares includes, but is not limited to, shares issued for services contributed
by vendors and founders. ReferencesNo definition available. Details Name: us-
gaap_StockIssuedDuringPeriodSharesIssuedForServices Namespace Prefix: us- gaap_ Data Type: xbrli:
sharesItemType Balance Type: na Period Type: durationX- DefinitionNumber of new stock issued during the period.
ReferencesReference 1: http: / / fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref / legacyRef- Name Accounting Standards Codification-
Section S0- Paragraph 2- SubTopic 10- Topic S05- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147481112 /
505- 10- S50- 2Reference 2: http: / / fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref / legacyRef- Topic 210- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting
Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (SX 210. 5- 02 (28))- Publisher FASB- URI https: //
asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480566 / 210- 10- S99- 1Reference 3: http: / / fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref / legacyRef-
Topic 210- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (SX 210.
5- 02 (29))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480566 / 210- 10- S99- 1Reference 4: http: / /
www. xbrl. org /2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 946- SubTopic 505- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section
50- Paragraph 2- Subparagraph (a)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147478448 / 946- 505- 50-
2Reference S: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 946- SubTopic 220- Name Accounting
Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 3- Subparagraph (SX 210. 6- 09 (4) (b))- Publisher FASB- URI https: //
asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147479134 / 946- 220- S99- 3Reference 6: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef-
Topic 946- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 3- Subparagraph (SX 210.
6- 03 (i) (1))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147479886 / 946- 10- S99- 3Reference 7: http: / /
fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref / legacyRef- Topic 505- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section
S99- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (SX 210. 3- 04)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480008 /
505- 10- S99- 1 Details Name: us- gaap_StockIssuedDuringPeriodSharesNewIssues Namespace Prefix: us- gaap_ Data
Type: xbrli: sharesItemType Balance Type: na Period Type: durationX- DefinitionNumber of share options (or share
units) exercised during the current period. ReferencesReference 1: http: / / fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref / legacyRef-
Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 2- SubTopic 10- Topic 505- Publisher FASB- URI
https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147481112 / 505- 10- 50- 2Reference 2: http: / / fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref /
legacyRef- Topic 210- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph
(SX 210. 5- 02 (28))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480566 / 210- 10- S99- 1Reference 3:



http: / / fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref / legacyRef- Topic 210- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification-
Section S99- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (SX 210. 5- 02 (29))- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 /
2147480566 / 210- 10- S99- 1Reference 4: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 718- SubTopic 10-
Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 2- Subparagraph (c) (1) (iv) (02)- Publisher FASB-
URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480429 / 718- 10- 50- 2Reference S: http: / / fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref /
legacyRef- Topic 505- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph
(SX 210. 3- 04)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480008 / 505- 10- S99- 1 Details Name: us-
gaap_StockIssuedDuringPeriodSharesStockOptionsExercised Namespace Prefix: us- gaap_ Data Type: xbrli:
sharesItemType Balance Type: na Period Type: durationX- DefinitionThe gross value of stock issued during the period
upon the conversion of convertible securities. ReferencesReference 1: http: / / fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref / legacyRef-
Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section 50- Paragraph 2- SubTopic 10- Topic 505- Publisher FASB- URI
https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147481112 / 505- 10- 50- 2Reference 2: http: / / fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref /
legacyRef- Topic 210- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph
(SX 210. 5- 02 (29))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480566 / 210- 10- S99- 1Reference 3:
http: / / fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref / legacyRef- Topic 210- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification-
Section S99- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (SX 210. 5- 02 (30))- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 /
2147480566 / 210- 10- S99- 1Reference 4: http: / / fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref / legacyRef- Topic 210- SubTopic 10-
Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (SX 210. 5- 02 (31))- Publisher
FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480566 / 210- 10- S99- 1Reference 5: http: / / fasb. org / us- gaap / role /
ref / legacyRef- Topic 505- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1-
Subparagraph (SX 210. 3- 04)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480008 / 505- 10- S99- 1
Details Name: us- gaap_StockIssuedDuringPeriodValueConversionOfConvertibleSecurities Namespace Prefix: us-
gaap_ Data Type: xbrli: monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: durationX- DefinitionValue of stock
issued in lieu of cash for services contributed to the entity. Value of the stock issued includes, but is not limited to,
services contributed by vendors and founders. ReferencesNo definition available. Details Name: us-
gaap_StockIssuedDuringPeriodValuelssuedForServices Namespace Prefix: us- gaap_ Data Type: xbrli:
monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: durationX- DefinitionEquity impact of the value of new stock
issued during the period. Includes shares issued in any— an reltanee-initial public offering or a secondary public offering.
ReferencesReference 1: http: / / fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref / legacyRef- Name Accounting Standards Codification-
Section S50- Paragraph 2- SubTopic 10- Topic S05- Publisher FASB- URI https: / / asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147481112 /
505- 10- 50- 2Reference 2: http: / / fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref / legacyRef- Topic 210- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting
Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (SX 210. 5- 02 (28))- Publisher FASB- URI https: //
asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480566 / 210- 10- S99- 1Reference 3: http: / / fasb. org / us- gaap / role / ref / legacyRef-
Topic 210- SubTopic 10- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section S99- Paragraph 1- Subparagraph (SX 210.
5- 02 (29))- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147480566 / 210- 10- S99- 1Reference 4: http: / /
www. xbrl. org /2003 / role / exampleRef- Topic 946- SubTopic 830- Name Accounting Standards Codification- Section
55- Paragraph 11- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147479168 / 946- 830- 55- 11Reference S:
http: // www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 946- SubTopic 205- Name Accounting Standards Codification-
Section 45- Paragraph 4- Subparagraph (a)- Publisher FASB- URI https: // asc. fasb. org / 1943274 / 2147478009 / 946-
205- 45- 4Reference 6: http: / / www. xbrl. org / 2003 / role / disclosureRef- Topic 946- SubTopic 505- Name Accounting
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($) 12 Months EndedDec. 31, 2024 Dec. 31, 2023CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES Net loss $ (46, 336,
787) $ (58, 545, 093) Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities: Depreciation
and amortization 17, 877, 770 38, 080, S06 Amortization of operating lease right- of- use asset 958, 571 1, 436, 186Foreign
exchange loss (gain) (1, 626, 705) 1, 644, 484Stock based compensation 14, 064, 883 10, 834, 838Unrealized loss
derivative asset 1, 173, 104 7, 241, 883Share of loss of from equity accounted method investments 36, 356 (Gain) loss on
sale of marketable securities (1, 437, 230) Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 18, 262 137, 427Non- cash
interest expense 3, 079, 113 1, 624, 537Loss on lease termination 312, 375 Profit on sale of site (3, 353, 130) (Gain) loss on
deconsolidation 12, 959, 923 (9, 472, 976) Impairment on equity accounted method investment 1, 837, 063Changes in
operating assets and liabilities: Trade and the-other impraetieability-exeeptions—MIGIshall-receivables (3, 062, 342) (3, 907,
067) Operating lease liabilities (771, 190) (1, 511, 688) Other current assets (1, 271, 220) 2, 040, 999Trade and other
payables 6, 186, 846 10, 767, 241Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities 3, 562, 603 (2, 545, 664) CASH
FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES Capital expenditures (1, 957, 902) (5, 352, 024) Proceeds from sale of site 8,
107, S08Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment 838, 864 1, 059, 290Proceeds from sale of marketable
securities 6, 926, 843Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (1, 119, 038) 10, 741, 617CASH FLOWS FROM



FINANCING ACTIVITES Proceeds from common share issuances 6, 192, 845Payments of stock issuance costs (380,
950) Proceeds from loans 2, 043, 360Payment of finance lease liabilities (330, 067) (38, 176) Payments of loans (500, 000)
(12, 464, 358) Net cash used in financing activities (830, 067) (4, 647, 279) Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and
cash equivalents (18, 600) Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 1, 613, 498 3, 530, 074Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of period 4, 476, 339 946, 265Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 6, 089, 837 4, 476, 339Supplemental
disclosure of cash flow information Cash paid for mterest 18 527 1 424, 233Cash pald for income taxes 896 247 Non-
cash transactions Recognition of right of use fnhn Q m &
eontroperating asset and lease liability 2, 634, 550 923, 651Accrued 1nterest on convertlble notes settled in common stock
$ 276, 959




